
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

October 3, 2023 

Work Session – 5:00 pm 
Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
RYAN HUNTER 

JOHN P. NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON 
DEBBIE SWANSON 



                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE•YPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO • CLERK HEATHER JARRELL ROE • TREASURER STAN 

ELDRIDGE TRUSTEES: RYAN HUNTER • JOHN P. NEWMAN II • GLORIA PETERSON •  
DEBBIE SWANSON  
 

                                

 
 
 
 
 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2023 

      

 
5:00pm 

 
 

1. GRANT UPDATE……………………………………….…BETH ERNAT, ERNAT CONSULTING     
 

2. AGENDA REVIEW ………………………………………………………..SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
3. OTHER DISCUSSION………………………………………………………… BOARD MEMBERS 

 
 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
CC:  Beth Ernat, Ernat Consulting 
 
Date:  September 27, 2023 
 
RE: Grant Update: Work Session 
 
 
The Municipal Services Department is requesting time at the upcoming October 3rd, 2023 Work 
Session for Beth Ernat of Ernat Consulting to provide a general progress update on current grant 
work in the Township.   
 
Specifically, Beth will focus the majority of her update discussing the submittal of the DOE 
grant for the Hydro Dam Improvement project, the EECBG voucher program for the HVAC and 
funding for path replacement in North Bay Park.  Rob from Midwestern Consulting will also be 
in attendance to present the topo and flyover survey of the lake parks, the renovations and plans 
for North Bay Park.   
 
John Hines 
Municpal Services Director  
jhines@ypsitownship.org 
734-351-8947 
 
 

mailto:jhines@ypsitownship.org


Ernat Consulting 
Grant Tracking 

Updated : 9/21/2023

Grant Status Next Steps Action Requested
Recycling - Replace 
recycling carts 

Completed

DNR Spark Grant - 
Ford Lake Bank 
Stabilization

Round 1 - Not Funded.       
Round 2 - Submitted

Submit by June 1, 2023.       
Round 2 submitted 6/26. 

Announcements made middle of 
October

EECBG - Community 
Center HVAC 
replacement

Pre-application worksheet 
submitted.  DOE to release next 
steps as they become available.  

Community Energy Efficiency 
Plan must be current. 

Complete Energy Efficiency 
Strategy and request bids for 

project.  Voucher system opens 
10/1.

Work with Township to prepare beid documents.

WCWRC - Hydro 
Dam Inspection 

Application Submitted 
5/1/2023.  

Project moved to Round 2.  
WCWRC has not released 

timeline for decisions
MNRTF - North Bay 
Park Bathrooms and 
Boardwalk

Preliminary Design Engineering 
is underway.   Cost estimates 

secured

Strategize funding sources for 
improvements and inclusion of 

replacement of boardwalk.

Transportation 
Alternative Program - 
Ford Lake Loop 

Tabletop review of survey, 
easements and connections.

TAP Planning 
Assistance SEMCOG

New Program.  Applications are 
due May 15th. Funding of 
$50,000 available for planning 
activities for potential TAP 
projects.  Submitted 5/13/23

Congressional Direct 
Spending - Ford Lake 
Stabilization

Spending request made to 
Senator Gary Peters office.  

Awaiting decision of Senator 
Peters to bring CDS request to 

the floor. 

No direct spending has been awarded.

RAP 2.0 New funding expected in 
October

Work with YCUA to determine possible locations for 
water and sewer extensions. Project engineering not 
covered by grant so engineering must be completed.  
No MDOT projects are approvals need to be secured.  

Ballfield Lighting project in review

WCPARC Connection Communities Grant - 
Contact WCPARC by Juy 15th 

with project and submit by 
8/31/23

Consider 2024 application projects

DOE - Clean Energy 
Infrastructure (Dam)

Letter of Intent approved for full 
submission due 10/6. 300 LOIs 
were received for Dam Safety. 

Complete application and 
submit by 10/6

Incentives cannot exceed 30 percent of costs.  
Notifications will not be made until Spring 24































































 

REVIEW AGENDA 
 

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 



OTHER DISCUSSION 

A. BOARD MEMBERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO
DISCUSS ANY OTHER PERTINENT ISSUES



                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE•YPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO • CLERK HEATHER JARRELL ROE • TREASURER STAN 
ELDRIDGE TRUSTEES: RYAN HUNTER • JOHN P. NEWMAN II • GLORIA PETERSON •  
DEBBIE SWANSON  
 

                                
               REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

                              TUESDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2023 
                        7:00 P.M. 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION  

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

  
• THREE MINUTES PER PERSON 
• ALL COMMENTS MUST BE ADDRESSED TO THE CHAIR  
• PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE ALSO WELCOME AS THE BOARD ADDRESSES EACH 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 15, 2023 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING 
(TABLED AT THE SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 REGULAR MEETING) 
 

B. MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING 
 

C. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR OCTOBER 3, 2023 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,145,603.33 

 
6. ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 
1. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT FOR ELECTION SERVICES WITH 

WASHTENAW COUNTY 
 (TABLED AT THE SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 REGULAR MEETING) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. REQUEST TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDER #2 WITH HOMRICH FOR THE GAULT 

VILLAGE DEMOLITION IN THE AMOUNT OF $21,038.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#101-729-806-091 CONTINGENT UPON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 

2. REQUEST TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDER #1 WITH SME FOR ABATEMENT AND 
MONITORING SERVICES FOR THE GAULT VILLAGE DEMOLITION PROJECT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $55,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM # 101-729-806-091 CONTINGENT 
UPON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
3. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF THE APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT FROM HOMRICH 

FOR WORK PERFORMED FOR THE GAULT VILLAGE DEMOLITION IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $376,043.72 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2 October 3, 2023 

4. REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE DRAFT JOB DESCRIPTIONS FOR ASSISTANT
MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR AND RECREATION SPECIALIST AND TO POST
AND FILL BOTH POSITIONS

5. REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE DRAFT JOB DESCRIPTION FOR HUMAN RESOURCES
SPECIALIST AND TO POST AND FILL THE POSITION

6. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH OHM ADVISORS TO PROVIDE
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR THE CARPORT REBUILDING PROJECT IN THE
AMOUNT OF $51,400.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-901-975-107 CONTINGENT
UPON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT

7. REQUEST TO WAIVE THE FINANCIAL POLICY AND TO ACCEPT THE LOW QUOTE
FROM WEINGARTZ FOR THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF THE THREE
SNOWPLOWS IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,742.50 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #661-268-
985-000

8. BUDGET AMENDMENT #13

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

1. REQUEST TO SEEK BIDS FOR CYBERSECURITY SERVICES FOR RESIDENTS AND
EMPLOYEES

OTHER BUSINESS 

BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 



CONSENT AGENDA 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

October 3, 2023 

Work Session – 5:00 pm 
Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

Treasurer 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

Trustees 
RYAN HUNTER 

JOHN P. NEWMAN II 
GLORIA PETERSON 
DEBBIE SWANSON 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 15, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 7 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Eldridge and seconded by Trustee Swanson to 
approve the request to seek sealed bids for the renovation of Clubview Tennis 
Courts as part of the mDNR Land and Water Conservation Fund Development 
Project Agreement. 
 
The motion passed unanimously.  
 
5.  REQUEST TO SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR THE RENOVATION OF COMMUNITY 

CENTER PARK TENNIS COURTS AS PART OF THE mDNR LAND AND WATER 
CONSERVATION FUND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT AGREEMENT 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and seconded by Trustee Peterson to 
approve the request to seek sealed bids for the renovation of Community Center 
Park Tennis Courts as part of the mDNR Land and Water Conservation Fund 
Development Project Agreement. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
6. REQUEST TO SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR THE REPAIRS OF FORD LAKE PARK 

SHELTERS 1-4 AND WEST WILLOW PARK SHELTER AS PART OF THE AMERICAN 
RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) PROJECT FUNDING 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Peterson and seconded by Treasurer Eldridge to 
approve the request to seek sealed bids for the repairs of Ford Lake Park Shelters 
1-4 and West Willow Park Shelter as part of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
project funding. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
7. REQUEST TO SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR THE RIDGE RD. SIDEWALK PROJECT 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and seconded by Trustee Peterson to 
approve the request to seek sealed bids for the Ridge Rd. sidewalk project.  
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
There was no other business. 
 
BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 
 Board member updates were given.  
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and seconded by Treasurer 
Eldridge.  
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 15, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 8 

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:23pm. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor  Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



  

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-503 

 
 

An ordinance to amend Chapter 62, Article IV, Section 62-77 of the Code of 
Ordinances, Charter Township of Ypsilanti, to adjust sewage disposal rates. 

 
 
 
 
follows: 

BE IT ORDERED BY THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, that: 
 
Section 62-77 of Chapter 62, Article IV of the Code of Ordinances be revised as 

 
For all billings rendered prior to September 1, 2023, existing sewage disposal service rates 

shall prevail. For all billings rendered on or after September 1, 2023, charges for sewage disposal services 
shall be as follows, for each bimonthly (two-month) period: 

 
(1) Readiness-to-serve rates based on size of meter: 

 
 
 

Meter Size 
(inch) 

Sewage Rate 

5/8-3/4 $ 18.17 
1 $ 45.43 
1-1/2 $ 90.86 
2 $ 145.38 
3 $ 454.30 
4 $ 908.61 
6 $ 1,817.20 
8 $3,180.11 
10 $4,997.31 
12 $5,905.92 

 
(2) Commodity rate: $2.99 per 100 cubic feet 

 

I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2023-503 by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on August 15, 2023 
after first being introduced at a Regular Meeting held on July 18, 2023. The motion to approve was made by member Jarrell Roe and 
seconded by Eldridge YES:  Stumbo, Jarrell Roe, Eldridge, Hunter, Newman, Peterson, and Swanson ABSENT:  None  NO: None  
ABSTAIN:  None.      

                       

                                                                                                                                                       ___________________________________
        Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk
                      Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



 
 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
ORDINANCE 2023-504 

 
An ordinance to amend Chapter 62, Article IV, Section 62-76(a)(l) of the Code of 

Ordinances, Charter Township of Ypsilanti, to adjust water service rates. 
 

 
 
 

follows: 

BE IT ORDERED BY THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, that: 
 

Section 62-76(a)(l) of Chapter 62, Article IV of the Code of Ordinances be revised as 
 

For all billings rendered prior to September 1, 2023, existing water service rates shall 
prevail. For all billings rendered on or after September 1, 2023, charges for water service rates shall 
be as follows, for each bimonthly (two-month) period: 

 
(1) Readiness-to-serve rates based on size of meter: 

 
 
 

Meter Size 
(inch) 

Water Rate 

5/8-3/4 $ 17.40 
1 $ 43.50 
1-1/2 $ 87.01 
2 $ 139.21 
3 $ 435.03 
4 $ 870.06 
6 $ 1,740.12 
8 $ 3,045.21 
10 $4,785.32 
12 $5,655.38 

 
 

(2) Commodity rate: $3.76 per 100 cubic feet 
 
 

 
I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2023-504 by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on August 15, 2023 
after first being introduced at a Regular Meeting held on July 18, 2023. The motion to approve was made by member Jarrell Roe and 
seconded by Eldridge YES:  Stumbo, Jarrell Roe, Eldridge, Hunter, Newman, Peterson, and Swanson ABSENT:  None NO: None  
ABSTAIN:  None.      

                       

                                                                                                                                                       ___________________________________
        Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk
                      Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 
 



 

    Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-12 
    A Resolution Amending the Ypsilanti Township Zoning Ordinance 

(In Reference to Proposed Ordinance 2023-505)  

  
Whereas, the Township Planning Department Staff completed a detailed review of the 

Township’s Zoning Code; and 

Whereas, at its regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting held July 25, 2023, 

the Planning Commission held a public hearing. 

Whereas, the Planning Commission for Ypsilanti Township recommended approval of 

the proposed zoning amendments to the Township’s Zoning Code to the Township Board of 

Trustees at its regular meeting of July 25, 2023 which changes can be summarized as follows: 

1. Article 4, Sec. 407. – Residential Multiple-Family: Low Density 
a. The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall 

conform with the applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most 
comparable single-family zoning district. 

2. Article 4, Sec. 408. – Residential Multiple-Family: Medium Density 
a. The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall 

conform with the applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most 
comparable single-family zoning district. 

3. Article 4, Sec. 409. – Residential Multiple-Family: High Density  
a. The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall 

conform with the applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most 
comparable single-family zoning district. 

4. Article 4, Sec. 420.5 – Industrial Use Table  
a. Amended industrial district use table. 

5. Article 5, Sec. 506. – Town Center  
a. Amending group 2 to allow for use groups 1, 2, 3, and 4.  

6. Article 11, Sec. 1128. – Temporary Sidewalk Outdoor and Tent Sales for Principal Use.  
a. Address the parking requirements of temporary sidewalk and outdoor sales.  

7. Article 13, Sec. 1305. – Fences and Walls.  
a. Eliminate illustration in Sec. 1305 and amend 1305.2.A to include through lots.  

8. Article 15, Sec. 1509. – Signs.  
a. Amend Sec. 1509.6.A.2.b. to change the area of wall signs permitted for each “lot” to “unit” as 

was intended. To amend Sec. 1509.10. to eliminate wall painted signs.  
 
Now Therefore, 

Be it resolved, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees does hereby approve 
Ordinance No. 2023-505 as attached, by amending Articles of the Township's Zoning Ordinance as 
noted, replacing it with proposed Ordinance No. 2023-505.  

 
 
 
I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of 

Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of 
Resolution No. 2023-12 approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees 
assembled at a Regular Meeting held on September 19, 2023.  

                            Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk                                                                   
              Charter Township of Ypsilanti  

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 2023-505 

 
 

            An Ordinance to Amend Articles 4, 5, 11, 13, and 15 of the 
                     Ypsilanti Township Zoning Ordinance 

 

 

Article 4 – District Regulations Zoning Text Amendments 

Sections 407, 408, and 409 – Residential Multiple-Family Districts 

Single-family residential uses are permitted in the three residential multiple-family districts (RM-LD, RM-

MD, and RM-HD) but the dimensional requirements do not contemplate setbacks for single-family 

residential uses, only multiple-family residential uses.  Requiring a single-family residential dwelling to 

comply with the required 60-foot aggregate side yard setback, for example, of the RM-LD district makes 

most typical platted subdivision lots unbuildable except for variance approval. On October 5, 2022, staff 

brought before the Zoning Board of Appeals a request by Habitat for Humanity to seek a variance from 

Sec. 407 due to the inability for them to meet the aggregate 60-foot side yard setback requirement on a 

RM-LD lot located at 966 N. Prospect. The lot was only 51’ wide rendering the construction of a single-

family home impossible with the current standards. If this Zoning Text Amendment was in effect at the 

time, Habitat for Humanity could simply use the dimensional standards of the most similar single-family 

lot, in this case, a R-5 One-Family Residential lot. Staff recommends the following language be included 

in the supplemental district standards for all three multiple-family districts: 

The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall conform with the 
applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most comparable single-family zoning district.  



 

 
 

Article 4 – District Regulations Zoning Text Amendments 

Sections 407, 408, and 409 – Residential Multiple-Family Districts 

Single-family residential uses are permitted in the three residential multiple-family districts (RM-LD, RM-

MD, and RM-HD) but the dimensional requirements do not contemplate setbacks for single-family 

residential uses, only multiple-family residential uses.  Requiring a single-family residential dwelling to 

comply with the required 60-foot aggregate side yard setback, for example, of the RM-LD district makes 

most typical platted subdivision lots unbuildable except for variance approval. On October 5, 2022, staff 

brought before the Zoning Board of Appeals a request by Habitat for Humanity to seek a variance from 

Sec. 407 due to the inability for them to meet the aggregate 60-foot side yard setback requirement on a 

RM-LD lot located at 966 N. Prospect. The lot was only 51’ wide rendering the construction of a single-

family home impossible with the current standards. If this Zoning Text Amendment was in effect at the 

time, Habitat for Humanity could simply use the dimensional standards of the most similar single-family 

lot, in this case, a R-5 One-Family Residential lot. Staff recommends the following language be included 

in the supplemental district standards for all three multiple-family districts: 

The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall conform with the 
applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most comparable single-family zoning district.  



 

 

 

Article 4 – District Regulations Zoning Text Amendments 

Sections 407, 408, and 409 – Residential Multiple-Family Districts 

Single-family residential uses are permitted in the three residential multiple-family districts (RM-LD, RM-

MD, and RM-HD) but the dimensional requirements do not contemplate setbacks for single-family 

residential uses, only multiple-family residential uses.  Requiring a single-family residential dwelling to 

comply with the required 60-foot aggregate side yard setback, for example, of the RM-LD district makes 

most typical platted subdivision lots unbuildable except for variance approval. On October 5, 2022, staff 

brought before the Zoning Board of Appeals a request by Habitat for Humanity to seek a variance from 

Sec. 407 due to the inability for them to meet the aggregate 60-foot side yard setback requirement on a 

RM-LD lot located at 966 N. Prospect. The lot was only 51’ wide rendering the construction of a single-

family home impossible with the current standards. If this Zoning Text Amendment was in effect at the 



time, Habitat for Humanity could simply use the dimensional standards of the most similar single-family 

lot, in this case, a R-5 One-Family Residential lot. Staff recommends the following language be included 

in the supplemental district standards for all three multiple-family districts: 

The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall conform with the 
applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most comparable single-family zoning district.  

 

 

 

 
 

 



Article 4, Section 420 – Residential Use Table  

Staff suggests amending the industrial schedule of uses to provide for uses more in line with the Master 

Plan, industrial users that are currently operating in the township, and uses more aligned with today’s 

economic trends. Please find below the proposed changes:  

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 



Article 5 – Sec. 506. – Town Center:  

Use groups by category in Town Center 

Use Group 2 for the Town center corridors indicates in Use Group 2 mixed uses: any combination of uses 

located in group 1, 2, or 3 that is mixed vertically in a building or horizontal on one parcel is permitted but 

Use Group 4 (retail, entertainment, and service uses) have been excluded from the mixed-use groups even 

though Use Group 4 is permitted across all site types.  Staff recommends that Use Group 2 for all corridors 

be corrected to include Use Group 4 in the mixed-uses permitted. This Zoning Ordinance Text 

Amendment will be brought to the Planning Commission for the Neighborhood and Regional Corridor 

in the coming months. See next page.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Current Zoning Ordinance Language:  
 

 
 
 



Proposed Text Amendment: 

 

 

 



Article 11—Specific Use Provisions Zoning Text Amendments 

Section 1128 - Sec. 1128. - Temporary sidewalk, outdoor and tent sales for principal use:  

Section 1128 provides for temporary sidewalk, outdoor and tent sales for principal uses, with conditions 

for all uses specified in paragraph 1.  The conditions include following the sign provisions, maneuverability, 

or safety of the site, and following all other township requirements.  However, there is no provision for 

parking requirements that apply to all uses; parking requirements are addressed only under paragraph 2, 

Seasonal sales of produce from tents, stands or display racks. Parking should be a consideration for all 

temporary sales uses.   

Staff recommends that the parking requirements under paragraph 2 be moved to paragraph 1, thereby 

applying to all uses under Section 1128.   

Sec. 1128. - Temporary sidewalk, outdoor and tent sales for principal use:  

Temporary sidewalk, outdoor and tent sales may be permitted subject to the issuance of a revocable 
Zoning Compliance permit to operate a sidewalk, outdoor or tent sales as an extension of or compatible 
with, the existing business on a portion of the public sidewalk or other public area adjacent to the 
business. The Zoning Compliance permit may be issued by the Zoning Administrator under the following 
terms and conditions:  

1. For all uses, the following conditions must be met:  

A. Signs shall be limited to sizes and locations in keeping with Article 15.   

B. All temporary buildings, tents and structures shall be constructed, used, occupied, and 

maintained in compliance with the provisions of the state construction code and all 

Ordinances of the Township.  

C. Building and Fire Code requirements shall be complied with.  

D. The sale shall not interfere with the use of the sidewalk or street for pedestrian or vehicular 

travel. Sidewalk width must remain at least six (6) feet wide.  

E. The sale shall not unreasonably interfere with the view of, access to or use of property 

adjacent to the street or neighboring businesses or properties.  

F. The sale shall not interfere with street clearing or snow removal activities.  

G. The sale shall not cause damage to the street or to sidewalks, trees, benches, landscaping, or 

other objects lawfully located on the property.  

H. Sales areas shall be located so as to provide adequate access for fire and safety vehicles.  

I. A permit shall be required. The proprietor of the property shall provide a sketch plan drawn 

to scale showing the location of the sale, existing and proposed temporary and permanent 

structures on the entire parcel, parking areas, and parking calculations.  

J. Copies of permits required by any other agencies for the use must be included with the permit 

application.  



K. Off-street parking shall be provided in keeping with standards of Section 1205, Parking 
requirements. In those instances where usable floor area cannot be effectively measured, the 
sales space utilized shall be measured as usable floor area.  

2. Seasonal sale of produce from tents, stands or display racks subject to the following conditions:  

A. Permits may be issued for up to six (6) month periods.  

B. Off-street parking shall be provided in keeping with standards of Section 1205, Parking 

requirements. In those instances where usable floor area cannot be effectively measured, the 

sales space utilized shall be measured as usable floor area.  

3. Sidewalk sales areas may be permitted subject to the following:  

A. The sidewalk sales area shall abut the building and shall not be placed abutting a parking area 

or vehicle travel lane.  

B. Sidewalk sales areas shall not be fenced or enclosed in any manner.  

C. Sidewalk sales shall be conducted for no more than fourteen (14) consecutive days and 

permits shall not be issued for consecutive tent sales beyond a fourteen (14) day period.  

4. Tent sales may be permitted subject to the following:  

A. No more than three (3) tent sales shall be permitted for a business location within a single 

calendar year.  

B. A tent sale shall be conducted for no more than fourteen (14) consecutive days and permits 

shall not be issued for consecutive tent sales beyond a fourteen (14) day period.  

C. Tent sales when proposed to be conducted on parking areas shall not reduce required parking 

spaces by more than fifteen percent (15%).  

D. All tents shall be removed within forty-eight (48) hours of expiration of the period for which 

the permit is issued.  

E. Equipment and products used in the event do not pose a fire or other hazard.  

 
Article 13 Zoning Text Amendments 

A. Section 1305 – Fences and Walls 

Section 1305.2.A.(1) specifies that “Only ornamental type fences shall be located in a required front yard 

or, in the case of a corner or through lot, in a required yard which adjoins a public or private street provided 

such fences shall not exceed four (4) feet in height.”   

However, the illustration included in this section reflects the previous zoning ordinance provisions 

allowing a six-foot privacy fence in the required yard adjoining a public or private street in certain 

situations.  The illustration should be corrected to show that a privacy fence must meet the required front 

yard setback along both street frontages. 

 



 

 

B. Section 1305 – Fences and Walls 

A through lot is defined by the Ordinance as “Lot, Through: Any interior lot having frontage on two (2) 
more or less parallel streets as distinguished from a corner lot. In the case of a row of double frontage lots, 
all yards of said lots adjacent to streets shall be considered frontage, and front yard setbacks shall be 
provided as required.”   

Section 1305.2.A.(1) specifies that “Only ornamental type fences shall be located in a required front yard 

or, in the case of a corner or through lot, in a required yard which adjoins a public or private street provided 

such fences shall not exceed four (4) feet in height.”  A six-foot tall fence must meet the rear yard setback 

of 35 feet on a through lot, which could substantially decrease the usable rear yard of a through lot.   

 

Staff recommends that the ordinance be changed to read as follows:   

2. Height and location requirements:  

A. Residential District. 

(1) Only ornamental type fences shall be located in a required front yard or, in the case of a corner 

or through lot, in a required yard which adjoins a public or private street provided such fences shall not 

exceed four (4) feet in height.  

(2) Fences may be located in any required yard not adjoining a public or private street provided that 

they shall not exceed six (6) feet in height.  In the case of a through lot, fences between four and six feet 

in height located in the secondary front yard shall maintain a ten (10) foot setback.  

 
Article 15 – Signs 

Section 1509.6.A.2.b.  – Permitted Signs in Form-based Districts. 

The area of wall signs permitted for a multi-tenant building in the form-based district is indicated as per 

lot but that would mean individual tenants would be left without any wall signs.  Staff suggests that the 

language be amended to read as follows:  



(b)    Area. The area of wall signs permitted for each lot unit shall be determined as one (1) square foot of 
sign area for each one (1) linear foot of building frontage occupied by a business to a maximum area 
of one hundred (100) square feet. All businesses without ground floor frontage, in a given building, 
shall be permitted one (1) combined exterior wall sign not more than twenty-four (24) square feet in 
area. 

Section 1509.10. – Prohibited Signs 

The zoning ordinance does not address signs painted directly onto a building façade as a wall sign.  Staff 

suggests the following language:  

H. No sign shall be painted directly onto the façade of the building wall or related architectural feature. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby 
certify approval of the first reading of Proposed Ordinance No. 2023-505 by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board 
of Trustees assembled at a regular meeting held on August 15, 2023. The second reading is scheduled to be heard 
on September 19, 2023.  

                                                                                                       _______________________________ 

                                                    Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk                                                                                                                   
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 







 

RESOLUTION 2023-11 
 

APPLICATION FOR LAYING OUT AND DESIGNATING A DRAINAGE DISTRICT 
 

YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
 
 

SEAVER DRAIN 
 

At a regular board meeting of the Ypsilanti Charter Township Board, held in Washtenaw County, State 
of Michigan on the 15th day of August, 2023, 7:00p.m. 

 
PRESENT: Supervisor Stumbo, Clerk Jarrell Roe, Treasurer Eldridge and Trustees Hunter, Newman, 
Peterson and Swanson  

 
 

ABSENT: None  
 
 

The following resolution was offered by Trustee Peterson and seconded by Treasurer Eldridge. 
 

WHEREAS, the Township requests the laying out and designating of a county drain drainage 
district, located in Washtenaw County, pursuant to the Chapter 3 of Public Act 40 of 1956, as amended; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township has determined that the laying out and designating of the proposed 

drainage district is necessary for the public health in the Township; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Township will be liable for an assessment at large against it for a percentage of 
the cost of the proposed drain. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Township Board does authorize the filing 

of an application with the Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner for the laying out and 
designating of a drainage district. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Supervisor is authorized to execute the application 

for the laying out and designating of a drainage district. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk shall forward to the Washtenaw County Water 
Resources Commissioner a copy of this Resolution for the application for laying out and designating a 
drainage district. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan 
hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2023-11 approved by the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on August 15, 2023. 

 
 
 
 

 
                       Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk                                                                   

                                          Charter Township of Ypsilanti  

 



































August 4, 2023 

Mr. John Hines, CPRP 

Page 4 of 5 

Reference: Community Center Golf Course and Shop Bathroom Renovations Project 

incorporating design changes during the construction phase as well as any Contractor provided 

markups is anticipated to be provided. 

This phase is estimated to be 12 weeks. 

UNDERSTANDINGS & ASSUMPTIONS 

This proposal was developed under the following understandings and assumptions: 

• Existing drawings to be provided.
• Hazardous material testing and any necessary abatement will be provided by owner.
• Excludes any permit fees, geotechnical services or any work not listed above.
• Conceptual Total Project costs are unknown.
• Assumes that existing mechanical, pluming and electrical infrastructure is adequate to support

the anticipated scope.
• Fire Protection scope in not anticipated.
• Electrical scope is not anticipated in the Golf Course Restrooms.

SCHEDULE 

We propose to complete the design, engineering, and permit application package per the weeks noted 
above after authorization. Authorization will be required prior to beginning each phase. 

BUDGET 

We recommend establishing for the work listed above: 

Phase 11/111: Lump Sum of $22,200.00. 

Phase IV: Hourly Not to Exceed estimated at 7,400.00 • Approximately 42 hours. 

Staniec is proposing that the Township utilized Stantec services as needed. This list provided 
above is a recommendation but is not a required or exhaustive list. 

Phase V: Hourly Not to Exceed estimated at $28,900.00 - Approximately 158 hours. 

Stantec is proposing that the Township utilized Stantec services as needed. This list provided 
above is a recommendation but is not a required or exhaustive list. 

If the above proposal meets your approval, please sign this proposal letter and return a copy to our office. 
All work will be completed under the existing General Services Agreement between Ypsilanti Charter 
Township and Stantec. We sincerely appreciate the opportunity to continue to work with the Township and 
look forward to assisting you with these important improvements. If you should have any questions, please 

feel free to contact us. 

Design with con1munify in mind 





CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Supervisor Brenda Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 7:06pm in 
the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, 
Ypsilanti Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of 
silent prayer. 

Members Present:     Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Heather Jarrell Roe and 
Treasurer Stan Eldridge 
 Trustees: Ryan Hunter, John Newman II and Debbie Swanson 

Members Absent:       Gloria Peterson 

Legal Counsel: Wm. Douglas Winters 

PLEASE SEE ATTACHED VERBATIM MINUTES FOR DETAILS 

1. PUBLIC HEARING FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LEVY- RESOLUTION 2023-14

The public hearing was opened at 7:04pm and closed at 7:04pm. 

MOTION MADE BY ROE, SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 
2023-14. 

MOTION CARRIED 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Five public comments were given. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

A. MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 15, 2023 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING
MINUTES WERE TABLED

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS
C. TREASURERS REPORT

MOTION MADE BY ROE, SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE TO TABLE THE AUGUST 15, 2023 
WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

MOTION MADE BY ROE, SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE TO APPROVE STATEMENTS AND 
CHECKS AND THE TREASURERS REPORT. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

OLD BUSINESS 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 15, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 

1. 2nd READING OF RESOLUTION 2023-12 PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2023-505, 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLES 4, 5, 11, 13 AND 15 OF THE 
YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE. 

 
MOTION MADE BY ROE SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE TO APPROVE THE 2ND 
READING OF RESOLUTION 2023-12 PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2023-505, AN 
ORDIANCE TO AMEND ARTICLES 4, 5, 11, 13 AND 15 OF THE YPSILANTI 
TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: HUNTER- YES, ELDRIDGE- YES, STUMBO-YES, ROE- YES, 
NEWMAN- YES, SWANSON- YES 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. RESOLUTION 2023-13, RESOLUTION FOR TEMPORARY ROAD CLOSURE FOR 

THE CALVARY BAPTIST CHURCH FALL FESTIVAL 
 

MOTION TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2023-13 MADE BY ROE, SUPPORTED BY 
SWANSON.  
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
2. REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE BENEFIT AND COMPENSATION PACKAGE FOR 

NEW FIRE CHIEF STEVE DENSMORE 
 

MOTION TO APPROVE BENEFIT AND COMPENSATION PACKAGE FOR NEW FIRE 
CHIEF STEVEN DENSMORE MADE BY ELDRIDGE, SUPPORTED BY ROE. 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
3. REQUEST TO MOVE THE COMMUNITY RESOURCE COORDINATOR FROM A 

PILOT POSITION TO A REGULAR NON-UNION FULL TIME POSITION WITH AN 
ANNUAL SALARY OF $50,000.00 TO POST THE POSITION 

 
MOTION TO SUPPORT THE REUQEST MADE BY SWANSON AND SUPPORTED BY 
HUNTER. 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
4. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE LEAVE TIME POLICY ADDRESSING PTO ACCRUAL 

FOR NON UNION EMPLIYEES HIRED AFTER JANUARY 1, 2009 
 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE PROPOSED POLICY MADE BY ELDRIDGE AND 
SUPPORTED BY SWANSON 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 15, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 3 

5. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE LOCAL BROWNFIELD REVOLVING FUND GRANT
AGREEMENT FOR ENVIORNMENTAL TESTING ASSOCIATED WITH THE
DEMOLITION OF THE GAULT VILLAGE SHOPPING CENTER

MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ELDRIDGE AND SUPPORTED BY ROE. 

MOTION CARRIED 

6. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE ZONING PERMIT FOR THE INSTALLATION OF A
GARDEN FENCE FOR THE NEW WEST WILLOW NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION
GARDEN

MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ROE AND SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE. 

MOTION CARRIED 

7. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE QUOTE FROM BIOCARE FOR FIRE DEPARTMENT
PHYSICALS IN THE AMOUNT OF $20,826.20 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM  #206-336-
719-005

MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ROE AND SUPPORTED BY SWANSON. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

8. REQUEST TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDER #1 WITH OHM ADVISORS FOR PAVING
AT FIRE STATION #3 LOCATED AT 20 S. HEWITT RD. IN THE AMOUNT OF
$11,509.50 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #217-901-976-005

MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ROE AND SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

9. REQUEST TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDER #1 WITH PRECISION CUTTING FOR
SIDEWALK SHAVING IN THE AMOUNT OF $27,396.66 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM
#101-446-982-006

MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ROE AND SUPPORTED BY HUNTER. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

10. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH OHM ADVISORS TO PROVIDE
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR SPECIES RELOCATION FOR THE YPSILANTI
TOWNSHIP ARPA CIVIC CENTER POND RENOVATION IN THE AMOUNT OF
$9,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #282-901-981-030

MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ROE AND SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE. 

MOTION CARRIED. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 15, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 
 
11. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH STANTEC CONSULTING FOR 
EMERGENCY SURVEY AND CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE YPSILANTI 
TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY CENTER BATHROOM RENOVATION 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ROE AND SUPPORTED BY HUNTER. 
 
MOTION CARRIED.  
 
12. REQUEST TO CONFIRM AUTHORIZATION FOR CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO 
ABATE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AT 867 DEBBY CT. BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-729- 
801-023 
 
13. REQUEST TO CONFIRM AUTHORIZATION FOR CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO 
ABATE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AT 1039 PARKWOOD AVE. BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#101-729-801-023 
 
14. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO ABATE A 
PUBLIC  NUISANCE AT 3110 SOUTHLAWN ST. BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-729-
801-023 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE AGENDA ITEMS 12, 13 AND 14 AS OUTLINED MADE BY ROE, 
SUPPORTED BY NEWMAN. 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
15. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT FOR ELECTION SERVICES WITH  
WASHTENAW COUNTY 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ROE AND SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE.  
MOTION TO TABLE MADE BY HUNTER AND ELDRDIGE.  
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
16. REQUEST TO CANCEL THE NOVEMBER 7, 2023 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR  
MEETING DUE TO A SPECIAL ELECTION 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ROE, SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE. 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
17. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2023 
AT APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM TO ESTABLISH A SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FOR  
STREETLIGHTS FOR WOODLAWN 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ROE, SUPPORTED BY SWANSON. 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 15, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 5 
 
 
18. REQUEST TO PURCHASE FURNITURE FOR THE COMMUNITY NETWORK 
CENTER AT 1405 HOLMES RD. IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,595.78 BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #266-303-975-135 
 
MOTION TO SUPPORT MADE BY ROE, SUPPORTED BY SWANSON. 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
19. BUDGET AMENDMENT #12 
 
MOTION TO SUPPORT MADE BY ROE, SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE. 
 
MOTION CARRIED.  
 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 
1. REQUEST TO AWARD THE LOW BID FOR THE FENCE PROJECT AT FIRE STATION  
#3 LOCATED AT 20 S. HEWITT IN THE AMOUNT OF $21,300.00 AND APPROVE A  
CHANGE ORDER FOR $500.00 FOR A TOTAL OF $21,800.00 BUDGETED IN LINE  
ITEM #217-901-976-005 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ROE, SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE.  
 
MOTION CARRIED.  
 
2. REQUEST TO SEEK PROPOSALS FOR A MUNICIPAL POLICE FORCE FEASIBILITY  
STUDY 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY HUNTER, SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE. 
FRIENDLY AMENDMENT REQUESTED FOR VERBATIM MINUTES FOR THIS SECTION 
OF THE MEETING. 
 
MOTION CARRIED.  
 
3. REQUEST TO SEEK SEALED BIDS FOR THE RENOVATION OF THE COMMUNITY  
CENTER 200 HALLWAY AND COMMUNITY CENTER BATHROOMS 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE BY ROE, SUPPORTED BY ELDRTIDGE.  
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
1.REQUEST TO APPROVE GOVHR TO ASSIST THE HUMAN RESOURCE 
DEPARTMENT IN COMPLETING A SALARY/BENEFIT STUDY FOR THE TPOAM 
BARGAGING UNION AS OUTLINED IN THE LETTER OF AGREEMENT APPROVED AS 
A PART OF THE NEGOTIATED CONTRACT IN 2022.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 15, 2023 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 6 
 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MADE BY ROE, SUPPORTED BY ELDRIDGE. 
 
A motion to adjourn was made by Clerk Jarrell Roe and seconded by Treasurer 
Eldridge. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:56pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



September 19, 2023 Regular Meeting 
Minutes Transcript 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
We'd like to call the regular meeting to order. stand if you're able for the Pledge of Allegiance 
and a moment of silent prayer. Please remain standing for a moment of time. The first item on 
the agenda is a public hearing. This is for a special assessment Levy. I'm going to declare the 
public hearing open at 7:04pm. Are there any residents that have any comments on the special 
assessment? Levy that we do every year and the different districts for street lighting and 
cameras? Were required by law to do this? Hearing no comments, I will close the public hearing 
or grow. 
 

Heather Roe   
I have resolution 2023 Dash 14 This special assessment Levy. Whereas the charter township of 
Ypsilanti board of trustees on September 19 2023, held a public hearing on the proposed 
special assessment roll prepared by the Deputy assessor a copy of which is on file at the clerk's 
office in advertising the same in the newspaper of record in the township. And whereas on 
September 19 2023. The Ypsilanti township board heard comments on said proposal special 
assessment role prepared by the Deputy assessor now therefore, it be resolved that the 
proposed special assessment roll prepared by the Deputy assessor for the charter township of 
Ypsilanti be adopted and the amount set forth on the special assessment role will be levied on 
the 2023 winner tax roll. So move through resolution support. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
We have a motion support or discussion. Hearing none all in favor, aye. Opposed, motion 
carries. Next item is public comments. Each person can speak for three minutes and you can 
also speak on each agenda item. Are there any public comments? 

 

 

My name is Arlo Kaiser, and I'm township resident and I am concerned about the township 
people's safety from our county, Waukegan long Grove Road by the eye, it's one of the 
churches anyway, on the walking side where the houses in that are there along the curb, there 
was a whole one foot wide by approximately one foot deep. So I didn't know who to call, I came 
to the township they called the county. Okay, so I left here went home started walking the path. 
And along comes somebody in a truck from the county, the guy sees the hole, blah, blah, blah. 
But never put a cone or anything to indicate that hole, and about maybe 25 feet, I'm guessing 
there's a bus stop in front of the church. So people go across Grove Road. And when I came 
this evening, to the township Hall, there still was no cone there. And when I talked to him, he 
said there was a question of who was responsible for it. Who cares who's responsible for it, 
somebody should be notified to put a cone there for the safety of everyone. Whether it's his job, 



isn't he for the safety of the community, whether it's his job or not if he's standing there, and I 
am concerned about this. And like I said, when I came this evening, there was still nothing over 
that whole, okay. And kids run across the Grove Road net type of thing, so who knows who 
could get hurt? So who's gonna be responsible for that? 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
Thank you as Kaiser will send an email to the road commission. Or we'll take a comb and put it 
over there. But we need to find out what's causing the hole. That's my biggest 
 

 

question whether it was a hole with like a sinkhole or something. Oh, no, but it's a hole that 
somebody can 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
go. Okay. 
 

 

Hi, Monique Russell. Am 2150 Chevrolet, I was just caught coming up to the mic quickly to 
support again, the request to seek proposals for municipal police force feasibility study. As I 
spoke about on previous occasions, I am very pleased that the township is at least looking at 
their options. I think that is something that any municipality that is looking to save money for 
taxpayers and also provide robust services as a relates to law enforcement should at least 
pursue. And I'm very happy to see the township his persona in a study I look forward to after the 
study is complete. Hopefully, that will be at a meeting where the public can also attend that 
meeting and ask questions. And yeah, that's pretty much all I have to say. So thank you very 
much. Thank 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
you. Any other public comment? 

 

 

All right, Martin Spalding. 1216, South Harris. First off, we've had a number of power outages 
five this year already, for last year, five, the year before that. We've had Transformers on poles 
go down the service drive. Where they have all that buildup of bushes and hedges and trees. 
And I asked her worker one day why working in in these trees? Aren't they supposed to be cut 
back? And he didn't he he just said, Well, we just work. They can hardly get in there to do any 
work. Now down Harris, we've got vines growing up over the lines, two houses down from 1216, 
where I live, and there's even the third house down or four houses down from where I live. 
There's a tree pushing, you could see it pushing one of the lines right up in the air. So we've had 
a transformer blow. And we were without service on Harris for five days. Because it wasn't it 
wasn't bad enough. But transformer blew. And that's just we have inadequate DTE servicing our 
area, you know, preventive maintenance on the trees and that kind of stuff. So when we get it. I 
mean, the average for us to be out out of power is three to four, maybe five days. So we always 



we lose our gross our groceries in our refrigerators, we never get reimbursed for that. So that's 
just one item and then the waste management item where the recyclables they come along with 
the truck. And I was out there. And then Karen winters was out there in the guy. We were 
getting our bins, our regular bins and then the recycled truck came. Well I noticed down the 
street, all this stuff, waste on the ground while he dumps dump some automatically. And then I 
have to go pick up plastic papers, five items, and then go next door Karen Scott her bin and 
she's looking in the only time the guy got out of his truck is he couldn't reach the bin. And he 
gets out of the truck. And he Karen picks up this paper and weighs in front of him. He doesn't 
care. He dumps he he moves the bin over so he can dump it and then that pipe that one papers 
left. So I followed him all the way down Harris because he goes down to here. So I mean, 
there's stuff, all this stuff on the streets, it gets in our yards. But waste management. They don't 
care. They should pick man. In fact, I even knocked on the guy's truck and said, Look at this. 
Are you going to do anything about this? He said no. I said, That's okay. I'll report I've called and 
emailed waste management. And I've called and emailed DTE about these issues, and we're 
not getting any service. So when our power goes out, we get very upset because on our area, 
that portion of Harris, we always go down. I mean it's not it's not this summer, it's not the 
apartment so they'll still they'll have power sometime sometime that houses not just the street 
directly behind As I forget the name of it, but the houses that backup to us, if we go out power, 
they'll go without power, but everybody else around us, they may have power. And so those are 
just a few of the items that I have. But I'll let somebody else come up here. We're not getting, we 
need you to step up and get these people to take care of these issues, because we can't do it 
without your help. I mean, if we complain, I mean, we got it's a matter of record that we have. 
But we get, we get no help. I never got a call or email back from waste management. I never got 
anything back from DTE. So they don't care. And but we have to level up. Thank you. Thank 
you. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Any other public comment? We do have areas that have frequent outages and we've asked for 
them to be analyzed. I know Wes Willow has them, this time is a little bit better. But that area 
always get to one out. On the south side always goes out. So they need to check the reliability 
of that line. By clearing it would absolutely help. So we'll make sure that we report that. And we 
have a meeting coming up with waste management because you're not the only one that's had 
issues. So we do have a meeting as far as quality of service. And we will make sure we follow 
up on that. 
 

 

I could add that the issue you're probably talking about is our yard waste. We've had we've had 
weeks where it's never picked up at all I hear is out there, 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
and then we'll add yard waste to the 

 

 



yard waste is terrible. I mean, okay, sometimes it's not picked up. Of course, your courts 
probably told you because I've called about that many times. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
And when they call the township, we absolutely report it to waste management to have them to 
go back out, but it's more frequent than it should be. I agree. Any other public comment? 
Hearing none, we'll move on to the consent agenda. We discussing the work session tabling the 
minutes of the August 15 work session and regular meeting. Oh, I'm sorry. Um, clerk row just 
reminded me under other business, we wanted to add a agenda item for the request to approve 
from HR to do a salary and benefits study for the TPO and bargaining union. So if it's okay with 
everyone to add that under other business. So the minutes of the meeting, 
 

Heather Roe   
motion to table the minutes support, 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
motion row. Support Eldridge. All in favor, aye. Opposed motion carries statements and checks 
and Treasurer's Report. 
 

Heather Roe   
So move. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Motion row support Eldridge. Questions or comments? Hearing none, all in favor, aye. 
Opposed? Motion carries. Attorney's Report. Mr. Winters. 
 

Jason Iacoangeli   
Madam Chair, I did receive a letter today from Jason Lafayette, the SME project consultant in 
regards to God village. East Eastern building has been his words totally raised and I went by 
there and I think it's, it's accurate. There's a lot of recyclables and other materials that are going 
to be need to be hauled away. But during this interim time period, they have completed all of the 
asbestos abatement at building number two. And right now all of the air quality reports are 
coming in a well below the standards that have been set by SME. So the air quality is meeting 
all their project criteria pursuant to the EPA and other indices that are established by the state of 
Michigan and by the federal government. According to Jason Lafayette, he expects the second 
building to be totally demolished by October the sixth. So I think by next our first board meeting 
in October, you'll see a different landscape out there than what we've been used to seeing. And 
again, this is just obviously the beginning of what you know, is a long term. It's been a long time 
coming in regards to the golf village. It's somewhat bittersweet for many people to watch what's 
happened over the air. It was a strong vibrant shopping center and serve the area very well. 
They became neglected through ownership and this is the end result of what people sometimes 
refer to as demolition by neglect. In any event, though, we'll move forward with getting cleaned 
up and going into court at the right time to seek in money judgment to place on the property to 



ensure the township has its legal interests protected, but again, the target date is October the 
sixth to have the both buildings demolished. And again, everything is going well from an air 
quality standpoint and asbestos abatement has been taken care of in in that second building as 
well. It's already this already done. I know there's long agenda. This is the second night and it 
gives me guards to an upcoming evidentiary hearing this coming Friday involving the litigation 
that was authorized by the township against Lilly investments, the owner of 3011 East Michigan 
Avenue in men like us, I won't go into detail there is a scheduled evidentiary hearing. township 
attorney attorneys this McLean and Paul Barnett, have been working very long hours in 
conjunction with the sheriff's department, I think we may have as many as I think maybe 16 
Different subpoenas right now for all the deputies who've been involved in this. They're 
scheduled to testify if need be throughout the day, this coming Friday, starting at nine o'clock. 
We've also subpoenaed other third parties. Our fire department has been involved in some 
reports that some of us are not aware that of the issues they had encountered. And so on 
Friday, we're going to go forward that hearing as authorized by the township board, on a on a 
separate issue that does not involve the township, but it's this one that I want to at least put 
before you this evening, because because there has been a lot of misinformation in regards to 
this issue. In regards to the tenant, men like us, there's a separate civil proceeding that was 
initiated by the property owner, Lilly investments against that in that the tenant doesn't involve 
us, because that's not our lawsuit. But yeah, now several lawsuit is pending. In the 14 V District 
Court, the landlord is seeking to possession of the property from the tenant due to non payment 
of $84,000 in back rent. And I'm saying that at this board meeting publicly, only because at the 
last meeting, there was inferences and statements made. The township was trying to dry this 
individual out of a business that he had owned and invested, etc. And whatever happens 
between the landlord and the tenant is between the landlord and the tenant. But my point is right 
now is that that is something that at least right now was has led to some of the misinformation 
that has come back around for our office to deal with as well as the township board. But that is 
something that will happen after our hearing on Friday. And again, my thanks to the staff at the 
Washington County Sheriff's Department. I know that Shane has been in contact with him, 
Shane Peltier, with Danny and Paul and the body cam body cameras, everything that we've 
needed to go forward with our Friday the technology, it's all been arranged with Judge Connors 
courtroom. And so we will let the court decide whether or not what we've gathered for the last 
two years constitutes a public nuisance, and we believe that it will so keep the board informed 
as to the outcome of the hearing. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Thank you. Questions or come? Hearing none, we have under old business a second reading of 
resolution 2023 12 prose ordinance 2023 505. It's an ordinance to amend articles four 511 13 
and 15 of the Ypsilanti township zoning ordinance. First Reading was held at the August 15 
regular meeting or grow. I have resolution 

 

Heather Roe   
2023 Dash 12 A resolution amending the Ypsilanti township zoning ordinance in reference to 
proposed ordinance 2023 Dash 505 whereas the township planning department staff completed 



a detailed review of the township zoning code and whereas at its regularly scheduled Planning 
Commission meeting held July 25 2023, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and 
whereas the Planning Commission for Ypsilanti township recommended approval of the zoning 
ordinance proposed zoning amendments to township zoning code to the township Board of 
Trustees at its regular meeting of July 25 2023. Which changes can be summarized as follows 
and they are attached And now therefore, it be resolved that the charter township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees does hereby approve ordinance number 2023 Dash 505 as attached by 
amending articles of township zoning ordinance, as noted, replacing it with proposed ordinance 
2023 Dash 505. I would so move the second reading. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
We have a motion and support discussion Jason's here to answer any questions that we may 
have. This was approved by the Planning Commission in a public hearing we had first reading 
at our last board meeting and this will be the adoption if approved. 
 

Jason Iacoangeli   
That's correct. And even before that the planning commission formally set the public hearing for 
that meeting date, which is sort of like an extra layer of due diligence on their behalf of formally 
setting a public hearing date at the meeting prior to the actual public meeting taking place in 
order to even give more ample time for comments. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Comments, we discussed this at length in the work session, and I agreed that we would send a 
letter to the home's 

 

Jason Iacoangeli   
homeowners within the IC district 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
zoning this would affect in a good way we think and just explain it to them so they're aware of 
what the options are for the future and what they can still maintain their zoning, of course as a 
residential district for now and pass it on to generations if they choose to. That's right. 
 

Jason Iacoangeli   
And we'll we'll provide them with that letter. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
And we have to do a roll call vote because it's ordinance Hunter. Eldridge. Yes. STEM move up 
Jess roe. Yes. Newman. Yes, Watson? Yes, motion carries. 
 

Jason Iacoangeli   
Thank you very much. 
 



Brenda Stumbo   
Under new business, we have resolution 2023 13 A resolution for temporary road closure for the 
Calvary Baptist Church festival clerk row 

 

Heather Roe   
I have resolution 2023 Dash 13 A resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of rosewood 
street between Davis Street and the courtroom ecourse road for the Calvary Baptist Church Fall 
Festival from 11 to six on October 14 2023. Whereas the charter township of Ypsilanti Board of 
Trustees has approved the temporary road closure of Ypsilanti township roads as indicated 
above, and whereas the driveways banners and parades act 200 of 1969 requires the township 
to authorize an official designated by the resolution to make such a request from the Royal 
Commission. Now therefore, it be resolved that the Ypsilanti town chip board of trustees 
designates and agrees that Fred Carruthers Calvary Baptist Church facilities manager be 
authorized official designee in this instance when the application is made to the Washington 
County Road commission, this temporary road closures so move the resolution. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
We have a motion support discussion. Is this open to the public? Yeah, 
 

Heather Roe   
Madam Chair. This is an event open to the public. I think this is their third, maybe third year 
doing it. And this just again, just for to refresh the board allows them to go to the road 
commission for request to close the road. I know that Fred has worked with the Washington 
County Sheriff's Department already to get in place any requirements that they may need and I 
heard it was well attended and fun last year. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Questions or comments? Hearing none all in favor? Opposed. Motion carried. Number two is 
the request approval of the benefit and compensation package for our new Fire Chief Steve 
Densmore. So support motion Eldridge support row Steve is here and. 
 

Karen Wallin   
Good evening. Um, as we discussed in the work session, we have finalized our fire chief hiring 
process. And there is a compensation package that Mr. Densmore has signed that I'm bringing 
to the board for approval tonight with an anticipation start date of next Monday. So we're very 
excited to have him and look looking forward to too many years. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Questions or comments? The new fire chief is here if approved, and we welcome you and look 
forward to moving the fire department forward. And I know Steve longeron, who's been the 
acting fire chief interim fire chief, we really appreciate your and everything you've done as well. 
So let's go team, right. We have a motion support All in favor, opposed. Motion carries Welcome 
on board. Number three's request to move the Community Resource Coordinator from a pilot 



position to a regular non union full time position with an annual salary of 50,000. And to post 
that position, sorry, motion Swanson support Hunter discussion. We talked about in the work 
session, this was a pilot position, the main vision of the position was to connect people and 
businesses to resources. And it has really proven to be very beneficial to a lot of, of our 
residents. And we look forward to having this as a permanent position within the township that 
the person who was in the pilot position has been working to create a resource center on the 
Holmes road, it was a former police station and then they moved the police station to Huron 
street here. And the vision is to have a community connection center. So residents will be able 
to go there working with other nonprofits and agencies in order to help everyone thrive in the 
townships. 
 

Karen Wallin   
I would just like to publicly thank Laurie for the last year and all the work that she's done on 
behalf of the township employees as well. She's done some training for us and just from HR, I 
want her to know that we appreciate that. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Thank you. We have a motion support All in favor, aye. Opposed motion carries. Number four is 
request to approve the lead time policy addressing PTO accrual for non union employees hired 
after January 1 2009. Motion Eldridge I'm sorry. Support Swanson. 
 

Karen Wallin   
Again, as I mentioned in the work session, this just sets a accrual structure that has not been 
set for our non union employees for a number of years, and just allows them to know when they 
will get increases and what they will be. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Questions or comments? Hearing none all in favor, aye. Opposed? Motion carries. Number five 
is we request to approve the local brownfield revolving fund grant agreement for environmental 
testing associated with the demolition of the golf village shopping center. Motion Eldridge 
support row. Questions or comments on this? The $10,000 grant for the demolition and then 
testing. 
 

Jason Iacoangeli   
Good evening township board Jason echo Anjali the townships planning director. This was a 
grant that was given by the downriver brownfields consortium which Washtenaw County's 
brownfield authority is a member of the original grant was for $20,000 and it was adjusted to 
allow 10,000 of those dollars to be granted back to the township for the reimbursement of cost 
overruns for the hazardous materials assessment that was conducted as a part of the 
environmental due diligence for the Gulf village, demolition project. And so these, the $10,000 
has already been has already been paid to SME as a part of the contract for completing that 
hazardous material assessment in this by Exeter executing this agreement it would make the 
township eligible to recoup the $10,000 from the Washtenaw brownfield authority. 



 

Brenda Stumbo   
Thank you questions or comments? Hearing none all in favor? Opposed? Motion carries. Thank 
you Jason. Number six request to approve the zoning permit for the installation of a garden 
fence for the New West Willow neighborhood association garden. So move motion rose support 
Swanson. This is what the understanding they'll get their permit tomorrow so they could proceed 
as soon as possible. Questions or comments? All in favor, aye. Opposed? Motion carries. 
Number seven is request to approve the quote from BioCare for the fire department physicals in 
the amount of $20,000 826, which is budget in line item 206336719005. Motion rose support 
Swanson, and I'm happy to see that there's more testing that's going to happen around cancer 
for firefighters and this is an annual testing three times a year you know, know that. Sure, go 
ahead. Interim Chief. Okay. 
 

Steven Densmore   
Sorry. Good evening board, fire marshal Steve Waldron. So this is in reference to BioCare, 
which is a mobile, physical, mobile doctor's office. Basically, they provide all kinds of cancer 
screenings that are prevalent firefighters, and ultrasounds as well as blood tests and all that 
kind of stuff. So appreciate it. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Questions or comments? Hearing none, all in favor? Opposed. Motion carried. The next item on 
the agenda is a request to approve the change order with only Tim advisors for paving at fire 
station. I think it's what dome? That correct it is. 
 

Steven Densmore   
Oh, hmm. So Matt parks is here to speak on that with us. Hmm, he's got a really good handle on 
what that's all about. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Thank you, Chief. 
 

 

Yeah, and good evening, everybody. That changers with Dawn construction, Oh, hmm. oversaw 
the construction out there. Basically, the job is complete, don't completed their punch list items. 
The only outstanding item is the closeout of the Washington County Road commission permit. 
They did a couple of extra things due to the signal there with a loop. And we think that all the 
invoices are collected, but I need to follow up one more time with them. This change order is 
essentially an $11,000 increase. But it's within the budget that was approved by the Board 
initially. Essentially, what it boils down to is there's three extra bollards that were up against gas 
meters that the Chief Chief Copeland at the time wanted removed and replaced as to freshen 
them up. And then we did some modifications around the front door entrance, there's some 
sidewalk and some roof drains that came down and a garden. The chief had their employees, 
the fire firefighter employees move the garden, and we filled in a grass area with additional 



parking and got all that water away from the building. And tighten and extra, a little bit of trench 
drain. So you can see in there we had a little bit of extra turf establishment, some extra edge 
drain, and then the bollards to remove and reset new ones. There was some deductions, items 
that we didn't use in the contract about $2,600 worth. So the net change in that total contract 
was about 11,000. Well, like I said, well within the $202,000 budget that was approved by the 
board. In the only like I said the only thing that I could see us having to come back for before we 
close out this contract is if the road Commission's billings exceed the allowance that was set, we 
found a deteriorated traffic signal loop under the pavement that nobody knew that was their 
royal commission jumped out there and actually installed a new one with dones assistance. 
Don't did that work without charging anything. And then the Royal Commission said they would 
just tack that on to any inspection fees, but I'm not sure if they're actually going to do that. Or if if 
that is all handled. So that's really the only remaining item and we're going to close out this job 
pending approval of this change order and then finalizing paperwork with Don 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
Thank you questions or comment? 

 

Heather Roe   
Madam Chair, yes, Matt? Apologies. It's on your letterhead. So I assume that that was how the 
wording should be so sorry for any 

 

 

oh no big deal. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
We have a motion support all in favor Aye. Opposed motion carries. You are gonna get the 
motion support motion row. Support Eldridge. All in favor Aye. Opposed. Motion carries. 
Number nine is request to approve change order number one with precision cutting for sidewalk 
shaving in the amount of 27,003 $196.66 motion row support Hunter. 
 

John Hines   
Good evening John Hines municipal services director. Yes, this is a change order requested for 
precision concrete cutting to continue the sidewalk shaving efforts in the township for the 
amount of $27,396.66. This amount was included in the proposal from Precision concrete 
cutting earlier this year to get the Wendell Holmes area roulette and Rue de Ville Boulevard. 
When they finished that job, they actually came in under their expected amount by just over this 
amount. So this would use the remaining funds that was approved by the board earlier this year 
to finish out this area starting in the West Willow neighborhood, it would focus on Tyler road. 
And then if approved tonight, I would meet with Ben Johnson from Precision concrete cutting, to 
localize some streets to to focus on that would be able to complete most of the streets instead 
of stopping halfway once they got to that total amount. And they would propose to do the work 
in November when their crew is back in the township. So give us ample time to send out 
literature to the streets that would be focused on 



 

Brenda Stumbo   
questions are none all in favor, aye. Opposed, motion carries. The next item is request to 
approve the agreement with OHS and fighters to provide professional services for the species 
relocation for the township, our Pacific Center pine renovation in the amount of $9,000. Motion 
row support Ryan. 
 

 

Hello again. Yeah, you should have in your packet a proposal we prepared. This is is basically 
what it sounds like just we have a team of psychologists at OPM that will go in set traps and 
then slowly with the assistance of the township, and we'll work with John pretty closely on this 
pump down the pan this fall prior to the winter or early early spring construction to capture some 
of the non invasives and then relocate them to a habitat within the township. So we actually did 
this before going back to the 80s when the pond was lined initially it was constructed in the 70s 
and then realigned in the in the mid 80s. And this same service was done. And when we 
surveyed the pond, it was full of wildlife. So goal is is to get in there. And really the key time to 
do is either fall or early spring and because we want to be under construction, this this winter in 
the cooler months. Now's the time to act. So 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
questions are coming. You get a permit from the state at all to do this. 
 

 

No, because it's a man made lined pond. So it's not a natural habitat. So 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
no, I mean for what's that? I was thinking about actually removing them? Oh, 
 

 

no, you don't have to. So most, and there's no endangered we did a quick assessment of to any 
species. There's nothing endangered if there was something in the pond that was an 
endangered species or something like that we'd have to involve the eagle or do something like 
that. But we're dealing with frogs, turtles, snappers, probably some fish. There's probably some 
goldfish and things that have gotten in there that aren't necessarily, you know, something that 
we would necessarily need to relocate, but it's really a lot of frogs and turtles. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
It's right out in front of the township building here. There is a lot of animals in there. Yep. 
Questions or comments? Hearing none, all in favor? Opposed. Motion carried. Thank you. 
Thank you. The next item is to approve the agreement with Stantec consulting for our 
emergency survey in civil engineering services for the township Community Center bathroom 
renovation. So move motion. Support. Sorry, support. Sorry, Mr. Newman. Questions or 
comments. 



 

John Hines   
Good evening, John Hines again. Yes, this was a request to approve Stantec consulting to 
provide urgent surveying and civil engineering services related to the community center 
bathroom renovation project. And this comes about after Stantec consulting worked with GTW 
pipes to Cam the sanitary lines underneath the building as relates to this project. In doing so the 
extensive damage under room 202 The senior coordinator office for storage lobby and 
racquetball court was worse than we anticipated. Due to this, the request was brought forward 
to be able to keep the timeline moving forward with this project, to see the feasibility of bringing 
all the inside sanitary lines outside for the majority of this renovation project, they're going to be 
some points as located on the map below that show that inside pipe work will still need to 
happen to get the path of least resistance to the rest of the piping. But the goal would be to 
bring the piping from in and around the building to the sanitary drain that's located on the 
backside of holes, nine, nine and 18 at the golf course. Yes, yeah, this is part of the bathroom 
renovation project. 
 

Jason Iacoangeli   
Question I hear is that does this have any impact on the going out for bids later on on the 
agenda? Because I know that it also involves a bathrooms? And 

 

John Hines   
it does? And the short answer is no. The reason why it was brought in such an urgent factor 
was to keep with the timeline of going to the board tonight to go out for bid and accepting the bid 
within 30 days. And I was gonna talk about it more at that point. But this will not affect it. 
Because we're going to have to tear the acceptance or not tear the acceptance but tear the 
project priority when we accept the bidder and have the pre construction meetings. I 
understand. If we if we did not approve, if we don't approve it tonight, and we actually have to 
go out to bid for the topo services, then that means that it's just going to add another one to two 
months on to the project. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Are you comfortable with proceeding? 

 

Jason Iacoangeli   
Other questions might be answered we get to that agenda item. But I know that it has to be 
integrated together what you're doing and one raise a question during the work session, but just 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
yeah, what year are the pipes and the community center? 40? 

 

John Hines   
Yeah, the original with the building, which I don't know, the exact year is open. But I imagined 
1940 was a no no, no, it was 40 or 42. Because the picture in the lobby is from 1942. 



 

Brenda Stumbo   
So we're gonna camera, do the surveys of the actual building and location of all the utilities so 
that we can have it going forward. If there any other changes? 

 

John Hines   
Yes. Yeah, exactly. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Question your comment? Hearing none all in favor, aye. Opposed? Motion carries. Thank you. 
We can do number 1213 and 14 together it's a request to confirm authorization for circuit court 
litigation to abate and public nuisance and 867 Derby Cor 1039 Parkwood Avenue and 3110 
South Lawn. 
 

Heather Roe   
So move 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
motion row. Support Eldridge. These are public nuisance cases that come up in our 
neighborhoods that are often vacant, or burned out, abandon. And these three houses we tried 
to get cooperation and when was a fire and the goal is to rebuild them if you can, if not 
demolition, and this will authorize to proceed to circuit court if necessary. Oftentimes, if we 
authorize Circuit Court owners will talk to the township but when we send letters have tried to 
get complaints. Sometimes that doesn't happen. But the goal is to have compliance and have 
the housing in good condition condition in our neighborhoods. Questions or comments? Hearing 
none, all in favor, aye. Opposed. Motion carries. The next item is request to approve the 
agreement for election services with Washtenaw County. So move support. Motion rose support 
Eldridge, 
 

Heather Roe   
Madam Chair. If I could just explain a little bit of this. Last year we are state voted on prop two. 
So for people in the audience, we're going to start having nine days early voting in our state. So 
that means nine days prior to the election, you'll be able to come in and it'll start on the second 
Saturday preceding you'll come in to presumably this room here will be able to receive your 
ballot and actually cast it into a tabulator will be staffed just like The normal voting precinct. And 
if we enter into this agreement with the county, the state's incentivizing more of like County, 
grouping of other municipalities for cost sharing and savings for us, we would be partnering as it 
is presumed now with Augusta Township. So Augusta township residents would actually be able 
to come here and vote in our building as well. With this agreement, the county will, you know, 
assign a rolling list of who's going to be supervising the sites by the day. And every municipality 
in our county is expected to enter into this sort of shared agreement, with the exception of 
myelin, which is a city that's divided among two different counties. And then the city of Ann 
Arbor just because they're their own. They have a lot of, they're prepared to handle their own 



situation. So if anyone has any questions, I'd be happy to answer as best I can. The County 
Deputy of elections was unable to be here tonight due to a scheduling conflict. 
 

Debbie Swanson   
QUESTION So. So Augusta and MC like, do you have to go like whatever municipality you're in, 
like for the site? Do you have to go there? Could somebody vote like in another site, like, like, 
you work somewhere, because it's the counties running at all? Or do you have to go like as it's 
outlined, 
 

Heather Roe   
so there's still a lot of like, things to work out. And a lot of that depends on the legislature 
actually having bills, many of them have been passed, but they haven't actually been signed 
yet. And originally, that was the idea that was like sort of given that anyone say the city, the 
anywhere it could come to an early voting site within our county and vote. But now it's looking to 
be more like these shared sites. So there's actually a tentative map. So Augusta would come 
here, and then the city and superior would share. But that then brings up the other logistics part 
of it, which is partly where some of the cost savings comes from, but we'll have to us we're 
thinking of a ballot on demand printing system from heart. But other states use it, I mentioned 
that it's great and whatever, but I haven't seen it yet. And so I'm really a little anxious to see that. 
But if you come here, and you're from Augusta, we should be able to print or provide you with a 
ballot, even though you're not normally an Ipsy township voter, the only other logistic sort of kink 
and what they haven't worked out in the in the laws that if a person from Augusta comes here, 
and it's a Saturday, and they're not registered to vote, I cannot register them to vote, which, you 
know, just doesn't make it easy for the resident. It's just a learning curve. So we'll get there. And 
we've spent so much time like telling people, you know, like, you live here, and you live here in 
this where you vote on. So now this is kind of just changing that up a lot. But hopefully, that was 
a long winded answer to your question. 
 

Debbie Swanson   
And then the other question I had was like, Who determined? Like the locations because I like 
the Augusta and Nipsey township one made sense to the freight house. One didn't make sense 
to me, because you've got Salem, you've got superior. And so your sales got to come farther, 
it's just seemed to me like if you're organizing it, you'd probably want a superior township 
location, because it's more central to where they're trying to send people. So that part just didn't 
make sense to me, but it doesn't impact our residents necessarily. But I would think you'd want 
to make it more centrally located for especially the group that's going to have to come the far 
this switch. Yeah, Salem, and that, 
 

Heather Roe   
I'm happy to provide that feedback as well. I know that our particular site, I thought it was 
important that we like, you know, we want our residents to be able to come here, and we're 
happy to help out neighboring communities. So I think as it was evolving, you know, we had 
preliminary meetings, everyone kind of talked about sites that they did have or didn't have. And 



a lot of it depends on for me at least is like what property Do we own and what can we secure 
every night? And so I'm not sure I know that in Andrew from the city sort of offered up like we 
could do the freight house and I'm not sure if that same you know, feedback was received from 
every location 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
under question, 
 

John Newman   
just thinking out loud. So does what did increase more errors with us, with Augusta in Ypsilanti 
township sharing the same place 

 

Heather Roe   
so it it should not be way that it'll work. Is it If, let's say you have a here's your voting location, 
and you and Debbie are both here to vote, you are an Augusta township resident and Debbie 
lives here, you would stand in line just as you would at your voting location, you would provide 
them, you know, with your ID or sign an affidavit, if you didn't have one, and they would look you 
up, I'm the correct ballot within this system, and then provide that to you. And then same when 
you know, the Ipsy township resident followed behind you, they would then look, look them up in 
the qualified voter file and issue their ballot. So in theory, there should be no, you know, any 
other hardships and especially if we're not having physical ballots, like stored and having to sort 
through them, it sort of takes out the human error 
 

John Newman   
a little bit. So there'll be no physical ballots, there'll be 

 

Heather Roe   
there will be printed physical ballots, but you won't have like, if you've ever seen my office 
during the election, I've got stacks of ballots with different precincts. And, and so if I'm looking 
you up and directly printing yours, like hot off the press, it'll take away that, you know, in the 
wrong one or anything, but good question. And then just to, I guess, provide a little bit more as 
each night, the tabulator will be suspended. It'll be secured, as they always are. So it'll be 
interesting. 
 

Debbie Swanson   
There are separate tabulator for each Augusta tabulator. And or does it just know, the single 
tabulator knows which, 
 

Heather Roe   
so the tabulators can be programmed to know, two different municipalities. But the tabulators 
that we use here, for early voting sites will be different than the ones like this will be a voting 
precinct on election day, and that tabulator will not be the same one that was used for early 
voting in this room. Just as a matter of being able to follow back the the count 



 

Debbie Swanson   
was provided. tabulator is the county providing the tabulator, 
 

Heather Roe   
the county is receiving funding to help purchase like those one time expenses if tabulators. And 
the county does know that we do have like a few extra tabulators. So they may approach us at 
some point to try and see if we're interested in selling them to them. But that's not anything that 
we've had formal discussion about yet. And the state is providing them with funding. So. Last 
thing is since we're on the topic, we do have a November 7 election, which is kind of at the next 
agenda item, but it is for Lincoln consolidated schools for their operating millage as well as a 
renewal of the rec millage. So if you do not live in Lincoln consolidated schools, do not be 
alarmed if you don't receive a ballot. There is no election for YCS. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
I have a couple just a couple questions. And I know how they're trying to get the county to come 
in to be here to help answer some of the questions. And I'm probably contingent upon our 
attorney approval as well. But what are the hours of operation? I don't see them. 
 

Heather Roe   
So they have to be a eight hours a day. And right now they're slotted for nine to five within the 
document that we've been provided. But we are expecting to do a late day, whether that's like 
11 to seven or, you know, one to eight. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
So it includes Saturday and Sunday. 
 

Heather Roe   
It starts the second Saturday priests, it will include two Saturdays and one Sunday. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
That's true. Yeah. So it does give that two hours of operation. I see the cost is estimated by the 
county at 145,000. And high and 102,000. Low. It's not real clear who pays for it. I know. But I 
haven't really had an opportunity Yeah, to discuss this because we didn't get to discuss it in the 
work session. But I think it's a great idea. Well, I think it's better than having your own to do it. 
 

Heather Roe   
One of the things supervisor some of that we that relates to the cost, and we discussed earlier 
was the county will actually, you know, with our help at first, they're going to need help building 
their own list of election workers because right now they don't employ normal election workers. 
And so they will eventually be staffing those and for the first and all of them they will also be 
paying for those election workers. Once that's finalized, I will I'm anticipating bringing something 
back to the board to see if our election pay A sort of is reflective of what theirs is. 



 

Brenda Stumbo   
An early voting will happen. In every election in every election, this procedure is in process will 
be in place. 
 

Heather Roe   
Yes, in the document, it talks a little bit about special elections, like say, Augustus having an 
election, and we're not, that'll just, you know, we'll work those situations out as they arise, 
whether they then move their early site to their building, or we still stay open and help partner 
with them. But each of those situations will sort of happen. We'll discuss them as needed. 
 

Debbie Swanson   
That means, like, if they're not normally responsible for election workers, that's kind of a big deal 
for them to take that on, when the municipalities probably have more experience in doing that 
than the county does. So i How is that gonna work out like, 
 

Heather Roe   
so I think that they'll be well equipped with it, but building their list at first is going to be, I think 
the biggest challenge. And every clerk who's been on any of these meetings is like, you know, 
more than happy to try and help establish that list for them or have, you know, your poll workers 
that are really exceptional and independently able to work. So that'll be a big learning curve. But 
honestly, the entire prop two is a huge undertaking for not only the county, but local clerks and 
the state as well. So we still have to make this election is our first time where there's an option 
to receive your ballot in the mail rather than your application. And so that gives us a whole new 
interface on the qualified voter file, that's, you know, it's just, it's a lot of moving parts, but we're 
gonna figure it out. It's gonna be great. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
As with all state law, sometimes they put things in place with no funding. Right now, it looks like 
the funding will be taken care of by the county, and they'll get reimbursement. But down the 
road, we need to somehow Yeah, cuz it's a mandate. They're doing a mandated service, and 
they're supposed to pay for it. I don't see the hours what pages 

 

Heather Roe   
and hold on, I just had it. Just while I'm looking for that, the hours really quick. And again, those 
aren't set in stone, because we are anticipating to have later an evening time. The state did also 
agree, or a prop two mandate. Let me just back up. The state is going to reimburse us for some 
posted costs. But it will only be for the returned cost, not for the sending out cost, which you can 
imagine we send out way more than we received back. From it, it's on page 340. But it just says 
nine to five. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   



Yeah, cuz this says that that has to be set before this is approved. Like this agreement says 
those things have to be said. And anyways, 
 

Ryan Hunter   
Madam Chair, may I ask a question? Yes, sir. So is the yes vote agreeing to participate with this 
process? Or is that process already been determined by what happened in the legislature? 

 

Heather Roe   
That this is this would be agreeing to partner with the county. Early voting has to happen no 
matter what, even if I don't like it, or, yeah, 
 

Ryan Hunter   
I'm just I'm hearing words that just make me feel uneasy. I'm hearing words like theoretically 
insured and ought. And I just feel like after the last election cycle, which was explosive and very 
contentious, I'm just very concerned about a process that does not seem to be locked down. 
 

Heather Roe   
Madam Chair, if I, Trustee Hunter, I completely agree with you. And if anyone who stand or 
Brenda walks by my office, like we need our legislature to swiftly, like continue to defining how 
these things are going to be done. We even have a legislative bill that would help us decrease 
the number of precincts that we have, but it wasn't effective immediately. It hasn't been signed 
by the governor. And so I cannot do any of it for 2024 which is such a just disappointment for 
taxpayers for our residents or election staff. But you know, that's that's the I know that's a really 
poor but you know, like, what are you going to do, but that's just how elections feel right? Right 
now, I think prop two was a huge, huge undertaking for our state. And I don't know that it was, 
every piece of it was the most well thought out. But we're working through it. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
And again, you asked them to come to the meeting, but they just couldn't accommodate it. And 
we have only until October to approve that. 
 

Heather Roe   
We have until October 6 to approve it. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
And our next meeting, the third? I didn't quite Yeah, the clerk's office. I'm the attorney. If he 
reviews it, he'll see some of the things that I see I'm sure it says prior to the submission of the 
early voting plan, the cloud county clerk and the clerk, so the participating municipality will do 
the following things and the number of tabulators and all those. So we're basically saying this is 
the proposed plan. And those are the proposed hours, right? Because we have to determine 
that prior to signing the agreement. But you've been 

 

Debbie Swanson   



able to give feedback on those processes or clerk is that accurate or not accurate? 

 

Heather Roe   
have been able to participate in small group rotation of prop two, and how that might work. 
Counties sort of steering the ship on this, I you know, following the legislature, and I do feel 
comfortable, like sharing my concerns with the county. And I think Edie is extremely receptive to 
feedback by any clerk. 
 

Debbie Swanson   
Because I feel similar to what trustee hunters expressed that it's so important for people to feel 
like the voting process is fair. And it's fall to and I'm not saying that anybody isn't. But I think a 
lot of change and prop two is probably passed because people wanted something. But the 
importance of people making like really feel like if we're changing everything, like, I don't know, 
the precinct thing probably is the worst thing. Because if we're changing this, and then you've 
got precincts decreasing, right, so I know that that probably would have been a nice thing. But it 
would have been another change that would have been hard for people. So however, you can 
express to them the importance of which probably all of us say I mean, I was thinking the same 
thing. You were thinking trustee Hunter, how important it is for people to feel like their vote is 
protected and accounts and that it's fair, there's a fair process. Because as I spoke earlier in the 
work session, like so much misinformation, so the more we can let people know what's 
happening and why. And be able to answer those questions, I think it would provide some relief, 
I think in some ways, that's just going to have to be something that heals because people don't 
feel that way. Or many people don't feel that way. So there's going to have to be some healing 
and part of the healing is accurate information. So 

 

Heather Roe   
Madam Chair, I do think it would be a great opportunity. And something that I would be 
interested in doing is having, like, you know, me, and someone from the County Clerk's 
department having like little, not in services, but like little sessions, township halls with our 
residents, just so they know, the differences, even the change from getting an absentee 
application to a ballot is a huge change. So we're happy to do that. And then just the, the 
opposite of this, like, if we didn't choose to do this, then it would still require us to do 90 early 
voting, just all of the costs would be encumbered on us. So that's sort of like the benefit of doing 
it is the cost savings and the shared participation, helping the like I see it as a benefit to Augusta 
township residents too. So 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
I'm not opposed to doing what's being proposed with the local clerk's. I think it's a good idea. I 
just don't think it's as crystal clear, as it shouldn't be. That's my biggest challenge. And I know it 
was yours choose you and I had questions about it. We have to do it. If we're going to do it this 
way. We have to do it. And it sounds like we have time. One more meeting. 
 

Heather Roe   



Yeah. And I certainly I want, you know, Attorney winners to provide feedback to for anything that 
he has, I know, think Michelle is who they would use. Yeah. Michelle Billard. And honestly, I 
kind of am curious if other I'm sure other people will have comments that for this so 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
for tabling it would not be and maybe our RNA now more detailed with the code wanting and 
having them come. 
 

Heather Roe   
Yeah. And I'd be open to that, of course, and if anyone has like specific things that they want 
answered, you know, either telling me now or sending them to me clarification so that I can. I 
can be really specific on the information that I'm bringing back and making sure it's accurate to 

 

Ryan Hunter   
Madam Chair. I'd like to make a motion to table if possible. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
motion to table ending, 
 

Ryan Hunter   
pending feedback and maybe response from the county per what Heather is saying to our next 
meeting. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Okay, there's a motion to table or support Eldridge. There's no discussion till the next meeting. 
So everything we can still finalize it all in favor, aye. Opposed. Motion carries. Number 16 is 
request to cancel the November 7 work session and regular meeting due to the special election 
of Lincoln. So move, motion rose support all dirt. All in favor, aye. Opposed? Motion carries. 
Number 17 is requests to set a public hearing date up Tuesday, October 17. At approximately 
7pm to establish a special assessment for streetlights for Woodlawn. So move motion row 
support Swanson discussion? Hearing none all in favor, aye. Aye. Opposed. Motion carries. 
Number 18 is request to purchase furniture for the community network Center at 1405. Homes 
road in the amount of $5,595.78. 
 

Heather Roe   
So move motion row. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Some support Swanson. Are there questions or comments? The flooring was installed today. 
Additional painting has occurred at the site and we're looking to do a opening hopefully and start 
coordinating everything before December. November's is the preferred time. All in favor, aye. 
Opposed. Motion carries. Number 19 is a budget amendment number 12. Or grow. 
 



Heather Roe   
I have a motion to amend the 2023 budget budget amendment number 12 moved to increase 
the general fund budget by $29,800 to $14,653,388, and approve the line item changes as 
outlined. And these are all for election or for funding our November election. As well as we need 
to purchase some envelopes and supplies for the February presidential primary that I believe is 
the 27th Please 27th of February, which isn't another change. It's a you know earlier than it 
normally is. So that's that's part of the reason and in the future. We can plan to 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
a promotion row. Support Eldridge for the budget amendment. Questions or comments. All in 
favor, aye. Opposed. Motion carries authorization of bids request to award the low bid for the 
fence project at the fire station on Hewitt road in the amount of $21,300 and approve the change 
order for $500 for a total of 21,800. Motion row support support Eldridge. Questions or 
comments associated fence was the lowest bidder on the project. I'm sorry. And it's a local 
company. All in favor, aye. Aye. Opposed? Motion carries. Number two on authorization bids we 
request to seek proposals for to seek to determine the actual costs for police services in 
Ypsilanti township as well as according to the agenda items seek proposals for a municipal 
police force feasibility study. So moved or motion Ryan? Support Eldridge. Would you like to 
speak to it? 

 

Stan Eldridge   
Yeah, I'll go before that those from ernet. This kind of speaks to what the attorney spoke to 
during his report earlier. Trustee Swanson spoke about earlier in the work session. We already 
heard some of the misinformation come back that this is simply to start a police department 
that's not correct. In any way, shape or form, little over a year ago, the supervisor, as did other 
leaders of communities throughout Washington County received a notice from the sheriff, 
indicating that costs were going to be increasing over the upcoming contract to levels that we 
just did not think were sustainable. Try as we might, for the last year or more, this police 
steering committee with Chairman Newman attempted to gain pricing from the Washtenaw 
County Sheriff. We did receive that pricing in in a format that didn't break it down as defined as 
many of us had sought. The supervisor and I attended another meeting, where the sheriff was 
making a presentation to leaders from throughout Washington County who contract for those 
services. Again, at that meeting, the question was asked, Can you break the cost down further 
instead of these blocks of dollars for certain areas. We were looking for specificity in those 
numbers because of what we saw, eventually in 2025, or 26. could lead to the costs for a single 
deputy in excess of $240,000. Some of those costs currently are paid back to communities 
through the county wide mental health millage. That millage expires in 2024. There is no 
guarantee that that millage will be brought forth for voters again county wide and even if it is 
there is no guarantee that that millage would then pass. County Commissioners have made it 
clear that they will no longer use general funds to assist those municipalities that contract for 
police services with them that would in some small way reduce those costs. We have tried 
multiple times to go through the sheriff's office, the sheriff in particular, when that didn't succeed. 
The supervisor, Chairman Newman and myself, Trustee Hunter have met with County 



Administrator dill in an effort to get those costs broken down. In large part because of the 
position he holds. But secondarily, he was a member of the sheriff's office when the police 
services unit pricing method was put together he was a part of putting those costs together. He 
tried to gain those specific cost breakdowns within each of those cost centers. He was unable 
as well to get that from Sheriff Clayton, who indicated that he had no intention of providing any 
further information or detail or specificity to not only Ypsilanti Township, but any of the contract 
communities within Washtenaw County. Because of all that, we have, when I say we, the 
members of this steering committee, trustees, Newman and Hunter myself, have begun to look 
at other municipalities throughout southeastern Michigan, to see if we are receiving comparable 
costs for services at this time. Those initial comparisons indicated that we are paying a higher 
cost per deputy than other like communities that were contracting for services in their counties. 
As such, we brought it back to other board members to see if we could go out in a request for a 
proposal to have a consulting firm or a consultant come in, look at what we are currently paying 
for police services, the services that are being rendered, and how that compares to other 
communities throughout southeastern Michigan and the region. If those costs come back and 
show that we're in line with those, I don't want to speak for the other committee members, but I 
think we would be done at that point. If they don't, then we have to look at can we sustain the 
current model? Or do we need to look at other alternatives? I think that's where people are 
thinking that we're going out and automatically starting a police department and that is not in 
any way shape, or form. What is taking place, irregardless of some of the comments that have 
gone throughout the community to unnecessarily upset people. This is simply a look doing our 
due diligence. Our first statutory responsibility as elected officials is to be fiduciaries of the 
taxpayer money. That's simply all this is, is Doing a look through to make sure that the cost we 
are paying is correct. For the services rendered, and what like communities are receiving for 
those services. We then reached out to earn at Consulting at our last meeting, before this board 
to ask for approval, to have them come in, help us put together this request for a proposal, use 
their expertise in conjunction with our clerk's office who does many of these RFPs. So that we 
can get it out to as many potential vendors that would like to look at this and see what they can 
provide to our community. Once that vendor is selected, they will complete the report, we will 
then share it not only with this board, but with this community as a whole. So that what we're 
talking about and looking at is transparent to all residents of this township. I guess I would didn't 
defer to Chairman Newman or trustee Hunter, if they want to add anything before Mr. Burnett 
takes over. 
 

John Newman   
You said everything perfectly. 
 

Ryan Hunter   
Yeah, I would agree. I just feel as though just to extend that the aim here is to make sure that 
we are getting the best value for our dollar. Simply put, so if we are then great. And if we are, 
then let's look at what the alternatives for that can be. So thank you. 
 

Stan Eldridge   



And I would just add one thing, I would be negligent. If I did not say this. This is not a reflection 
on the men and women that wear the uniform and go out every single day. Lieutenant Peltier is 
here, and he's heard me say this, this has nothing to do with their work on their end, it is simply 
making sure that we're paying the correct cost for those services, they do a tremendous job day 
in and day out. And we could not be more appreciative. So for anyone to suggest otherwise 
would just simply be erroneous and incorrect. Thank you. 
 

John Newman   
And I would just like to say we do have a fiduciary responsibility to our residents. And this is a 
way of checking all options to in the interest of the residents in the interests of our residents. 
 

Beth Ernat   
Okay, so I took all that feedback, I met with members of the committee, and reviewed a lot of 
the records from the past 20 years of service, to take a look at drafting this RFP, and a couple of 
things I want to bring out, you know, any of the ABS babies in the room. This reminds me of the 
more you know, kind of the after school program. But all jokes aside, this has to go beyond just 
saying what are the costs of policing? So in order to provide that fiduciary responsibility, you 
need to take a look at because this hasn't been studied. Are you providing the right amount of 
service currently? So you're currently receiving 35 deputies? But what is that? How is that 
derived? So if you're going into the study to do an actual study need to know how many officers 
should be utilized in the community of approximately 60,900 square miles. So it needs to be 
brought back to that level of what are the services? Nationally, what would the recommendation 
be for service? Are you meeting that service? Currently, if not, that may take you to a point 
where you go back to the county to negotiate the number of deputies you have or look at your 
own. So the purpose of the study is to come back with all of the information that could be used 
in a multitude of ways. So that information should provide you a direct comparison of costs. And 
then it should also provide you recommendations. And then it should provide you a basic outline 
of if x, y, if y z. So that's how I've set that up. The RFP itself right now requires public 
involvement and requires Have a public presentation of results. And part of that is gearing up to 
have a q&a, right? Like, I've set up that this body needs the opportunity in a work session 
format, to be able to ask the questions and give consultant enough time to go back, answer 
those questions and then submit a final. So, you know, providing a final presentation is great. 
But if you're left with more questions and answers would you pay for? So that that's how I've 
drafted the proposal. We provided it, I think about a week and a half ago. So I'm, this is not this 
study is not for me. So I take nothing personally, please let me know if there's something you'd 
like to see different. If there's areas that could be changed, right now, I would look at suggesting 
to release the study at the beginning of October as an RFP, and then having responses back in 
45 days. So that would bring almost very to December, and you'd be looking at kicking off a 
contract in January. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Questions or comments? 

 



Heather Roe   
Madam Chair, just bass if whenever you want to get with us once we decide dates. Yeah, for 
sure. Feel free to reach out to me, Lisa. And we'll talk about if you want to post it anywhere else 
usually posts on BitNet. But if you have other ideas for this, 
 

Beth Ernat   
yeah, small, I do have some directs that we can send out too. But I would like it all to come 
straight out of the township. So I'll work directly with your mother. Thank you. Clerk route. 
 

Debbie Swanson   
I think I'm so concerned about the misinformation. I really am. That's not, that's not you. Looking 
at the title? And I'm thinking like when you look at the title alone? Maybe that's part of it. I don't 
know why then I don't I'm not even aware of what I would suggest. But I think what I hear us 
saying and when I think we're trying to do is do some kind of cost analysis, and that that's a 
term that's used and that I may be using that wrong. But what we're hoping to figure out is 
exactly the way you've described and and then I'm wondering like, what's the through line, 
because if we hire somebody to help us with this, which we need help with, we have to make 
sure that the way they're framing it and the way they're communicating it with people is exactly 
what we're saying here. We have not made a decision. But it is our duty to make sure that what 
we're paying for that, first of all, we've asked Could somebody just give us a clear breakdown of 
it. And we have tried on multiple occasions that I've been told no, on behalf of the residence, 
that is not okay. Yeah, it should be a really easy thing to do. And any other most other places. 
Like I said earlier, I'm a teacher, if you want to know what they're paying, for me what the cost to 
me is, you can go find that out. So maybe the title and then just what is going to help us keep 
that whether we've got to make a statement, a formal statement, and we just have to make sure 
that that statement is always out there. That way people can say whatever misinformation they 
want to do, which if somebody's got a motive to do that, and cause that kind of chaos and harm, 
they're going to do it. But there should be a place where people can go back to and say, No, 
that is not the official work of what the board said they were going to do. And so I'm I could be 
wrong. But when I read that it looks like we're looking how feasible it is for us to do that. Where 
we want to know what are the costs for what we're currently doing. So that so that that then 
helps us decide what direction we're gonna have to do exactly like you said, Trustee Eldridge, 
and I don't know if you know, somebody gets on and that's the first thing they look at. I don't 
know if that's what's gonna cause more trouble for 

 

John Newman   
actually agreed. 
 

Beth Ernat   
And in standing here, kind of listening to the conversation. I had jotted down the comparison 
and feasibility, but I do like cost analysis. And like I said, this isn't my product. So I have no 
problem making any changes for level of comfort. So whatever the board recommends 

 



Debbie Swanson   
are at considering it is we should be collaborating on behalf of the residents. If you're an 
Ypsilanti township resident, you are Washtenaw County resident and the idea that those two 
levels have had a hard time working together just to understand things is absolutely 
inappropriate. 
 

Beth Ernat   
When I agree and I think the one area Add to caution and just to air this out is that even if 
Washtenaw County provided tomorrow and said, here's our list, these are our costs, you still 
have no basis on how those costs are actually derived. So, you know, having this document is 
not at all advancing to any level, this is really doing a due diligence, no different than the 
conversation you just had about elections, how much is it going to cost us? And what are we 
getting out of it? 

 

Debbie Swanson   
But it does put it in a format where the public can see oh, look, this is how they've outlined the 
costs and other communities? Why does our community look different, right, and then the 
burden becomes on the individuals who didn't do it that way in the first place, and are not 
sharing it with us. And I'm, my energy is not towards on that. I'm so frustrated with the idea that 
our residents need cooperation for our communities to be in a good place. And it feels personal. 
I don't know that for a fact. But it feels so personal, which I don't care what they think of me. 
What I care about is that I represent the residents in this community, and they're not willing to 
help us take care of our residents in the way that we think they need to be. And the way that 
residents elected us for four years to do it. So I'm not upset with you, Beth, I appreciate what 
you've done. But this is just so unnecessary, really is. And now it's necessary because of the 
support and the help, that we're not getting from other people who are elected to take care of 
our people in the same way we are. That's what my frustration is, and it's around public safety. 
Everyone in Washtenaw County is concerned about public safety and various various forms, 
how they think public safety should be connected. There's a lot of different thinking about that. 
But the idea that people are not concerned about safety is not what I see here, read all of that. 
So the idea that we should be cooperating around that, and there's no cooperation is so 
distressing. 
 

Beth Ernat   
I'm a Washington County resident and very concerned. 
 

Stan Eldridge   
And I would share this is not the first time that this township has done this. We did it roughly 11 
years ago, and I think it was done somewhere around 2025 years ago. So this is something that 
happens on a sporadic cycle to make sure that we're in a right frame. And I know other 
municipalities in the county, that contract are looking at us as well, and waiting to see what this 
shows because it will affect them. In the same manner. 
 



Brenda Stumbo   
The difference between this time in the other the last time we really were able to work together 
to get analysis and get I call it forensic audit almost robbed the cost. And this time, there's it's 
total shutdown, I'm not giving you any more information. It's almost $6 million. It's our largest 
expenditure. Public safety is our number one concern. And the only thing I would and I'm not 
sure if it's in here, so we do what's called a PSU public, it's in there. Yeah. And that includes a 
number of other so called services. So we have to, you know, have the 

 

Beth Ernat   
cold Detective Sergeant. Yes. So the PSU is in there as a unit price. Yes. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
And it also includes in the contract, that the sheriff single handedly has the authority to change, 
how are deploy how they deploy. So if they're in another community a lot, there is literally 
nothing we can do about that. And I'm not sure if that. I mean, I understand on automatic 
response for emergencies, but for example, our detective bureau is now policing in another area 
to help with their issues. And and I don't know if that's a normal thing, because that hasn't 
happened here, you know, since I've been elected. But does that happen in other communities 
where a police your police department actually becomes a detective bureau for another 
community, and I just don't know enough about what other communities do. I do know that if 
residents want speeding enforcement and neighborhood watch meetings, which we receive a lot 
of request, and the ability to actually you know, change the behavior and make it safer on the 
roads is important. And how do you align those priorities with the current kind tract, which we 
have no control over, and other communities. And maybe we can even look at possibly making 
recommendations to change the current way it's written. And it's a lot of information to ask, but I 
have concerns with what's going on. And it's never gone on. In the history since I've been 
elected, the amount of dis communication or complete non communication, and issues with 
public safety, and it's concerning, in our residents want certain things. So when we ask on their 
behalf, we would like them to happen. Our Lieutenant does whatever he can, but he has to do 
within the framework of the sheriff. And they do a good job the best they can. 
 

Beth Ernat   
And I don't think you know, what demands to bring to the negotiation table, until you have that 
comparative analysis, and feasibility of what you need. So my instinct is that the 35 deputies 
you have is a little low for the area that they're patrolling. And the fact that you're not guaranteed 
that time at the sheriff's discretion, they can bank it to be used at any time during the length of 
the contract is very ambiguous. So I think those are answers, you definitely need to have 
quantitative and qualitative analysis for. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Right, we can't track for 38 and 30 2018. No, we did. So from 2018, we authorized 38 deputies, 
we've never had 38 deputies. So here we are fast forward, and we reduced it to 35. But we still 
have a budget if they can ever get up. And they're trying and that there's a lot of issues 



surrounding that. But we still have to pay for whatever, we don't get billed for 30, we get billed 
for 35 or 38, whatever we contract for even though we might have 28 or 29. So those are the 
kinds of nuances in a contract that seems imbalanced. 
 

Beth Ernat   
The other point is the charter. So if you have 35 deputies, but there's only 38 at roll call our let's 
say Ipsy Township and CYO Township, are you both paying for the same people on that shift? 
So I'm loosely saying CYO, because 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
we don't know until the analysis, 
 

Stan Eldridge   
some of the things that we again, we contract with 35, we've not had 35, since I've been in this 
position. So we share banks those hours, we're expected to adhere to a contract exactly as it's 
written. There's nowhere in that contract that allows for bankable hours, there's nowhere in that 
contract that allows for it. And is the board's heard me say many times nobody in this audience, 
nobody in this township would run their house, and their budgets in their own homes this way, 
where you bring a vendor in and just say, do what you want to do. You know, we just wouldn't 
do that we have special, you know, specifics on how we want those vendors to respond. And 
the response has always been, we're gonna police one community the same way we police 
another community. And you just can't do that because every community has its different things 
that take place within it. You can't treat them the same. Thank you for taking this on. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
And we greatly appreciate the police services and all that work that the three members have put 
in thus far. And thank you, Beth, for bringing this forward. 
 

John Newman   
I would just like to say one of the requests that we requested from the sheriff's office was to see 
who was assigned to Ypsilanti township of those deputies. And of course, we never got that 
information. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Mr. Weiner, Madam Chair, I 
 

Jason Iacoangeli   
guess by being if you're in one place long enough, you kind of see a lot of things and maybe at 
the time, you don't realize it may come back around 20 years later, but back in February this 
year when the township board appointed the Police Services Committee, the mission statement 
was in part to review all costs associated with the Police Services Unit in the recently approved 
for your contract with the Washington County Sheriff of Washtenaw County in December of 
2022, and those numbers and Twain for 2023 Without The so called subsidy per PSU is 



208,000. This year to 19 in next year to 31 and 2025 to 44 in the year 2026. So they have 
determined already, absent a cost subsidy. Absent the mental health millage subsidy, the true 
costs for a PSU in 2026 is 244,000. Well, back in 2006, when the PSU model was first came 
into being, I had the document from that study history overview. And in 2007, when they first 
developed, the concept of PSU was developed by plant Moran wanted to figure out what is the 
costs needed to deploy a deputy sheriff into the field. And that was the preventive consideration 
all these different metrics. In 2007, the cost for a PSU was $94,000. Okay, so you fast forward 
we understand about inflation, we understand about how things continue to go up. But in a span 
of 1214 15 years, you're gone from $94,000, to where this year is 208,002 44. price target 2026 
between 26 as a million dollar cost to the township. I think again, initial statement was to find out 
what is the cost associated for PSU, so you're getting an apples to apples analysis. Tonight, we 
talked about the budget. If you look at the L 4029. There's Ivana spoke about you of course, 
you'll see all the different villages where you have the fire department 3.08 All the ways 2.37. 
General Fund point nine seven Sheriff's Department police is 5.5570. By far the largest millage 
vote, but by far the largest amount of dollars, this township is spinning is on police services. So I 
think right now to say that it's not sustainable, at this rate, to 44. If it comes, it comes down to it 
and 2026. And there is no soul call subsidy, if already determined is 244. It's not going to go in 
reverse. It's been going up since 2007. So you have to have some type of a analysis performed. 
And I think the way you describe it the way you entitle, it doesn't matter, because words do 
matter. I think right now the intent goes back to what the Board did in February this year was to 
basically review all the costs associated with the Police Services Unit. That definition has 
changed. Over the course of the 1415 years, if I go back to the very beginning, was defined as 
1800 hours per deputy. You'll see those definitions used in the succeeding time period. So I 
don't even know right now, if I sit here tonight, if I can really tell you what from the county 
standpoint, what is the true definition of a police services unit? I'm not sure I know what that is. 
And so I think right now the information is critical to make good decisions. When you see it. The 
millage rate the township board is, is asking the taxpayers to continue to support and they have 
supported it. They support the police they support the fire. But it $8 million a year I just don't 
think it's going to be sustainable unless we really, you know, it 32 deputies right now. Is that fair 
to the deputies, you have a population of nearly 60,000 people. So I think right now the 
information is critical in how you frame it's really even more critical. I think right now that these 
numbers going back to 2007 Short pattern that is going to be just not sustainable thing. And 
that's why I think it's so important that the committee has shown good faith in trying to obtain 
this information. I know John numerous Bohai time, stands for a lot of time. And I know that 
Elizabeth from a supervisor stumbles on Office, a lot of documents to me from other 
communities trying to just help us understand better what it is that goes into us. So the decision 
the board's been asked to make tonight did not come about lightly, haphazardly or without 
meaningful thoughtfulness going into it. And the day the question is, how do you how did you 
get the number of 244 Just show me the numbers show me the money. So now you got the and 
it shouldn't be that complicated because if you have a number that you've already predicted, this 
is these dollars are for all practical purposes, I've already been encumbered by this township 
when you sign up for your contract. And so they're encumbered. And they're committed. And at 
the same time is that if you've determined that number, it shouldn't be that difficult for somebody 



to tell me. How did you get 208? And 2023? How do you go from that? They're too old to 244? 
No, three years later, just tell me show us. And it's, I think it's necessary Express for the board 
you have to incur to do this. I feel bad that the township does have to do this. Because this 
something that by frankly, your vendor stances, you should be more than willing to show 
somebody, you prove contracts all night long. Everybody shows you their numbers, show you 
what their costs, show you phase one, phase two, phase three, you just approved for a fifth 
contract, we'll get down as to what defense is going to cost. I'm not equating that with everything 
is the same. But there is the point is, there's got to be a simpler way of at least just showing, 
how did you arrive there, that number may not like the number you may not agree with. But 
you've got to be able to show. So I think that trying to achieve here, working with the broker was 
a comedian, in his office with Elizabeth was trying to get the information. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
And I think it's changed in policing in general and priorities in general, at the county level, we 
have to make sure that we always have police protection, you know, that's the best protection 
we can have. And it's reliable, not only for our deputies, because there's always different 
conversations going on. And I'm not sure you know what the priority is. And I think the contract 
that we enter into, should spell it out more than it does now. Especially when it comes to how to 
suggest in work together collaborate on how to patrol in the township, and we have no input our 
control over. I think that's a little getting a little scary for us. 
 

Stan Eldridge   
And just a quick, cursory of the math, though, from 2006 to current year, and going out to 2026. 
It's somewhere between a 55 and a 72% increase. To show me how you arrived at those 
numbers. 
 

Beth Ernat   
I doubt the officers are receiving that. Right. Yeah. Madam Chair, can I ask one more question 
for clarification? I don't know how you establish review committees. So how, how would you do 
a review committee when the proposals come back? 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
Well, we have a police committee. Okay. That's, 
 

Beth Ernat   
I want to specify that in the paperwork. So I just want to good question. All right. 
 

Debbie Swanson   
Okay. I'll just say I think I'm very concerned about how this is shared. So I know that like we had 
a conversation about minutes and what's in the minutes. So whatever the purpose is of this, we 
have to be ahead of communicating with the public on why we're doing this, because I'm not I 
don't want to rely on the newspaper or that we basically don't have. We shouldn't be, I don't 
know, if it's whatever we need to do to make sure that the reason why we're doing this. If 



tediously has gone over as far as what we say, because words do matter. And then how that 
gets released and circulated then that helps tell the story. And so if somebody looks at our 
packet, or they look at this, they're like they're gonna make their own determination. So just we 
have to be really clear. And then that also comes back to us. Like I appreciate that attorney 
winners was able to go back and say, This is what we said we're doing, we should have the 
same thing moving forward on this. This is why we're doing it. This is what we're doing. Thank 
you for the work you've done on this. We can't underestimate how important it is to make sure 
that the community our residents understand why we're doing this because we are doing it for 
the purpose of protecting their financial resources that they've invested and allowed as our 
fiduciary responsibility. 
 

Beth Ernat   
Trustee Swanson, would you want to put together would you want I can take like the first 
paragraph of the actual document. If you want put that up on the website. You know, just as part 
of a public notice that bids will be released. And then just put the purpose. Maybe take that first 
paragraph. 
 

Stan Eldridge   
Firstly, Hunter made the motion I second and I would make a friendly amendment that for this 
one One issue that our minutes are verbatim, so it can't encapsulate all the discussion in the 
minutia. But for clarity 

 

Brenda Stumbo   
we have a motion in support. Do we answer the question for bed? No, it's okay. 
 

Heather Roe   
When we post our bids, I was just trying to visit our website, we just redirect them. Right. But 
more like press releases. Oh, sorry, that's not on. If the Police Services Committee wants to 

 

Beth Ernat   
do you maybe that's how maybe that's how you do it on the website is just that announcement 
from the police committee, police steering committee, just as an announcement and then the 
link to bednet. Again, I can give you a call on Thursday when we can figure out the dates and 
get the language straight. I think I heard that cost analysis and feasibility would be the title. Is 
that a comfortable? Do on comparative Okay. comparative cost analysis and feasibility study will 
be the official title. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
We have a motion support all in favor Aye. Opposed? Motion carries. Thank you. Number three 
is requests to seek sealed bids for the renovation the community center 200 hallway and 
Community Center bathrooms. And this is our pup funding. So move for a motion by Rome 
support by Eldridge to go out for bids and the bids will be brought back. Any questions or 
comments? All in favor, aye. Opposed? Motion carried under other business. We have the 



request to approve gov HR two assists a human resources department in UK completing a 
salary benefit study for the TPO and bargaining union as outlined in the letter of agreement. I'll 
move motion row support Eldridge discussion. And this is already budgeted. All in favor, aye. 
Aye. Opposed? Motion. 
 

Karen Wallin   
Motion to adjourn questions. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
There's a motion and support to adjourn. 
 

Heather Roe   
You put your mic on. 
 

Debbie Swanson   
I appreciate the residents coming out and talking about the DTE issue. I know that at the 
neighborhood watch meeting last night with West Willow. We're hearing similar comments from 
a lot of residents and asking for our help. Even if it's an area that we're that we don't see as our 
responsibility. I think what's happening is residents are getting the runaround. They were mean 
all the flooding, the backing up. There were some communications or some interactions with 
Yucca that didn't feel right to residents. And so people are being told like, well, that's Yucca or 
that's the drain Commissioner that's DTE or that's and I think that it may be true that it doesn't 
fall in our particular place. But anything that we can do to be helping leverage this idea that it's 
not okay in our community is really important. So I just know that it's heartbreaking to hear the 
things that people are saying. And of course, when there's a problem, they're gonna say, well, 
it's somebody out that's not okay. Like our residents, just like we're saying, right now we pay for 
one thing, and we're not getting what we say the residents feel the same way about it. And it's 
not okay to be thinking well, somebody's got to get a generator. So that's just not an okay way 
to go. So just know that the residents are really frustrated and upset. We all know because 
we're hearing different things, but somehow we have to figure out how we're going to push on 
that 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
no one at the township told them that right. It was at yaka. I just want to make that clear for 
clarity 

 

Debbie Swanson   
like Ms. Kaiser said, You're not there's just a whole somebody needs to help with the whole and 
make sure that she people are stepping out to help and then they're they're stuck in an abyss 
right and waste management. I have been called repeatedly by residents over the same issue. 
I've personally gone out to go pick it up myself. It's a horrible disgusting thing, they have to go 
pick up trash that's dumped out, and I'm laying in the road. And we're just, we're being told 
they're gonna go back out and get it. And then I don't feel good about somebody's garbage 



sitting out there. So I've gone three times, I think on the west side and gone and picked up 
garbage after I've heard it, we're paying a lot for a service, that and when they dump those big 
bins, to their advantage and savings, because nobody's got to get out of a truck, nobody's got to 
do anything. So they're recouping some savings, I'm sure in labor costs, because you're just 
driving the truck down. But they're big bins. So like, I've gone like I've decided on my own, I 
gotta make sure any of my recycles are kind of in a paper bag, she can't put another bag in it to 
make sure they stay kind of attack. So by the time they dumped, things don't fly off. But um, you 
know, the one that I cleaned up was a was a was a garbage, refuse the recycles, I understand a 
little bit more, but like we're talking a lot of trash, like it's not doing what it's supposed to do, and 
we're paying a lot for it. So thank you for listening. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
Thank you. And we will, we do have a meeting scheduled with waste management due to all the 
issues that we've had. And I'm sending an email like I do to DTE and always asking them to do 
an analysis on the number of outages and what's the what's the cause of it. Because I know 
storms are part of it. But if you have minds all the way around it, you know, that's, that's just 
maintenance, like our resident said, so 

 

Debbie Swanson   
don't want to hear it's fine. It's a 500 year 500 year storm, because we've had to 500 year 
storms in less than five years. So they they're sick of that phrase, too. So if our infrastructure 
isn't working, and we have to figure that out, like if you know, we have to we were behind me, 
we're behind the eight ball trying to figure out how we're going to prepare for these storms that 
are most likely to keep coming. So we need to get that figured out. And if if the federal 
government of the state government has oodles of money for infrastructure, those are the things 
that we need to be making sure get in our, in our local community, so that we can really help 
people because it's very distressing and a lot of it is in neighborhoods that are the dense 
neighborhoods that built this township and literally put cars on the roads and did a lot of stuff to 
help people on that's their financial investment in their home. And it's just not okay for that to be 
happening. 
 

Brenda Stumbo   
We have a motion in support to adjourn. All in favor 

 
 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-14 
 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LEVY 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees, on September 
19, 2023 held a public hearing on the proposed special assessment roll prepared 
by the Deputy Assessor, a copy of which is on file in the Clerk’s Office, after 
advertising the same in a newspaper of record in the Township, and; 
 
WHEREAS, on September 19, 2023 the Ypsilanti Township Board heard 
comments on said proposed special assessment roll prepared by the Deputy 
Assessor. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the proposed special assessment 
roll prepared by the Deputy Assessor for the Charter Township of Ypsilanti be 
adopted and the amounts set forth on the special assessment roll be levied on 
the 2023 Winter Tax Roll. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of 
Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and 
exact copy of Resolution No. 2023-14 approved by the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on September 
19, 2023. 

 
 
 

 
                       Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk                                                                   

          Charter Township of Ypsilanti  
 
 
 
 
 



 

    Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-12 
    A Resolution Amending the Ypsilanti Township Zoning Ordinance 

(In Reference to Proposed Ordinance 2023-505)  

  
Whereas, the Township Planning Department Staff completed a detailed review of the 

Township’s Zoning Code; and 

Whereas, at its regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting held July 25, 2023, 

the Planning Commission held a public hearing. 

Whereas, the Planning Commission for Ypsilanti Township recommended approval of 

the proposed zoning amendments to the Township’s Zoning Code to the Township Board of 

Trustees at its regular meeting of July 25, 2023 which changes can be summarized as follows: 

1. Article 4, Sec. 407. – Residential Multiple-Family: Low Density 
a. The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall 

conform with the applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most 
comparable single-family zoning district. 

2. Article 4, Sec. 408. – Residential Multiple-Family: Medium Density 
a. The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall 

conform with the applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most 
comparable single-family zoning district. 

3. Article 4, Sec. 409. – Residential Multiple-Family: High Density  
a. The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall 

conform with the applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most 
comparable single-family zoning district. 

4. Article 4, Sec. 420.5 – Industrial Use Table  
a. Amended industrial district use table. 

5. Article 5, Sec. 506. – Town Center  
a. Amending group 2 to allow for use groups 1, 2, 3, and 4.  

6. Article 11, Sec. 1128. – Temporary Sidewalk Outdoor and Tent Sales for Principal Use.  
a. Address the parking requirements of temporary sidewalk and outdoor sales.  

7. Article 13, Sec. 1305. – Fences and Walls.  
a. Eliminate illustration in Sec. 1305 and amend 1305.2.A to include through lots.  

8. Article 15, Sec. 1509. – Signs.  
a. Amend Sec. 1509.6.A.2.b. to change the area of wall signs permitted for each “lot” to “unit” as 

was intended. To amend Sec. 1509.10. to eliminate wall painted signs.  
 
Now Therefore, 

Be it resolved, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees does hereby approve 
Ordinance No. 2023-505 as attached, by amending Articles of the Township's Zoning Ordinance as 
noted, replacing it with proposed Ordinance No. 2023-505.  

 
 
 
I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of 

Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of 
Resolution No. 2023-12 approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees 
assembled at a Regular Meeting held on September 19, 2023.  

                            Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk                                                                   
              Charter Township of Ypsilanti  

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-505 

 
 

            An Ordinance to Amend Articles 4, 5, 11, 13, and 15 of the 
                     Ypsilanti Township Zoning Ordinance 

 

 

Article 4 – District Regulations Zoning Text Amendments 

Sections 407, 408, and 409 – Residential Multiple-Family Districts 

Single-family residential uses are permitted in the three residential multiple-family districts (RM-LD, RM-

MD, and RM-HD) but the dimensional requirements do not contemplate setbacks for single-family 

residential uses, only multiple-family residential uses.  Requiring a single-family residential dwelling to 

comply with the required 60-foot aggregate side yard setback, for example, of the RM-LD district makes 

most typical platted subdivision lots unbuildable except for variance approval. On October 5, 2022, staff 

brought before the Zoning Board of Appeals a request by Habitat for Humanity to seek a variance from 

Sec. 407 due to the inability for them to meet the aggregate 60-foot side yard setback requirement on a 

RM-LD lot located at 966 N. Prospect. The lot was only 51’ wide rendering the construction of a single-

family home impossible with the current standards. If this Zoning Text Amendment was in effect at the 

time, Habitat for Humanity could simply use the dimensional standards of the most similar single-family 

lot, in this case, a R-5 One-Family Residential lot. Staff recommends the following language be included 

in the supplemental district standards for all three multiple-family districts: 

The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall conform with the 
applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most comparable single-family zoning district.  



 

 
 

Article 4 – District Regulations Zoning Text Amendments 

Sections 407, 408, and 409 – Residential Multiple-Family Districts 

Single-family residential uses are permitted in the three residential multiple-family districts (RM-LD, RM-

MD, and RM-HD) but the dimensional requirements do not contemplate setbacks for single-family 

residential uses, only multiple-family residential uses.  Requiring a single-family residential dwelling to 

comply with the required 60-foot aggregate side yard setback, for example, of the RM-LD district makes 

most typical platted subdivision lots unbuildable except for variance approval. On October 5, 2022, staff 

brought before the Zoning Board of Appeals a request by Habitat for Humanity to seek a variance from 

Sec. 407 due to the inability for them to meet the aggregate 60-foot side yard setback requirement on a 

RM-LD lot located at 966 N. Prospect. The lot was only 51’ wide rendering the construction of a single-

family home impossible with the current standards. If this Zoning Text Amendment was in effect at the 

time, Habitat for Humanity could simply use the dimensional standards of the most similar single-family 

lot, in this case, a R-5 One-Family Residential lot. Staff recommends the following language be included 

in the supplemental district standards for all three multiple-family districts: 

The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall conform with the 
applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most comparable single-family zoning district.  



 

 

 

Article 4 – District Regulations Zoning Text Amendments 

Sections 407, 408, and 409 – Residential Multiple-Family Districts 

Single-family residential uses are permitted in the three residential multiple-family districts (RM-LD, RM-

MD, and RM-HD) but the dimensional requirements do not contemplate setbacks for single-family 

residential uses, only multiple-family residential uses.  Requiring a single-family residential dwelling to 

comply with the required 60-foot aggregate side yard setback, for example, of the RM-LD district makes 

most typical platted subdivision lots unbuildable except for variance approval. On October 5, 2022, staff 

brought before the Zoning Board of Appeals a request by Habitat for Humanity to seek a variance from 

Sec. 407 due to the inability for them to meet the aggregate 60-foot side yard setback requirement on a 

RM-LD lot located at 966 N. Prospect. The lot was only 51’ wide rendering the construction of a single-

family home impossible with the current standards. If this Zoning Text Amendment was in effect at the 



time, Habitat for Humanity could simply use the dimensional standards of the most similar single-family 

lot, in this case, a R-5 One-Family Residential lot. Staff recommends the following language be included 

in the supplemental district standards for all three multiple-family districts: 

The expansion or construction of a single-family dwelling or accessory structure shall conform with the 
applicable minimum yard and setback requirements of the most comparable single-family zoning district.  

 

 

 

 
 

 



Article 4, Section 420 – Residential Use Table  

Staff suggests amending the industrial schedule of uses to provide for uses more in line with the Master 

Plan, industrial users that are currently operating in the township, and uses more aligned with today’s 

economic trends. Please find below the proposed changes:  

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 



Article 5 – Sec. 506. – Town Center:  

Use groups by category in Town Center 

Use Group 2 for the Town center corridors indicates in Use Group 2 mixed uses: any combination of uses 

located in group 1, 2, or 3 that is mixed vertically in a building or horizontal on one parcel is permitted but 

Use Group 4 (retail, entertainment, and service uses) have been excluded from the mixed-use groups even 

though Use Group 4 is permitted across all site types.  Staff recommends that Use Group 2 for all corridors 

be corrected to include Use Group 4 in the mixed-uses permitted. This Zoning Ordinance Text 

Amendment will be brought to the Planning Commission for the Neighborhood and Regional Corridor 

in the coming months. See next page.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Current Zoning Ordinance Language:  
 

 
 
 



Proposed Text Amendment: 

 

 

 



Article 11—Specific Use Provisions Zoning Text Amendments 

Section 1128 - Sec. 1128. - Temporary sidewalk, outdoor and tent sales for principal use:  

Section 1128 provides for temporary sidewalk, outdoor and tent sales for principal uses, with conditions 

for all uses specified in paragraph 1.  The conditions include following the sign provisions, maneuverability, 

or safety of the site, and following all other township requirements.  However, there is no provision for 

parking requirements that apply to all uses; parking requirements are addressed only under paragraph 2, 

Seasonal sales of produce from tents, stands or display racks. Parking should be a consideration for all 

temporary sales uses.   

Staff recommends that the parking requirements under paragraph 2 be moved to paragraph 1, thereby 

applying to all uses under Section 1128.   

Sec. 1128. - Temporary sidewalk, outdoor and tent sales for principal use:  

Temporary sidewalk, outdoor and tent sales may be permitted subject to the issuance of a revocable 
Zoning Compliance permit to operate a sidewalk, outdoor or tent sales as an extension of or compatible 
with, the existing business on a portion of the public sidewalk or other public area adjacent to the 
business. The Zoning Compliance permit may be issued by the Zoning Administrator under the following 
terms and conditions:  

1. For all uses, the following conditions must be met:  

A. Signs shall be limited to sizes and locations in keeping with Article 15.   

B. All temporary buildings, tents and structures shall be constructed, used, occupied, and 

maintained in compliance with the provisions of the state construction code and all 

Ordinances of the Township.  

C. Building and Fire Code requirements shall be complied with.  

D. The sale shall not interfere with the use of the sidewalk or street for pedestrian or vehicular 

travel. Sidewalk width must remain at least six (6) feet wide.  

E. The sale shall not unreasonably interfere with the view of, access to or use of property 

adjacent to the street or neighboring businesses or properties.  

F. The sale shall not interfere with street clearing or snow removal activities.  

G. The sale shall not cause damage to the street or to sidewalks, trees, benches, landscaping, or 

other objects lawfully located on the property.  

H. Sales areas shall be located so as to provide adequate access for fire and safety vehicles.  

I. A permit shall be required. The proprietor of the property shall provide a sketch plan drawn 

to scale showing the location of the sale, existing and proposed temporary and permanent 

structures on the entire parcel, parking areas, and parking calculations.  

J. Copies of permits required by any other agencies for the use must be included with the permit 

application.  



K. Off-street parking shall be provided in keeping with standards of Section 1205, Parking 
requirements. In those instances where usable floor area cannot be effectively measured, the 
sales space utilized shall be measured as usable floor area.  

2. Seasonal sale of produce from tents, stands or display racks subject to the following conditions:  

A. Permits may be issued for up to six (6) month periods.  

B. Off-street parking shall be provided in keeping with standards of Section 1205, Parking 

requirements. In those instances where usable floor area cannot be effectively measured, the 

sales space utilized shall be measured as usable floor area.  

3. Sidewalk sales areas may be permitted subject to the following:  

A. The sidewalk sales area shall abut the building and shall not be placed abutting a parking area 

or vehicle travel lane.  

B. Sidewalk sales areas shall not be fenced or enclosed in any manner.  

C. Sidewalk sales shall be conducted for no more than fourteen (14) consecutive days and 

permits shall not be issued for consecutive tent sales beyond a fourteen (14) day period.  

4. Tent sales may be permitted subject to the following:  

A. No more than three (3) tent sales shall be permitted for a business location within a single 

calendar year.  

B. A tent sale shall be conducted for no more than fourteen (14) consecutive days and permits 

shall not be issued for consecutive tent sales beyond a fourteen (14) day period.  

C. Tent sales when proposed to be conducted on parking areas shall not reduce required parking 

spaces by more than fifteen percent (15%).  

D. All tents shall be removed within forty-eight (48) hours of expiration of the period for which 

the permit is issued.  

E. Equipment and products used in the event do not pose a fire or other hazard.  

 
Article 13 Zoning Text Amendments 

A. Section 1305 – Fences and Walls 

Section 1305.2.A.(1) specifies that “Only ornamental type fences shall be located in a required front yard 

or, in the case of a corner or through lot, in a required yard which adjoins a public or private street provided 

such fences shall not exceed four (4) feet in height.”   

However, the illustration included in this section reflects the previous zoning ordinance provisions 

allowing a six-foot privacy fence in the required yard adjoining a public or private street in certain 

situations.  The illustration should be corrected to show that a privacy fence must meet the required front 

yard setback along both street frontages. 

 



 

 

B. Section 1305 – Fences and Walls 

A through lot is defined by the Ordinance as “Lot, Through: Any interior lot having frontage on two (2) 
more or less parallel streets as distinguished from a corner lot. In the case of a row of double frontage lots, 
all yards of said lots adjacent to streets shall be considered frontage, and front yard setbacks shall be 
provided as required.”   

Section 1305.2.A.(1) specifies that “Only ornamental type fences shall be located in a required front yard 

or, in the case of a corner or through lot, in a required yard which adjoins a public or private street provided 

such fences shall not exceed four (4) feet in height.”  A six-foot tall fence must meet the rear yard setback 

of 35 feet on a through lot, which could substantially decrease the usable rear yard of a through lot.   

 

Staff recommends that the ordinance be changed to read as follows:   

2. Height and location requirements:  

A. Residential District. 

(1) Only ornamental type fences shall be located in a required front yard or, in the case of a corner 

or through lot, in a required yard which adjoins a public or private street provided such fences shall not 

exceed four (4) feet in height.  

(2) Fences may be located in any required yard not adjoining a public or private street provided that 

they shall not exceed six (6) feet in height.  In the case of a through lot, fences between four and six feet 

in height located in the secondary front yard shall maintain a ten (10) foot setback.  

 
Article 15 – Signs 

Section 1509.6.A.2.b.  – Permitted Signs in Form-based Districts. 

The area of wall signs permitted for a multi-tenant building in the form-based district is indicated as per 

lot but that would mean individual tenants would be left without any wall signs.  Staff suggests that the 

language be amended to read as follows:  



(b)    Area. The area of wall signs permitted for each lot unit shall be determined as one (1) square foot of 
sign area for each one (1) linear foot of building frontage occupied by a business to a maximum area 
of one hundred (100) square feet. All businesses without ground floor frontage, in a given building, 
shall be permitted one (1) combined exterior wall sign not more than twenty-four (24) square feet in 
area. 

Section 1509.10. – Prohibited Signs 

The zoning ordinance does not address signs painted directly onto a building façade as a wall sign.  Staff 

suggests the following language:  

H. No sign shall be painted directly onto the façade of the building wall or related architectural feature. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan hereby certify adoption 
of Ordinance No. 2023-505 by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on 
September 19, 2023 after first being introduced at a Regular Meeting held on August 15, 2023. The motion to approve was made by 
member Jarrell Roe and seconded by Eldridge YES:  Stumbo, Jarrell Roe, Eldridge, Hunter, Newman and Swanson ABSENT:  
Peterson  NO: None  ABSTAIN:  None.      

                       

                                                                                                                                                                                
__________________________________ 

Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk    
                               
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP  
OF YPSILANTI 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-13 

RESOLUTION REGARDING 
TEMPORARY ROAD 

CLOSURE 

 
 

Resolution authorizing the temporary road closure of Rosewood St. between 
Davis St. and Ecorse Rd. for the Calvary Baptist Church Fall Festival from 
11am to 6pm on October 14, 2023. 

 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has 
approved the temporary closure of Ypsilanti Township roads as indicated 
above; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Driveways, Banners, and Parades Act 200 of 1969 requires 
the Township to authorize an official designated by resolution to make such 
request from the Road Commission. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees designates and agrees that Fred Crothers, Cavalry 
Baptist Church Facility Manager be the authorized official designee in this 
instance, when application is made to the Washtenaw County Road 
Commission for this temporary road closure. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I, Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, 
State of Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of 
Resolution No. 2023-13 approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees 
assembled at a Regular Meeting held on September 19, 2023. 

 
 
 
 

 
          Heather Jarrell Roe, Clerk                                                                   

                    Charter Township of Ypsilanti  

 
 













































CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 12

September 19, 2023

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $29,800.00

Revenues: Reimbursement Elections 101-000-676.006 $25,100.00

Net Revenues $25,100.00

Expenditures: Appointed Officials 101-262-704-000 $13,600.00
Overtime 101-262-709.000 $1,700.00
Office Supplies 101-262-727.000 $2,300.00
Postage 101-262-730.000 $6,000.00
Travel 101-262-860.000 $400.00
Publications 101-262-900.000 $100.00
Equipment Rental & Leasing (Moose Lodge rental) 101-262-941.000 $1,000.00

Net Expenditures $25,100.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $4,700.00

Net Revenues $4,700.00

Expenditures: Office Supplies 101-262-727.000 $4,700.00

Net Expenditures $4,700.00

Request to increase the budget for a special election in November to be reimbursed by Lincoln Community Schools 
covering 6 precincts and 1 AVCB. This will be funded by reimbursement.

Request to increase the budget for supplies needed for the February Presidential Primary. This will be funded by an 
appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2023 Budget (#12)  
 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $29,800 to $14,653,388 and approve the 
department line item changes as outlined. 

 



 

ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 



 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

 



1 

AGREEMENT FOR ELECTION SERVICES  

BETWEEN WASHTENAW COUNTY AND ANN ARBOR TOWNSHIP, AUGUSTA TOWNSHIP, CHELSEA CITY, 

DEXTER CITY, DEXTER TOWNSHIP, FREEDOM TOWNSHIP, LIMA TOWNSHIP, LODI TOWNSHIP, LYNDON 

TOWNSHIP, MANCHESTER TOWNSHIP, NORTHFIELD TOWNSHIP, PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, 

SALEM TOWNSHIP, SALINE CITY, SALINE TOWNSHIP, SCIO TOWNSHIP, SHARON TOWNSHIP, CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR, SYLVAN TOWNSHIP, WEBSTER TOWNSHIP, YORK TOWNSHIP, YPSILANTI CITY, 

AND YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP. 

This County Early Voting Site Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made between WASHTENAW COUNTY, 
200 N. Main, Suite 120, Ann Arbor, Michigan, 48104 and ANN ARBOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP, 3792 
Pontiac Trail, Ann Arbor, MI 48105, and AUGUSTA CHARTER TOWNSHIP, 8021 Talladay Road, Whittaker, 
MI 48190, and the CITY OF CHELSEA, 305 S. Main St., Chelsea, MI 48118, and the CITY OF DEXTER, 8123 
Main St., Dexter, MI 48130, and DEXTER TOWNSHIP, 6880 Dexter-Pinckney Road, Dexter, MI 48130, and 
FREEDOM TOWNSHIP, 11508 Pleasant Lake Rd., Ann Arbor, MI 48103, and LIMA TOWNSHIP, 12172 
Jackson Rd., Chelsea, MI 48118, and LODI TOWNSHIP, 3755 Pleasant Lake Rd. Ann Arbor, MI 48103, and 
LYNDON TOWNSHIP, 17751 N. Territorial Rd., Chelsea, MI 48118, and MANCHESTER TOWNSHIP, 275 S. 
Macomb, Manchester, MI 48158, and NORTHFIELD TOWNSHIP, 8350 Main St., Whitmore Lake, MI 
48189, and PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, 6201 W. Michigan Ave. Ann Arbor, MI 48108, and SALEM 
TOWNSHIP, 9600 Six Mile Rd, Salem, MI 48175, and the CITY OF SALINE, 100 N. Harris Rd., Saline, MI 
48176, and SALINE TOWNSHIP, 5731 Braun Rd, Saline, MI 48176, and SCIO TOWNSHIP, 827 N. Zeeb Rd., 
Ann Arbor, MI 48103, and SHARON TOWNSHIP, 18010 W. Pleasant Lake Rd., Manchester, MI 48158, and 
the CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SUPERIOR, 3040 N. Prospect Rd., Ypsilanti, MI 48198, SYLVAN TOWNSHIP, 
18027 Old US 12, Chelsea, MI 48118, and WEBSTER TOWNSHIP, 5665 Webster Church Rd., Dexter, MI 
48130, and YORK TOWNSHIP, 11560 Stony Creek, Milan, MI 48160, and the CITY OF YPSILANTI, 1 S. 
Huron St., Ypsilanti, MI 48197, and YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, 7200 S. Huron River Dr., Ypsilanti, MI 48197.  

In this Agreement, the county and each municipality will be represented by their respective Clerk in their 
official capacity.  

PURPOSE OF THE AGREEMENT. The county and the municipalities enter into this Agreement pursuant 
to Article II, Section 4(m) of the Michigan Constitution of 1963 and the Michigan Election Law, 1954 
Public Act 116, MCL 168.720a et seq., for the purpose of operating one or more joint early voting site(s).  

Name of Municipality Registered Voters # Precincts 

City of Chelsea 4763 2 

City of Dexter 3606 3 

City of Saline 7730 4 

City of Ypsilanti 17184 10 

Ann Arbor Charter Township 4124 2 

Augusta Charter Township 6137 3 

Dexter Township 5756 3 

Name of County

Washtenaw



2 

Freedom Township 1272 1 

Lima Township 3397 2 

Lodi Township 5340 3 

Lyndon Township 2280 1 

Manchester Township 4230 2 

Northfield Township 7237 3 

Pittsfield Charter Township 29726 13 

Salem Twp 5863 3 

Saline Township 1991 1 

Scio Township 15021 8 

Sharon Township 1667 1 

Charter Township of Superior 12448 5 

Sylvan Township 3052 1 

Webster Township 5877 3 

York Township 6067 3 

Ypsilanti Township 46371 19 

1. DEFINITIONS. The following words and expressions used throughout this Agreement, whether 

used in the singular or plural, shall be defined, read, and interpreted as follows:

1.1 Agreement means the terms and conditions of this Agreement and any other mutually 

agreed to written and executed modification, amendment, exhibit, and attachment to 

this Agreement.  

1.2 Coordinator means the individual appointed by the County Clerk and identified as the 

individual responsible for providing oversight to ensure sufficient resources are available 

and timely dispatched to each early voting site and monitoring the administrative 

requirements of early voting for the participating municipalities.  

1.3 Early Voting Plan means the document and any addenda to the document outlining the 

manner in which early voting will be provided in a county or municipality, as described 

in MCL 168.720a et seq. The requirements of an early voting plan are described in MCL 

168.720h(3).  

1.4 Election Services encompasses the following individual Election Services provided by the 

county or either municipality’s Elections Division, if applicable: early voting 

administration. 

1.5 Legislative Body of the Municipality means the City or Township Council or Board of 

Trustees elected or appointed and serving in the municipality.  

1.6 Municipality means any participating municipality, which are entities created by state or 

local authority or which are primarily funded by or through state or local authority, 

including, but not limited to, their Council, Board, departments, divisions, elected and 

appointed officials, directors, board members, council members, commissioners, 

authorities, committees, employees, agents, subcontractors, attorneys, volunteers, 

and/or any such persons’ successors.  

1.7 QVF means the Qualified Voter File as described in MCL 168.509m.



3 

1.8 QVF Controller means the individual appointed by the County Clerk and identified as the 

Qualified Voter File (QVF) administrator of early voting information within the QVF.

1.9 Site Supervisor means the participating municipal clerk or a member of the County 

Clerk’s staff who shall act as supervisor for each day of early voting. The County Clerk 

may appoint a different participating municipal clerk or member of the County Clerk’s 

staff to act as a supervisor for different days of early voting. 

2. PARTIES TO AN AGREEMENT.

2.1 An Agreement may be entered into between one or more municipalities wholly or 

partially located within the same county and the County Clerk of that county.  

2.2 A municipality located in multiple counties can only enter into an Agreement with one 

of the counties in which the municipality is located.   

3. SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT. 

3.1 This Agreement applies to all elections (state, federal, special, odd-year city elections) 

that affect voters in participating municipalities.  

3.2 During special and/or odd-year city elections the County, after consulting with Clerks of 

municipalities affected by special and/or odd-year city elections and to the extent and 

manner provided by state law, may temporarily change early vote site locations, days 

and hours of early voting, poll worker and site supervisor staffing arrangements, and 

other items included in the attached Plan. However, voters in all participating 

municipalities shall be provided at least one (1) early vote site during special and/or 

odd-year city elections. 

4. COORDINATOR.  

4.1 The Washtenaw County Director of Elections (or their equivalent) will serve as 

coordinator of the joint early voting site and will be responsible for organizing and 

monitoring the administrative requirements, including staffing, of early voting for the 

participating municipalities.   

4.1.1 In the event that that coordinator is unable to personally supervise and staff 

each early voting site on each day of early voting, the coordinator may 

designate early voting site supervisors to assist with the staffing and supervision 

of early voting.  

4.2 If the coordinator becomes unavailable for any reason, the role will be filled in one of 

the following ways, as determined by the parties upon execution of this Agreement:  

4.2.1 The County Clerk will appoint the new coordinator.    

4.2.2 The Elections Program Manager (or their equivalent), as backup coordinator, 

would assume the responsibilities of coordinator. If the backup coordinator is 

unavailable for any reason, the County Clerk will appoint the new coordinator.   

5. QVF CONTROLLER.  

5.1 The Washtenaw County Director of Elections (or their equivalent) or County Elections 

Program Manager (or their equivalent) will serve as the Qualified Voter File (QVF) 

administrator of early voting information within the QVF. The controller’s duties will 



4 

involve setting up the necessary voting regions, user access, and application access 

needed for the sites designated in the Agreement. The QVF controller must meet the 

security requirements of a QVF user. The QVF controller can be the same as the 

coordinator as long as the appropriate QVF training is completed.  

6. APPROVAL OF EARLY VOTING SITES. 

6.1 Pursuant to MCL 168.662, the County Clerk, after consulting the participating municipal 

clerks, must submit each early voting site location to the board of county election 

commissioners for approval.   

6.2 Each early voting site may serve all electors covered by the county Agreement, the 

electors in specific municipalities, the electors of one municipality, or any combination 

of these options, as long as each elector in the county is served by one or more early 

voting sites.  

7. APPOINTMENT OF ELECTION INSPECTORS. 

7.1 The board of county election commissioners is responsible for the appointment of 

election inspectors.   

7.2 At least 31 days before each statewide and federal election, the board will appoint for 

each early voting site at least 3 election inspectors and as many more as, in its opinion, 

are required for the efficient, speedy, and proper conduct of the election.  

7.3 The board will further designate one appointed election inspector from each early 

voting site as chairperson. 

7.4 The selection of election inspectors will be governed by MCL 168.674.  

8. APPROVAL OF EARLY VOTING HOURS.

8.1 Prior to the submission of an Agreement or early voting plan, the County Clerk and the 

clerks of the participating municipalities will do all of the following:  

8.1.1 For the nine early voting days guaranteed by the Constitution, decide among 

themselves the hours that early voting will be provided at the approved joint 

early voting site or sites and include those hours in this Agreement.   

8.1.2 For any dates or hours beyond the dates and hours guaranteed by the 

Constitution, the County Clerk may set hours without regard to the required 

hours for early voting on the nine required days of early voting and include 

those days and hours in this Agreement.  

8.1.3 Indicate whether the days and hours specified in this Agreement apply to all 

elections or only to statewide and federal elections.  

9. NOTICE OF EARLY VOTING HOURS.

9.1 Not less than 45 days before Election Day, the County Clerk and the clerk of each 

participating municipality will give public notice of the dates and hours for early voting 

at the joint early voting site or sites by posting of the notice on the county’s and each 

municipality’s website and any other publication or posting the clerk considers 

advisable. 



5 

10. BUDGET AND COST SHARING.

10.1 The estimated early voting budget is proposed as follows in item 10.2. This budget may 

be amended as deemed necessary by the County Clerk due to circumstances that 

include but are not limited to the type of election occurring; anticipated voter turnout; 

needs associated with specific early voting sites; the need to acquire equipment, 

software, or services that will aid in enhancing efficiency and/or service to early voters; 

and/or changes in state law or promulgated rule. 

Recurring costs not offset by grant or other funding provided directly to the County by 

the State of Michigan specifically for administration of county-coordinated early voting 

agreements will be shared equally among the participating municipalities. The County 

will issue an itemized invoice to participating municipalities as needed and within 60 

days following each election date during which early voting is administered on behalf of 

the participating municipality pursuant to this agreement. Payment in full will be made 

by each municipality within 30 days of receipt of the invoice.  

The County will procure equipment necessary to implement early voting pursuant to 

this plan on a one-time basis. The County will be responsible for one-time 

implementation costs not offset by grant or other funding provided directly to the 

County by the State of Michigan specifically for administration of county-coordinated 

early voting agreements. 

10.2 Estimated budget for recurring expenses. 

Recurring Expenses (each election) 

Labor  High Low

Poll Worker EV Site Daily Labor  $             100,800  $              72,000 

Receiving Board  $                      300  $                    300 

Training  $                  6,720   $                 4,512  

Meals  $                  5,040   $                 3,600  

County Personnel
FTE overtime/position 
modification  $                10,666  $                          - 

Part-time temp  $                  3,000  $                 3,000 

Mileage  $                      885   $                    885  

Polling Place rental

Polling place rental  $                           -  $                          - 

Material transport  $                  2,000  $                 2,000 

Consumables
Ballots (blank and emergency pre-
printed)  $                  3,416  $                 3,416 

Test deck/chart  $                  9,720  $                 9,720 



6 

Precinct supply kits  $                      300   $                    300  

Misc other supplies  $                  3,000   $                 3,000  

Total Recurring Costs  $             145,847  $           102,733 

11. STAFFING AND SUPERVISION

11.1 The coordinator is responsible for ensuring adequate staffing and supervision at early 

voting sites including selection of the site supervisor who oversees a specific early voting 

site(s). 

11.2 The site supervisor shall operate in the same manner and have the same authority as a 

municipal clerk operates in an election day polling place. 

11.3 The site supervisors for early voting sites must be listed in the attached Exhibit B.  

12. TABULATORS AND EARLY VOTING POLL BOOK LAPTOPS AT EARLY VOTING SITE(S).

12.1 Prior to the submission of the Early Voting Plan, the County Clerk and the clerks of the 

participating municipalities will do all of the following:  

12.1.1 Determine the number of tabulators and early voting poll book laptops or other 

voting equipment that are necessary at each early voting site. 

12.1.2 Determine whether the county or a municipality will provide the tabulators and 

early voting poll book laptops or other voting equipment.  

12.2 The board of county election commissioners will be responsible for conducting testing 

of the electronic voting equipment. 

12.3 The coordinator will be responsible for taking necessary steps to set up the early voting 

poll book and early voting poll book laptops. 

12.3.1 If the coordinator is not a clerk, the County Clerk and the clerks of the 

participating municipalities must decide among themselves which clerk is 

responsible for taking necessary steps to set up the early voting poll book and 

early voting poll book laptops.  

12.4 Tabulators and early voting poll book laptops used at each joint early voting site must be 

configured in one of the ways set forth in MCL 168.720j(5).  

13. CLOSING PROCEDURES DURING EARLY VOTING AND ON ELECTION DAY

13.1 During Early Voting, the coordinator must ensure compliance with the closing 

procedures described in MCL 168.720j(8) and 720j(9) and any instructions issued by the 

Secretary of State 

13.2 During Early Voting, the coordinator must ensure that specified election materials are 

secured in compliance with MCL 168.720j(10) and any instructions issued by the 

Secretary of State. 

13.3 At the conclusion of Election Day, the coordinator must ensure compliance with the 

closing procedures described in MCL 168.720j(11) and any instructions issued by the 

Secretary of State. 

14. CANVASS OF EARLY VOTE RETURNS AND REPORTING OF EARLY VOTING RESULTS



7 

14.1 The board of county election commissioners is responsible for appointing the receiving 

board or group of election inspectors to canvass the early vote returns on Election Day 

and report early voting results to the County Clerk.   

14.2 At the conclusion of Election Day, the coordinator must ensure compliance with the 

canvass and reporting requirements described in MCL 168.720j(11)-(14) and MCL 

168.801-810.  

15. EXECUTION OF COUNTY JOINT EARLY VOTE SITE AGREEMENT. 

15.1 A county Early Voting Site Agreement must be finalized and signed by the participating 

county and all municipalities: 

15.1.1 No later than 125 days before the first regularly scheduled statewide or federal 

election in each even numbered year. 

15.1.2 No later than 90 days before a special statewide or federal election.  

16. EARLY VOTING PLAN. 

16.1 No later than 120 days before the first statewide or federal election in each even 

numbered year, the coordinator will be responsible for ensuring an early voting plan, 

attached as Exhibit A, is filed with the County Clerk of the county in which the 

municipalities are located.    

17. NOTICE TO SOS OF CHANGES TO LOCATIONS, DAYS, AND HOURS OF EARLY VOTING.  

17.1 Not less than 45 days before the first early voting day allowed by statute, the 

coordinator will be responsible for providing the Secretary of State any changes made a 

previously submitted Early Voting Plan that affect the locations, dates, and hours of 

operation for each joint early voting site operated by the participating county and 

municipalities. This ensure that the correct information is posted on the Michigan Voter 

Information Center (MVIC) portion of the Department of State’s website.  

18. DURATION OF COUNTY JOINT EARLY VOTE SITE AGREEMENT. 

18.1 This Agreement and any amendments will be effective when executed by all Parties, as 

evidenced by the signature of the County Clerk and each participating municipal clerk.  

18.2 This Agreement will continue with no fixed termination date.  

19. CANCELLATION, MODIFICATION, AND TERMINATION OF COUNTY JOINT EARLY VOTE SITE 

AGREEMENT.

19.1 If the County Clerk withdraws from the Agreement for any reason, the Agreement will 

cease to exist and the clerk of each participating municipality must submit a revised 

early voting plan to the Department outlining the manner in which early voting will be 

provided. 

19.2 This Agreement may be modified by a written amendment executed by all parties. If a 

modification will result in impact to a subset of parties, only, only those parties affected 

need execute the modification. In the event that the Village of Manchester adopts a city 

charter and incorporates as a home-rule City on or after November 7, 2023, all parties 



8 

agree that the City of Manchester may enter into this Agreement subject to approval by 

the City of Manchester and Washtenaw County, only.

19.3 If the parties terminate Agreement for any reason, the clerk of each participating 

municipality must submit a revised early voting plan to the Department outlining the 

manner in which early voting will be provided. 

19.4 If a party withdraws from the Agreement for any reason, the clerk of the municipality 

withdrawing from the Agreement must submit a revised early voting plan to the 

Department outlining the manner in which early voting will be provided. A party to a 

municipal Agreement may withdraw from the Agreement by providing at least 30 days’ 

written notice to the other Parties to the Agreement.  

19.5 A Party may not withdraw from the Agreement during the period beginning 150 days 

before the first statewide November election in an even numbered year and ending on 

the completion of the county canvass for the statewide general November election in 

that even numbered year.  

19.6 If the Agreement covers any elections in addition to statewide and federal elections, a 

Party may not withdraw from the Agreement during the period beginning 150 days 

before the election covered under the Agreement and ending on the completion of the 

county canvass for that election.  

20. ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES AND COUNTERPARTS

20.1 This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, and each counterpart 

shall become binding when the other(s) has or have been signed as if it had been signed 

by each party. Facsimile or electronic signatures shall be considered original signatures 

for the purposes of execution and enforcement of the rights and obligations described 

herein. 

Jurisdiction Clerk of Municipality Signature Date 

Washtenaw County Lawrence Kestenbaum

City of Chelsea Lyn Sebestyen 

City of Dexter Justin Breyer 

City of Saline Terri Royal 

City of Ypsilanti Aaron Smith 

Ann Arbor Charter 
Township 

Rena Basch 

Augusta Charter 
Township 

Kimberly Gonczy 



9 

Dexter Township Michelle Stamboulellis  

Freedom Township Valisa Bristle 

Lima Township Teresa Reynhout 

Lodi Township Christina Smith 

Lyndon Township Linda Reilly 

Manchester 
Township 

Danell Proctor 

Northfield Township Kathleen Manley 

Pittsfield Charter 
Township 

Michelle Anzaldi 

Salem Twp Del Wensley 

Saline Township Kelly Marion 

Scio Township Jessica Flintoft 

Sharon Township Michelle Mrocko 

Charter Township of 
Superior 

Lynette Findley 

Sylvan Township Amanda Nimke 

Webster Township Barbara Calleja 

York Township Kayleigh Zupi 

Ypsilanti Township Heather Jarrell Roe  

WASHTENAW COUNTY 

ATTESTED TO AND APPROVED 

AS TO CONTENT: 

______________________________       ______________________________ 

Edward R. Golembiewski            Date       Gregory Dill                       Date 

Director of Elections       Washtenaw County Administrator 



10 

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY: 

________________________________ 

Michelle Billard                           Date 

Washtenaw County Corporation Counsel 



Early Voting Plan 

No later than 120 days before the first statewide or federal election in each even numbered year, the 

coordinator is responsible for ensuring an Early Voting Plan, covering the parties to the County Agreement, is 

filed with the County Clerk of the county.    

Not less than 45 days before the first early voting day allowed by statute, the coordinator will be responsible 

for providing the Secretary of State any changes made to a previously submitted Early Voting Plan that affect 

the locations, dates, and hours of operation for each joint early voting site operated by the participating 

county and municipalities. This will ensure that the correct information is posted on the Michigan Voter 

Information Center (MVIC) portion of the Department of State’s website.  

Plan Coverage: County Agreement  

Coordinator of County Agreement:  

County: 

Municipalities: 

Name of Municipality Clerk of Municipality # Precincts Registered Voters 

City of Chelsea Lyn Sebestyen 2 4763 

City of Dexter Justin Breyer 3 3606 

City of Saline Terri Royal 4 7730 

City of Ypsilanti Aaron Smith 10 17184 

Ann Arbor Charter Township Rena Basch 2 4124 

Augusta charter Township Kimberly Gonczy 3 6137 

Dexter Township Michelle Stamboulellis 3 5756 

Freedom Township Valisa Bristle 1 1272 

Lima Township Teresa Reynhout 2 3397 

Lodi Township Christina Smith 3 5340 

Lyndon Township Linda Reilly 1 2280 

Manchester Township Danell Proctor 2 4230 

Northfield Township Kathleen Manley 3 7237 

Pittsfield Charter Township Michelle Anzaldi 13 29726 

Salem Twp Del Wensley 3 5863 

Saline Township Kelly Marion 1 1991 

Scio Township Jessica Flintoft 8 15021 

Sharon Township Michelle Mrocko 1 1667 

Charter Township of Superior Lynette Findley 5 12448 

Name of Coordinator Position Email Address Phone Number 

Edward 
Golembiewski 

Washtenaw County 
Director of Elections 

golembiewskie@washtenaw.org 734-222-6730

Name of county Clerk of County

Washtenaw Lawrence Kestenbaum

mailto:golembiewskie@washtenaw.org


Sylvan Township Amanda Nimke 1 3052 

Webster Township Barbara Calleja 3 5877 

York Township Kayleigh Zupi 3 6067 

Ypsilanti Township Heather Jarrell Roe 19 46371 

Early Voting Location Information: 

Early voting site #1 Early voting site #2 Early voting site #3 Early voting site #4 Early voting site #5 Early Voting Site #6

Region # 1 2 3 4 5 All

Location of site Tentatively 14 A 
District Court 

Scio Township Hall Ypsilanti City 
Freight house 

Pittsfield Township 
Admin. Building 

Ypsilanti Township 
Civic Center 

Washtenaw County 
Learning Resource 
Center 

Municipalities 
served at site 

Regional site: City 
of Chelsea, City of 
Manchester 
(contingent upon 
adoption of 
charter), Dexter 
Township, 
Freedom 
Township, Lima 
Township, Lyndon 
Township, 
Manchester 
Township, Sharon 
Township, Sylvan 
Township 

Regional site: City 
of Dexter, Ann 
Arbor Township, 
Northfield 
Township, Scio 
Township, Webster 
Township 

Regional site: City 
of Ypsilanti, Salem 
Township, Superior 
Township 

Regional site: City 
of Saline, Lodi 
Township, 
Pittsfield 
Township, Saline 
Township, York 
Township 

Regional site: 
Augusta Township, 
Ypsilanti Township 

Central site: All 23 
cities and 
townships subject 
to this agreement  

Number of 
Election 
Inspectors at site 

8 8 8 10 10 10

Is this an EV site 
for all 9 days of 
Constitutionally-
required early 
voting? (Y/N) 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Hours for 9 days 
of 
Constitutionally-
required early 
voting  

9am – 5pm 9am – 5pm 9am – 5pm 9am – 5pm 9am – 5pm 9am – 5pm

How many (if any) 
additional days of 
early voting will 
be provided at 
this site? 

0 0 0 0 0 0

Is this site ADA 
compliant? 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

In selecting this 
site, did you take 
into account 
expected turnout, 
population 
density, public 
transportation, 
accessibility, 
travel time, travel 
patterns, and any 
other relevant 
considerations? 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes



Early Voting Equipment Information: 

Early voting site #1 Early voting site #2 Early voting site #3 Early voting site #4 Early voting site #5 Early Voting Site #6

Number of 
tabulators at site 

1 2 2 2 2 4

Municipality 
responsible for 
providing 
tabulators 

County County County County County County

Number of early 
voting poll book 
laptops 

2 2 2 2 2 4

Municipality 
responsible for 
providing early 
voting poll book 
laptops 

County County County County County County

Clerk responsible 
for taking 
necessary steps to 
set up the early 
voting poll book 
laptops 

County County County County County County

Communication Strategy: 

Initial written notification of early voting site locations and hours of availability to be sent via USPS mail to voters, as 

required by Public Act 81 of 2023, will be coordinated by Washtenaw County and funded by participating municipalities.  

Washtenaw County will develop and implement a communication and outreach strategy that notifies voters of early 

voting options, locations, hours, and other information prior to each election covered by this agreement/plan. This 

strategy will include but is not limited to the following methods of outreach: publication of public notices; development 

& maintenance of a dedicated County webpage for early voting; social media engagement (for example Facebook, 

Instagram, X/Twitter, NextDoor); traditional media engagement (for example media releases, interviews, press 

conferences); presentations and keynote addresses at public and/or nonpartisan events; partnerships with public and/or 

nonprofit agencies, faith communities, social service agencies, clubs, and student organizations; and other methods as 

determined by the County.   

Washtenaw County will create relevant content to be shared with municipalities for voter educations/outreach 

purposes. 

Municipalities agree to conduct early voting outreach/education to voters within their municipalities through methods 

including but not limited to publishing information on their public website; within municipal newsletters (as available); 

through municipally controlled social media (as available); and other methods as determined by the municipality. 

Early Voting Site Supervisors: 

Site Supervisors will be appointed by the County Clerk prior to each election.  

Early voting site #1 Early voting site #2 Early voting site #3 Early voting site #4 Early voting site #5 Early Voting Site #6

Early Voting Day 
1-9 

City/Township 
Clerk, Deputy, or 
County Clerk staff 

City/Township 
Clerk, Deputy, or 
County Clerk staff 

City/Township 
Clerk, Deputy, or 
County Clerk staff 

City/Township 
Clerk, Deputy, or 
County Clerk staff 

City/Township 
Clerk, Deputy, or 
County Clerk staff 

City/Township 
Clerk, Deputy, or 
County Clerk staff 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



 

 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

To:  Heather Jarrell Roe, Township Clerk 
  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 

From:  Jason Iacoangeli AICP, Planning Director  
 

Re: Homrich - Gault Village Demolition Contract Change Order #2  
 

Date:  September 26, 2023 
 
Review: 
On June 23, 2023, the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees approved a change order from Homrich in the 
amount of $205,251.50 to cover the cost of removing additional materials found inside the buildings once 
the buildings had been opened up to the elements.  The additional materials included the removal of 
carpeting inside some of the units.  During the removal of the carpeting a skid steer damaged a cement 
subfloor.  What was found to be underneath the cement floor was additional black mastic that tested 
positive for Asbestos Containing Materials (ACM).  At the time the contractor felt it prudent to remove 
the material without delay to the schedule as Change Order #1 had led to a delay in abatement for several 
weeks prior to approval.  At this time Homrich is seeking to recoup the costs of the additional abatement 
that was found through accidental discovery.   
 
Recommendation: 
Included with this memo you will find a letter from Jason C. Lafayette from SME that explains the need 
for the change order to remove additional material from the building that was not realized until a cement 
sub-floor was damaged by a skid steer during carpet removal revealing additional asbestos material.  In 
order to keep the project moving Homrich moved forward with the additional abatement and is now 
seeking to be reimbursed for the additional expense.  Also, you will find a copy of the Change Order for 
Additional Quantities dated September 12, 2023 from Homrich.  
 
After review of the request from Homrich and the description of the discovery the Planning Department 
and Building Department are recommending approval of the change order to cover the cost of the 
removal of additional quantities of asbestos containing material from Homrich in the amount of 
$21,038.00 pending a budget amendment to line item 101-729-806.091     
 
Staff and SME will be available the night of the Board of Trustees meeting to answer any specific questions 
that you might have regarding the change order for additional asbestos and non-asbestos material 
removal Gault Village.   

 
                                                                              
Jason Iacoangeli, AICP        
Planning Director                                                                                          
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                                      



Memo+090700.02+09182023  1 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Mr. Jason Iacoangeli, Charter Township of Ypsilanti (jiacoangeli@ypsitownship.org) 
 Ms. Brenda Stumbo, Charter Township of Ypsilanti (bstumbo@ypsitownship.org) 
 
FROM: Jason Lafayette 
 
DATE: September 18, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Homrich Payment Application and Change Order #2 
 Gault Village Shopping Center Abatement and Demolition 

1005 Emerick Street, Ypsilanti Township, Michigan 
SME Project No.: 090700.02 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Enclosed are copies of a first payment application (Payment Application #1), and second change order 
request (Change Order #2), submitted by Homrich, Inc. (Homrich) for abatement and demolition services 
associated with the Gault Village Shopping Center in Ypsilanti Township, Michigan. 
 
Homrich’s base bid of $587,000.00 for abatement and demolition of the project site structures was 
approved by Ypsilanti Township on March 21, 2023.  During abatement activities at the project site, 
additional, previously concealed areas of asbestos-containing materials (ACMs) were discovered, which 
required removal to meet the project objective.  Homrich submitted a change order request (Change 
Order #1) for removal of the discovered materials, that was approved by Ypsilanti Township on June 26, 
2023.  Homrich’s Payment Application #1, dated September 14, 2023, in the amount of $376,043.72 
includes a request for payment of $233,100.00 for 100% completion of the base scope of hazardous 
materials removal, less 10% retainage; and $194,726.35 for 100% completion of the Change Order #1 
asbestos removal, less 10% retainage.  SME has reviewed the schedule of values and Payment 
Application #1 submitted by Homrich and concurs that the completion of project work supports the 
request for payment.  Additionally, as of the date of Homrich’s Payment Application #1, Homrich has also 
completed approximately 40% of the scope of demolition by razing the eastern site building, however, 
reimbursement for that effort was not requested in Payment Application #1. 
 
During asbestos abatement activities, two additional areas of asbestos-containing flooring materials were 
discovered also requiring removal to meet the project scope objective.  The first area included 300 square 
feet of tile and mastic located in Functional Space 1600.  The tile and mastic in this area were previously 
concealed by an elevated wooden cashier’s platform and were not exposed until interior demolition.  The 
second area consisted of 5,668 square feet of floor mastic that was covered by approximately ½ inch of 
cementitious floor leveling material, covered by carpet in Functional Space 1700.  Reimbursement for the 
removal of the carpet in Functional Space 1700 was previously requested at approved by the Township at 
a rate of $0.50/square foot as part of Change Order #1, however, the sub-floor mastic in this area was not 
exposed until subsequent, aggressive removal of the carpet using heavy machinery damaged the 
cementitious sub-floor, thus exposing the underlying mastic.  In an effort to stay on schedule for the 
project, Homrich did not de-mobilize their asbestos abatement staff and has already completed the 
referenced activities included in the Change Order #2 reimbursement request. 
 
The addition of Change Order # in the amount of $21,038.00 to the previously approved base contract 
and Change Order #1 results in a revised project sum of $813,289.50.  Please contact us if you have any 
questions regarding this request. 
 
Enclosures: Homrich Payment Application #1 

Homrich Change Order #2 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9F870740-75E5-47E0-AEC4-7A794FFD15C6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9F870740-75E5-47E0-AEC4-7A794FFD15C6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9F870740-75E5-47E0-AEC4-7A794FFD15C6



 

 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

To:  Heather Jarrell Roe, Township Clerk 
  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 

From:  Jason Iacoangeli AICP, Planning Director  
 

Re: SME – Abatement and Demolition Monitoring Services - Change Order #1 
 

Date:  September 27, 2023 
 
Review: 
 
On September 18, 2023, the Planning Department received a request from SME to modify the existing Abatement 
and Demolition Contract with Ypsilanti Township to include additional days to provide monitoring services for the 
Gualt Village Demolition project.  The original monitoring contract included 35 days of monitoring services (35 days 
@ $1,500.00/day) $52,500.00 and 35 days of project management for $16,000.00.  The original contract total being 
$68,500.00. 
 
As of the time of writing this letter SME has exhausted the original 35 days of monitoring and is now over 20 days 
for a total of 55 days of monitoring.  Change Order #1 would cover 20 days of monitoring that have been provided 
over the original contract and provide for 10 additional days of monitoring which SME feels will be sufficient to get 
to the projects close out.  The change order would also provide an additional $10,000.00 to cover the additional 30 
days of project management that also has been extended due to the project taking longer to complete than originally 
projected.  The 30 additional monitoring days will cost $45,000.00 which is 30 days @ $1,500.00.  The project 
administration is an additional $10,000.00 to cover an additional 30 days. The total amount of the change order to 
cover the additional effort will be $55,000.00.  This would bring the total SME contract amount to $123,500.00 for 
monitoring services.    
 
Recommendation: 
 
Included with this memo you will find a letter from Jason C. Lafayette from SME that explains the change order 
request and the additional effort that was required based on the additional abatement that was needed when 
Homrich uncovered additional asbestos containing materials within Gualt Village.  You will also find a detailed change 
order request prepared by SME.   
 
The Planning Department and Building Department have reviewed the request by SME to amend the contract to 
provide for additional monitoring days and project administration.  We recommend that Change Order #1 in the 
amount of $55,000.00 be approved subject to pending budget amendment 101-729-806.091.   
 
Staff and SME will be available the night of the Board of Trustees meeting to answer any specific questions that you 
might have regarding the change order for additional monitoring services for the Gault Village Demolition Project.     

 
__________________                                                                                
Jason Iacoangeli, AICP        
Planning Director                                                                                          
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                                      



Memo+090700.02+09182023  1 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Mr. Jason Iacoangeli, Charter Township of Ypsilanti (jiacoangeli@ypsitownship.org) 
 Ms. Brenda Stumbo, Charter Township of Ypsilanti (bstumbo@ypsitownship.org) 
 
FROM: Jason Lafayette 
 
DATE: September 18, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: SME Change Order #1 
 Gault Village Shopping Center Abatement and Demolition 

1005 Emerick Street 
Ypsilanti Township, Michigan 
SME Project No.: 090700.02 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Enclosed is SME’s Change Order #1 request for modification of our contract for abatement and 
demolition monitoring services, project management, and reporting associated with the Gault Village 
Shopping Center project in Ypsilanti Township, Michigan. 
 
At project inception, we requested budget to support site monitoring and project management and 
reporting for an estimated 35 workdays during abatement and demolition activities.  During project 
abatement activities several areas of concealed materials were discovered resulting in additional 
abatement effort and workdays. 
 
We prepared the attached SME Change Order #1 requesting approval of budget for the additional 
associated days of monitoring services.  The requested change order services will be billed on an as-
needed basis, in accordance with the previously agreed upon terms and conditions for the project. 
 
Please contact us if you have any questions. 
 
 
Enclosure: SME Change Order #1 



© 2023 SME 090700.02+091423+COR-1  1

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST 

REQUEST NO.: 1
43980 Plymouth Oaks Blvd, Plymouth, MI 48170-2584 DATE:  September 14, 2023
Phone: 734-454-9900 

CLIENT INFORMATION 
Contact: Jason Iacoangeli 
Company: Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Email Address: jiacoandeli@ytown.org
Address: 7200 S. Huron River Drive 
City: Ypsilanti Township State: MI Zip: 48197 
Phone: Cell: 734-544-3667 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
Project Name: Gault Village Shopping Center Monitoring 
City: Ypsilanti Township State: MI 
SME Project No.: 090700.02 
Client P.O. No.:  

This Change Order Request serves to confirm modifications to our scope of services for additional site days and project 
management to support hazardous materials abatement and demolition monitoring services at the project site. 

Task 1 – Daily Project Site Monitoring 

Previously approved budget for daily monitoring (35 days at $1,500/day) ......................................... $52,500.00

 Billed to date ..................................................................................................................... $38,940.00

 Remaining budget ............................................................................................................ $13,560.00

Task 2 – Project Administration and Reporting 

Previously approved budget for project administration and reporting (based on a 35-day schedule) .. $16,000.00

 Billed to date ....................................................................................................................... $9,138.80

 Remaining budget .............................................................................................................. $6,861.20

Total Contract Value .......................................................................................................... $68,500.00 

Total billed to date ............................................................................................................ $48,078.80 

Remaining approved budget ......................................................................................... $20,421.20 

Change order fees included in this Change Order #1: 

30 additional monitoring days @ $1,500/day  = $45,000 
Additional project management budget for 30 additional days of monitoring   = $10,000 

TOTAL CHANGE ORDER = $55,000 

Original Contract Fee: $68,500  Total Fees of Previous Change Orders: $0 

Fees for this Change Order: $55,000  New Total Fee: $123,500 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AC433F63-DE78-4511-98ED-CC577515CEAD



© 2023 SME 090700.02+091423+COR-1  2

All previously agreed upon terms and conditions remain in effect. 

CLIENT REPRESENTATIVE
I authorize the above services to be performed and agree to the additional fees. 

Signature  Date: 

Name: Jason Iacoangeli, AICP  Title: Planning Director 

SME

Signature  Signature 

PREPARED BY: Jason C. Lafayette REVIEWED BY: Troy D. Helmick, CPG 
Title: Senior Project Consultant  Title: Senior Project Consultant 

DocuSign Envelope ID: AC433F63-DE78-4511-98ED-CC577515CEAD



 

 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

To:  Heather Jarrell Roe, Township Clerk 
  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 

From:  Jason Iacoangeli AICP, Planning Director  
 

Re: Homrich - Contractor’s Payment Application #1 
 

Date:  September 26, 2023 
 
Review: 
 
On September 18, 2023, SME received a formal Contractor’s Application for Payment from Homrich (see 
attached) for the asbestos abatement work that has been 100% completed per the amended contract 
which includes Change Order #1.  At this time Homrich is asking to be paid $376,043.72.  This is the amount 
for the asbestos abatement which has been 100% completed at the amended contracted amount of 
$417,826.35 minus the retainage of ten (10%) percent of the completed work which is $41,782.64.  This 
leaves a balance of $416,207.79* as the balance to finish the project.   
 
*This amount will increase to $437,245.79 with the Change Order #2 for an increase of $21,038.00 for a 
total project sum of $813,289.50. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Included with this memo you will find a letter from Jason C. Lafayette from SME that explains the 
Contractors Application for Payment in further detail.  SME has reviewed the payment request against the 
contract and the work completed in the field and has certified that the work has been completed to the 
quality that is required per the contract and industry standards.     
 
After reviewing the First Contractor’s Application for Payment in the amount of $376,043.72 and the 
associated SME letter reviewing the request the Planning Department and Building Department are 
recommending approval of the payment by the Township Board of Trustees to Homrich for the asbestos 
abatement portion of the contract.   
 
Staff and SME will be available the night of the Board of Trustees meeting to answer any specific questions 
that you might have regarding the change order for additional asbestos and non-asbestos material 
removal Gault Village.   

 
__________________                                                                                
Jason Iacoangeli, AICP        
Planning Director                                                                                          
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                                      



Memo+090700.02+09182023  1 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Mr. Jason Iacoangeli, Charter Township of Ypsilanti (jiacoangeli@ypsitownship.org) 
 Ms. Brenda Stumbo, Charter Township of Ypsilanti (bstumbo@ypsitownship.org) 
 
FROM: Jason Lafayette 
 
DATE: September 18, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Homrich Payment Application and Change Order #2 
 Gault Village Shopping Center Abatement and Demolition 

1005 Emerick Street, Ypsilanti Township, Michigan 
SME Project No.: 090700.02 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Enclosed are copies of a first payment application (Payment Application #1), and second change order 
request (Change Order #2), submitted by Homrich, Inc. (Homrich) for abatement and demolition services 
associated with the Gault Village Shopping Center in Ypsilanti Township, Michigan. 
 
Homrich’s base bid of $587,000.00 for abatement and demolition of the project site structures was 
approved by Ypsilanti Township on March 21, 2023.  During abatement activities at the project site, 
additional, previously concealed areas of asbestos-containing materials (ACMs) were discovered, which 
required removal to meet the project objective.  Homrich submitted a change order request (Change 
Order #1) for removal of the discovered materials, that was approved by Ypsilanti Township on June 26, 
2023.  Homrich’s Payment Application #1, dated September 14, 2023, in the amount of $376,043.72 
includes a request for payment of $233,100.00 for 100% completion of the base scope of hazardous 
materials removal, less 10% retainage; and $194,726.35 for 100% completion of the Change Order #1 
asbestos removal, less 10% retainage.  SME has reviewed the schedule of values and Payment 
Application #1 submitted by Homrich and concurs that the completion of project work supports the 
request for payment.  Additionally, as of the date of Homrich’s Payment Application #1, Homrich has also 
completed approximately 40% of the scope of demolition by razing the eastern site building, however, 
reimbursement for that effort was not requested in Payment Application #1. 
 
During asbestos abatement activities, two additional areas of asbestos-containing flooring materials were 
discovered also requiring removal to meet the project scope objective.  The first area included 300 square 
feet of tile and mastic located in Functional Space 1600.  The tile and mastic in this area were previously 
concealed by an elevated wooden cashier’s platform and were not exposed until interior demolition.  The 
second area consisted of 5,668 square feet of floor mastic that was covered by approximately ½ inch of 
cementitious floor leveling material, covered by carpet in Functional Space 1700.  Reimbursement for the 
removal of the carpet in Functional Space 1700 was previously requested at approved by the Township at 
a rate of $0.50/square foot as part of Change Order #1, however, the sub-floor mastic in this area was not 
exposed until subsequent, aggressive removal of the carpet using heavy machinery damaged the 
cementitious sub-floor, thus exposing the underlying mastic.  In an effort to stay on schedule for the 
project, Homrich did not de-mobilize their asbestos abatement staff and has already completed the 
referenced activities included in the Change Order #2 reimbursement request. 
 
The addition of Change Order # in the amount of $21,038.00 to the previously approved base contract 
and Change Order #1 results in a revised project sum of $813,289.50.  Please contact us if you have any 
questions regarding this request. 
 
Enclosures: Homrich Payment Application #1 

Homrich Change Order #2 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9F870740-75E5-47E0-AEC4-7A794FFD15C6



 

Homrich, Inc. PROJECT: Gault Village Shopping  Center 1

09/14/23

09/15/23

23003

MAIL TO: 23003

Homrich 04/21/23

200 Matlin Road

Carleton, MI 48117     

CONTRACT FOR:                

Application is made for payment, as shown below, in connection with the Contract.
Continuation Sheet, AIA Document G703, is attached.

1. 587,000.00$              
2. 205,251.50$              Homrich Inc.

3. 792,251.50$              
4. 417,826.35$              
        Michigan

5.
a. 10 41,782.64$           

b. -$                     

41,782.64$                
6. 376,043.72$              

7. -$                          

8. 376,043.72$              
9. 416,207.79$              

ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS

205,251.50$         -$                          

-$                          

TOTALS 205,251.50$         -$                          

NET CHANGES by Change Order 205,251.50$              

TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAGE 

CONTRACTOR

CONTRACT DATE:

PROJECT NO:

PERIOD TO:

1005 Emerick St.,                

Ypsilanti Township, MI 

48198

% of Completed Work                   

% of Stored Material                      
(Column D + E on G703)

(Column F on G703)

TOTAL COMPLETED & STORED TO DATE
CONTRACT SUM TO DATE (Line 1 & Line 2) 
Net change by Change Orders 

RETAINAGE:
(Column G on G703)

figures on this Application and on the Continuation Sheet that changed to conform to

Total approved this Month SITE CHG ORDER

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

x

x

CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT

AMOUNT CERTIFIED $

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

Total changes approved in previous months by owner the amount certified.)

comprising this application, the Construction Manager and Engineer certify to the 

Date:

Distribution to:

(Attach explanation if amount certified differs from the amount applied for.  Initial all

In accordance with the Contract Documents, based on on-site observations and the data

APPLICATION DATE:

APPLICATION NO:

The undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge,
information and belief the Work covered by this Application for Payment has been 
completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, that all amounts have been paid
by the Contractor for Work for which previous Certificates for Payment were issued and 
payments received from the Owner, and that current payment shown herein is now due.

(Line 3 less Line 6)

CONTRACTOR:TO 

ENGINEER

ARCHITECT

OWNER

OTHER

Total Retainage (Lines 5a + 5b or Total in Column I of G703) 

(Line 4 less Line 5 Total)

LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT
(Line 6 from prior Certificate) 

CURRENT PAYMENT DUE
BALANCE TO FINISH, INCLUDING RETAINAGE   

ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM 

prejudice to any rights of the Owner or Contractor under this Contract.
Contractor named herein. Issuance, payment and acceptance of payment are without

PAGE 1  OF 2 PAGES

State of:
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 

Notary Public:
My Commission expires:

This Certificate is not negotiable.  The AMOUNT CERTIFIED is payable only to the

HOMRICH PROJECT NO:

By: Date:

Documents, and the Contractor is entitled to payment of the AMOUNT CERTIFIED.
progressed as indicated, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract
Owner that to the best of their  knowledge, information and belief the Work has 

09/18/23

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9F870740-75E5-47E0-AEC4-7A794FFD15C6

9/18/2023

376,043.72



1

9/14/2023

9/15/2023

23003

23,003

A B C D E F G H I

RETAINAGE

1 Base Scope Hazardous Material Removal 259,000.00$            233,100.00$            -$                         233,100.00$            90.00% 25,900.00$              23,310.00$              

2 Change Order 1  Asbestos Abatement 205,251.50$            184,726.35$            -$                         184,726.35$            90.00% 20,525.15$              18,472.64$              

4 Building Demolition 328,000.00$            -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% 328,000.00$            -$                         

5 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

6 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

7 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

8 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

9 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

10 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

11 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

12 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

13 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

14 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

15 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

16 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

17 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

18 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

19 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

20 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

21 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

22 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

23 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

24 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

25 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

26 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

27 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

28 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

29 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

30 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

31 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

32 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

33 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

34 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

35 -$                         -$                         -$                         0.00% -$                         -$                         

GRAND TOTALS 792,251.50$            -$                         417,826.35$            -$                         417,826.35$            52.74% 374,425.15$            41,782.64$              

10%FROM 

PREVIOUS 

APPLICATION 

(D+E)

THIS PERIOD

SCHEDULED 

VALUE

WORK COMPLETEDITEM 

NO.

MATERIALS 

PRESENTLY 

STORED (NOT 

IN D OR E)

TOTAL 

COMPLETED 

AND STORED 

TO DATE 

(D+E+F)

%                      

(G ÷ C)

BALANCE TO 

FINISH            (C 

- G)

DESCRIPTION OF WORK

CONTINUATION SHEET   PAGE 2  OF 2  PAGES

HOMRICH PROJECT NO:

APPLICATION NO:

APPLICATION DATE:

PERIOD TO:

PROJECT NO:

APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT,

Use Column I on Contracts where variable retainage for line items may apply.

containing Contractor's signed certification is attached.

In tabulations below, amounts are stated to the nearest dollar.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9F870740-75E5-47E0-AEC4-7A794FFD15C6



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From: Karen Wallin 
 Human Resource Manager 
 
Date: September 27, 2023 
 
Subject: Request approval of the “Draft” job descriptions for “Assistant Municipal Services 

Director” and “Recreation Specialist” and request to post and fill both positions. 
 
As previously discussed with the Board, upon John Hines being awarded the Municipal Services 
Director job, a review of the departments falling under that position (Recreation, Residential 
Services, and Parks) occurred, and this request is part of the recommendations being brought 
forward.   
 
Assistant Municipal Services Director 
 
A summary of the duties of the Assistant Municipal Services Director include: 
 

• Serve as Municipal Services Director in his/her absence. 

• Serve as back-up for capital improvement projects. 

• Assist with motor fleet, developing and maintaining maintenance program and prepare 
motor fleet budget. 

• Serve as back-up for all contracted services (Mechanical Systems, HVAC units, Fuel 
System, Elevators, etc). 

• Supervises all maintenance employees including full-time, part-time, and seasonals. 

• Oversee day-to-day workflow addressing maintenance and repair of Township parks, 
grounds/properties, and building. 

 
This would be a non-union position with a salary of $75,000/yr. 
 
  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 

Recreation Specialist 
 
A summary of the duties of the Recreation Specialist include: 
 

• Serve as lead staff person for Recreation software. 

• Collaborate with Recreation Staff to create a comprehensive marketing plan for the 
Department. 

• Develop and implement new programs for Department. 

• Create program service evaluation making sure the needs of the community are being 
met. 

• Assist the Community Events Manager with special events as needed. 

• Provide park rental information to Community Events Manager adhering to established 
policy and procedures. 

• Assist with supervision and scheduling of Building Attendants and program staff. 
 
This position would be a TEAMSTER position with a starting salary of $45,000/yr. 
 
These positions along with the Recreation Services Manager and Community Event Manager 
complete the re-organization of the Recreation, Residential Services and Parks Departments, 
and we look forward to seeing the positive affect these changes will have on services provided 
to Township residents.  
 
Your consideration in the matter is appreciated.  Should you have any additional questions, 
please contact me at 734-544-3741 or kwallin@ypsitownship.org.    
 
 

 



  

 

 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI - MUNICIPAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

Municipal Services Director                   
Vendor Contracts                     

RFP's                                       

Etc.

Clerical Staff

(2)

Janitorial Staff 

(4)

Building Operations

(2)

Parks Crew

(5)

Rec Coordinator  

Sports

Sports Aide

Recreation Dept.    

Seasonal Workers

Recreation Specialist 

Rec = 75%

Comm. Events = 25%

Rec Coordinator 

50&Beyond

Recreation Department.

Building Attendants

and Custodial Staff

(6)

GOGC Seasonal 

Workers

(8-10)

GOGC Seasonal 

Workers

(10-12)
Seasonal          Workers

(12-15)

GOGC Assistant        

Golf Superintendent

GOGC Assistant        

Golf Pro

Green Oaks                    

Golf Superintendent

Green Oaks               

Golf Pro
Asst. MSD  Director Rec. Services Manager

Park Rangers

Opener/Closer

(4-6)

Township Park Rentals

Community Events 

Manager

Senior Aide

Gate Staff

(12-15)

Special Events



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

ASSISTANT MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR 
Non-Union Position 
  
Summary 
   
Responsible for managing and overseeing maintenance and upkeep operations for Township parks, 
buildings, properties/grounds, and landscaped areas.  Act as Assistant to the Municipal Services 
Director and serve as Director in his/her absence. 
 
Supervision Received 
 
Under the general supervision of the Director of Municipal Services, this employee conducts ongoing 
activities with considerable independence according to established practices and policy and is held 
accountable for results.  The work is checked through periodic inspections, feedback of residents and 
visitors, and review of reports. 
 
Supervision Exercised 
 
Supervises all maintenance employees including crew leaders, laborers, mechanic/equipment operator, 
maintenance technicians, custodians, seasonal park maintenance workers, and others as assigned. 
 
Responsibilities and Duties 
An employee in this position may do any or all of the following essential duties. (These examples do not include all of the 
duties the employee maybe expected to perform.) 
 
1. Assign and oversee day-to-day workflow of employees engaged in maintenance and repair of 

Township parks, grounds/properties, and buildings.  
 
2. Inspect parks, grounds, shelters, and buildings to determine maintenance needs and to detect and 

resolve problems. 
 
3. Provide technical guidance and training to employees as needed to improve work performance and 

acquaint employees with policy and safety procedures. 
 
4. Drafts and implements routine maintenance schedules and standards; ensures all equipment and 

machinery are maintained in accordance with these standards.  
 
5. Oversee and monitor equipment and supply needs, placing orders when necessary, staying within 

the approved budgetary limits. 
 
6. Document and prepare progress reports and maintenance logs to assist with cost analysis and budget 

development.  
 
7. Investigate and respond to residential inquiries and concerns regarding maintenance issues of 

Township parks, grounds, and buildings, etc. 



ASSISTANT MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR – Page 2 
 
Responsibilities and Duties (cont’d) 

 
8. Demonstrate continuous effort to assure entrances to Township parks and facilities are maintained 

(including playground inspections, landscaping, condition of sidewalks and parking lots), while 
meeting the townships expected standard of safety and cleanliness. 

 
9. Demonstrate continuous effort to improve maintenance operations, and work cooperatively and 

jointly with other staff to provide quality seamless customer service. 
 

10. Collaborates regularly with the Director of Municipal Services to identify renovation or 
construction needs. 

 
11. Serve as back-up to Municipal Services Director for capital improvement projects. 

 
12. Assist with developing Municipal Services Department budgets and projects for Township Board 

approval. 
 

13. Maintain safety and training records assuring necessary memberships and licenses, etc. are received 
and maintained.  

 
14. Serve as the Municipal Services Director in his/her absence. 

 
15. Assist Municipal Services Director with motor fleet vehicles including developing and maintaining 

preventative maintenance program and preparing motor fleet budget. 
 

16. Serve as back-up to Township’s contracted services for the following areas and respond to alarms 
as needed: 

 
• Mechanical, door lock/card access, security systems and cameras 
• HVAC units 
• Fuel System 
• Building/Grounds 
• Parking Lots (pavement and lighting) 
• Elevators 

 
17. Perform other related duties as assigned. 
 
 
Essential Functions, Qualifications and KSA’s for Employment 
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skills, abilities and minimum qualifications necessary to perform 
the essential functions of the position.  These requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and 
requesting such accommodations.  
 
 
• Considerable knowledge of procedures, practices, materials, and operation of equipment utilized 

in the maintenance and repair of buildings, facilities, and grounds/parks.  
• Maintenance knowledge to develop and maintained attractive township parks/grounds, buildings, 

and facilities. 
  



ASSISTANT MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR – Page 3 
 
Essential Functions, Qualifications and KSA’s for Employment (con’t) 
 
• Draft and implement routine maintenance schedules and standards; ensures compliance with these 

standards. 
• Knowledge of MIOSHA safety practices to minimize injury and property damage at Township 

facilities. 
• Leadership skill to establish and maintain effective working relationships with public officials, 

employees, and the public. 
• Ability to compile and analyze data and to professional present facts and recommendations 

effectively in written and oral form. 
• Ability to compute project material, manpower and equipment needs. 
• Ability to comprehend complex issues, to identify alternative solutions, and prepare appropriate 

recommendations. 
• Ability to plan, coordinate and supervise the activities of several employees engaged in a variety 

of maintenance duties. 
• Ability to prioritize tasks and delegate when appropriate. 
• Bachelor Degree in Business Administration or related field preferred.  Any combination of 

education and experience that provides knowledge to perform the essential duties of the job may 
be substituted for degree. Must have a minimum of five years supervisory experience. 

• Must possess a valid Michigan driver license and have a good driving record. 
• Employee must be available to work flexible hours including evenings and weekends as needed. 
 
Physical Demands and Work Environment  
The physical demands and work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters 
while performing the essential functions of the job. These requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals 
requiring and requesting such accommodations.  
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee may spend periods sitting at a desk and 
working on a computer.  Employee will stand, walk, crawl, carry, climb, and maneuver where 
physical mobility is required. The employee is exposed to all weather conditions including 
temperature extremes.  Exposure to muddy, ice, and uneven terrain, noxious weeds, odors and noise. 
 
Drafted 9/5/2023 
Wage: $75,000  



 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RECREATION SPECIALIST 
TEAMSTERS Position 
 
Summary 
 
Participates and assists in providing excellent customer service to Township residents through 
recreation initiatives and goals, facility management, marketing, and recreation programming.  
 
Supervision Received 
 
Employee works under the direct supervision of the Community Services Manager. 
 
Supervision Exercised 
 
Employee assists Community Services Manager with supervision and scheduling of the Building 
Attendants and any assigned program staff.  
 
Responsibilities and Duties  
An employee in this position may do any or all the following essential duties. (These examples do not include all 
the duties the employee maybe expected to perform.) 

 
1.  Accept program registration and facility reservations including collection of fees, reports and 

user communication as directed by Recreation Services Manager. 
 

2.  Provide assistance with schedule usage of assigned facilities, provide information and 
assistance to users of facilities, explain policies and procedures of facility use, monitor and 
inspect assigned facilities and schedule maintenance of facilities.   

 
3.  Maintains knowledge of and is the lead staff person for the recreation software being used, 

with the ability to assist customers in person or over the phone.   
 

4.  Provides excellent customer service for walk-ins or calls. 
 

5.  Primary purchaser for department including ordering and maintaining recreation equipment 
and supplies.  Responsible for ordering recreation program equipment, and special event 
supplies. 

 
6.  Collaborate with Recreation Services Manager and Recreation Coordinators to create a 

comprehensive marketing plan for the recreation department to meet the needs of the 
community.  Including, but not limited to content creation, social media account management 
and local media relations. 

 
7.  Assist in marketing efforts including creative design, social media, press releases, newsletters, 

Township magazines and more. 
 

  



 

 

Recreation Specialist – Page 2 
 
Responsibilities and Duties (con’t) 

 
8.  Develop and implements program and service evaluations for all programs, events, camps and 

facility rentals facilitated by the recreation department.   
 
9.  Assist the Community Events Manager with special events as needed. 

 
10.  Provide the Community Events Manager with all information on Township Park Rentals, 

adhering to established policies and procedures. 
 

11.  Perform additional duties as assigned. 
 
 

Essential Functions, Qualifications, and KSA’s for Employment 
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skills, abilities and minimum qualifications necessary to 
perform the essential functions of the position.  These requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals 
requiring and requesting such accommodations.  
 
 

• Knowledge of the professional principles, practices and techniques used to complete work 
related to recreation programs and facilities. 

• Knowledge of rules, supplies, equipment and facilities applied or utilized in recreation 
programs, sporting leagues, tournaments and special events. 

• Assist in developing, coordinating, and evaluating a broad range of recreational 
programming for diverse population and age groups. 

• Skill in organizing schedules and coordinating associated resources. 
• Ability to work independently or with limited supervision  
• Skill in maintaining a comprehensive records keeping system, compiling statistics, 

generating reports and developing programming recommendations. 
• Ability to establish effective working relationships and use good judgment, initiative and 

resourcefulness when dealing with fellow employees, seasonal and volunteer staff, 
program participants, vendors/sponsors, other governmental agencies and the public. 

• Must possess excellent writing and oral presentation skills. 
• One to two years of related experience including recreation programming preferred.  
• Bachelor’s Degree in Parks and Recreation, Sports Management, or related field preferred. 
• Must hold and maintain a valid Michigan driver’s license with a good driving record  
•  Employee must be available to work evenings and weekends. 
• Knowledge and experience with CivicRec software preferred. 

 
  



 

 

Recreation Specialist – Page 3 
 
 
Physical Demands and Work Environment  
The physical demands and work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee 
encounters while performing the essential functions of the job. These requirements may be accommodated for otherwise 
qualified individuals requiring and requesting such accommodations.  
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to communicate with 
others in person or by phone and view written documents.  The employee frequently is required 
to use hands to finger, handle, or feel and reach with hands and arms.  In the course of a typical 
day the employee is required to sit, stand and/or walk.  The employee frequently is required to be 
mobile in an office setting and outdoors, and use manual dexterity to type or enter data and write.  
The employee may occasionally be required to transport and lift equipment and supplies of light 
to moderate weight. 
 
 
Drafted: 9.18.2023 
Wage: $45,000   



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
To: Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From: Karen Wallin 
 Human Resource Manager 
 
Date: September 27, 2023 
 
Subject: Request approval of the “Draft” job description for “Human Resource Specialist”, 

and request to post and fill the non-union position budgeted in line item 101-270-
706-000 with a salary of $55,000/annually. 

 
I am seeking approval of the attached “Draft” job description for a “Human Resource 
Specialist” and request to fill a full-time position within the Human Resource Department that 
has been budgeted for the last few years. 
 
Approval of this job description and subsequently posting and filling this position is needed for 
succession planning for the Human Resource Department.  In addition to succession planning, 
this position would assist on a day-to-day basis with all HR functions.  As we prepare to begin 
union negotiations with the Fire Department still in 2023, and have 3 other contracts that 
expire in 2024, in addition to the day-to-day responsibilities, the workload for the HR 
Department is at a level that warrants an additional full-time staff member.   
 
Your consideration in the matter is appreciated.  Should you have any additional questions, 
please contact me at 734-544-3741 or kwallin@ypsitownship.org.    
 
 

 



 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES SPECIALIST 
Non-Union Position 
  
Summary 
   
Responsible for performing Human Resources related duties at a professional level and may carry out 
responsibilities in the following areas:  Employee benefits, payroll, health and safety, recruiting and 
employment, employment relations, training, and policy development.  Attention to detail, excellent 
customer service, and ability to maintain full and complete confidentially of all employee information 
and Township records. 
 
Supervision Received 
 
Works under the supervision of the Human Resource Manager, however, the employee must use 
initiative, discretion, and specialized knowledge in the attainment of desired objectives. 
 
Responsibilities and Duties 
An employee in this position may do any or all of the following essential duties. (These examples do not include all of the 
duties the employee maybe expected to perform.) 
 
1. Assist with benefit administration including enrollments, changes, terminations, reconcile benefit 

statements, open enrollment, and communicating benefit information to employees. 
 
2. Process required documents through payroll and insurance providers to ensure accurate record-

keeping and proper deductions.  
 

3. Assist in the development and implementation of personnel policies and procedures. 
 

4. Collaborate with department managers to understand skills and competencies required for open 
positions and assist with recruitment and interview process.  

 
5. Track status of candidates, respond with follow-up letters at the end of the recruiting process. 

 
6. Assist new hires with completion of payroll documentation including I-9 forms verifying 

documentation and maintain I-9 files. 
 

7. Plan and conducts new employee orientation. 
 

8. Responds to inquiries regarding policies, procedures, and union contracts. 
 

9. Complete and respond to wage and compensation surveys. 
 

10. Gather, review and input timesheets for payroll purposes.  Maintain employee time records. 
 

11. Assist Accounting Department with budget preparation. 
  



 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES SPECIALIST – Page 2 
 
12. Maintains a concise and comprehensive filing system, including handling of confidential 

documents. 
 

13. Assist or prepare correspondence as requested. 
 
 
Essential Functions, Qualifications and KSA’s for Employment 
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skills, abilities and minimum qualifications necessary to perform 
the essential functions of the position.  These requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals requiring and 
requesting such accommodations.  
 

• Ability to critically assess situations and maintain confidentiality in daily operations. 
• Conduct daily duties in a professional manner. 
• Knowledge of applicable local, state, and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 
• Knowledge of the professional principles, practices, and techniques of HR 
• Ability to gather data, conduct research, prepare accurate records, reports, notices, memos, and 

letters. 
• Strong communication skills:  Verbal, written, and presentation. 
• Proficiency with Microsoft Office software applications 
• Strong organizational skills and the ability to complete multiple tasks within established and 

changing deadlines. 
• Must have attention to detail. 
• Must be a proven self-starter with the ability to work in a team environment. 
• Two or more years of experience in human resources, preferably with some experience in a 

municipality. 
• Bachelor’s degree in Human Resources or related field; or any combination of education and 

experience that provides knowledge to perform the essential duties of the job may be substituted 
for degree. 

 
Physical Demands and Work Environment  
The physical demands and work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters 
while performing the essential functions of the job. These requirements may be accommodated for otherwise qualified individuals 
requiring and requesting such accommodations.  
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to talk, hear, and 
communicate with others in person, by phone and/or through electronic devices and review and 
produce written and electronic documents.  The employee frequently is required to use hands to 
handle or feel and to reach with hands and arms.  The employee is required to sit, stand, walk, stoop, 
and kneel.  The employee must occasionally lift and/or move items of light weight.  Employee will be 
required to sit for long periods of time. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee typically works in a business office setting.  
The noise level in the work environment can range from quiet to moderately loud. 
 
Drafted 9/2023 
Wage: $55,000  



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
CC:  Steve Agdorny, Special Projects Manager 
 
Date:  September 27, 2023 
 
RE: Request Authorization to approve OHM Advisors to provide professional 

services related to the Carport Rebuilding Project for the Ypsilanti 
Township Civic Center. 

 
The Municipal Services Department is looking for authorization to approve OHM Advisors to 
provide professional services related to the Civic Center Carport rebuild for $51,400, which is 
contingent on a budget amendment in GL#101-901-975.107.  
 
OHM is being requested to oversee this project as a result of the preliminary work they have 
taken over the last few months for the design of the carport.  The carport, which was damaged in 
March due to sever weather conditions had to be fully removed at that time.  With it’s removal, a 
portion of the vehicle fleet is now affected by adverse weather.  There have been ongoing 
communication between Staff  and OHM on the scope of work that needs to be done for the 
rebuild.  As a result of those discussions, the decision was made that due to the full scope of 
work needed, professional engineering is necessary to oversee the project.     
 
Deliverables: 
 
Task 1: Design and Bidding Documents 
 
Task 2: Bid Tabulation 
 
Task 3: Quality Assurance/Testing Reports 
 
Task 4: Quality Assurance and Inspector Daily Reports 
 
 
Attached is the proposal from OHM. 
 
John Hines 
Municipal Services Director 











 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
Ryan Hunter 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:   Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:   John Hines, Municipal Services Director 
 
Date:   September 27, 2023 
 
 
RE:   Request to waive Financial Policy’s initial authorization from Board to seek 

bids and review the three quotes obtained proactively and to accept the low 
quote from Weingartz for the purchase and installation of three Snowplows 
in the amount of $24,742.50 budgeted in line 661-268-985.000 

 
The Residential Services Department is requesting to waive the portion of the financial policy 
which requires seeking sealed bids and to accept the low quote of $24,742.50 from Weingartz to 
approve the purchase and installation of three Snowplows. 
 
At the June 20th Board of Trustees Meeting, it was approved for three Ford F-250’s to be 
purchased due to the age and wear on the current Parks and Grounds Fleeting.  The RSD is 
requesting the purchase of three plows to go on the new vehicles to be utilized for this upcoming 
winter when the vehicles are delivered.   
 
Weingartz was selected due to their reputation for quality work and being the lowest bid.  
 
The purpose of the three plows is for Snow Removal throughout the Township, especially at 
Township properties. 
 
Please see below for the quotes received during the process; 
 
Weingartz: $24,742.50 
Boullion Sales (Western): $25,340.97 
John Deere: $31,781.07 
 
John Hines 
Municipal Services Director 
jhines@ypsitownship.org 
734-351-8947 

mailto:jhines@ypsitownship.org










CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 13

October 3, 2023

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $127,438.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $21,038.00

Net Revenues $21,038.00

Expenditures: Blight Removal - Gault Village 101-729-806.091 $21,038.00

Net Expenditures $21,038.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $55,000.00

Net Revenues $55,000.00

Expenditures: Blight Removal - Gault Village 101-729-806.091 $55,000.00

Net Expenditures $55,000.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-699.999 $51,400.00

Net Revenues $51,400.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay - Carport 101-901-975.107 $51,400.00

Net Expenditures $51,400.00

Request to increase the budget for change order #2 in the amount of $21,038 due to additional quantities of carpet/tile/mastic located after 
removal of some of the cement sub-floor in one of the units at Gault Village. Homrich was awarded the base bid of $587,000 on April 4, 2023 
and change order #1 was approved for removal of asbestos found during demolition in the amount of $205,252 on June 20, 2023 . With 
change order #2 the total project will be $813,290. This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

Request to increase the budget for change order #1 in the amount for $55,000 to SME for the Gault Village Demolition for an additional 30 
days of service monitoring and 30 days and 30 days of project management, which extending past the initial contract of 35 days. This is 
necessary due to the delays with regard to the  hazardous materials abatement that occurred. This will be funded by an appropriation of 
prior year fund balance. 

Request to add a budget line for the capital outlay - Carport project and request to budget for professional service of OHM for design 
engineering and construction services. This will be funded by an appropriation of prior year fund balance. 

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2023 Budget (#13)  
 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $127,438 to $14,780,826 and approve 
the department line item changes as outlined. 

 



 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

 

 



 

 

Township Supervisor 
Brenda L. Stumbo 
Township Clerk 
Heather Jarrell Roe 
Township Treasurer 
Stan Eldridge 

Trustees 
Ryan Hunter 

John Newman II 
Gloria Peterson 

Debbie Swanson 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:      Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
From:  Brenda Stumbo, Township Supervisor 
 Stan Eldridge, Township Treasurer 
 
Date:   September 28, 2023 
 
RE:     Request authorization to seek bids for Cybersecurity Services for both employees  

and residents 
 
Ypsilanti Township has seen an uptick in residents victimized by cybersecurity threats. This is a 
national issue, and the Township wants to help educate residents on awareness, in the hopes to 
avoid falling victim to cyber-attacks.  

 
Our goal is to create a service where residents can sign up for cybersecurity education at no cost 
to them. Ypsilanti Township currently provides cyber education for employees, and this pilot 
program would bring the same opportunity to residents. The Township is looking for a company 
that will provide similar services to both employees and individual residents. Attached please 
find the RFP. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 



THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

 

CYBERSECURITY SERVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

 

 

 

 

 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
CYBERSECURITY SERVICES 

 

Sealed or digital proposals (via MITN/Bidnet) in response to this RFP addressed to the Clerk’s 
Department will be accepted until November 3, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. EST at 7200 S. Huron River 
Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 when bids will be publicly opened. All Requests for Proposals must 
be in the Ypsilanti Township’s possession on or before the scheduled date and time (no late RFP 
will be accepted).  

RFP documents can be obtained from the Township’s website at https://ytown.org/departments-
services/public-bid-postings or on the MITN/Bidnet at 
https://www.bidnetdirect.com/mitn/solicitations/open-bids/page1. Any questions about these 
Proposals may be directed to The Clerk’s Department at 734-544-4000 opt. 2.  

RFP responses received after the deadline will not be considered. The Township shall evaluate 
the RFP on the basis of technical ability, experience, and ability to perform the work and factors 
identified within the attached RFP solicitation.  

Ypsilanti Township reserves the right to refuse and reject any or all responses, waive any or all 
formalities or technicalities, accept the response or portions of the response determined to be the 
best value and most advantageous to the Township, and hold the responses for a period of 120 
days without taking action. Ypsilanti Township reserves the right to accept responses from more 
than one firm determined to be the best option for the Township. Respondents are required to 
hold their responses firm for the same period of time.  

All questions are due in writing no later than October 27, 2023.  

 

Hand-delivered & Courier Submissions: 
Clerks Department 

7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

LABELING INSTRUCTIONS: Envelopes must be clearly marked: 

YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
CYBERSECURITY SERVICES 

 
 
 
 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
SECTION 1: OBJECTIVES, AND BACKGROUND 

SECTION 2: NOTICE TO PROPOSERS 

SECTION 3: SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL 

SECTION 4: SCOPE OF WORK 

SECTION 5: PRICING AND DELIVERY SCHEDULE 

SECTION 6: PROPOSER’S QUESTIONNAIRE 

SECTION 7: EXECUTION OF OFFER 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



SECTION 1 
 

OBJECTIVES AND BACKGROUND 
 

1.1  Objectives of this Request for Proposal 
 

The Ypsilanti Township (“Township”) is soliciting proposals in response to this  
Request for Proposal (“RFP”) from contractors, hereafter referred to collectively  
as “Proposers,” to provide CYBERSECURITY SERVICES as more particularly 
described in Section 5 (Scope of Work) of this RFP. 

 
1.2 Description of Township 
 

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Michigan, is located east of Ann Arbor and west  
of Detroit along the I-94 corridor. Ypsilanti Township serves a population of  
approximately 58,000. Ypsilanti Township provides a full range of services,  
including fire protection, court services, recreational facilities and programming,  
golf, and solid waste services. The Township’s operational commitment is to  
provide reliable and excellent service to citizens at competitive prices and to guide  
responsible stewardship of Township resources. 

 
1.3 Project Background 
 

Ypsilanti Township has seen an uptick in residents victimized by cybersecurity threats. 
This is a national issue, and the Township wants to educate residents on awareness, in the 
hopes to avoid losing money through cyber criminals.  
 
Our goal is to create a service where residents can sign up for cybersecurity education at 
no cost to them. Ypsilanti Township currently provides cyber education for employees, 
and this pilot program would bring the same opportunity to residents. The Township is 
looking for a company that will provide similar services to both employees and 
individual residents. 

 
1.4  Term of Agreement 
 

If the Township enters into an Agreement as a result of this RFP, The Township  
anticipates the initial term of the Agreement will be for one (1) year (“Initial Term”),  
with the option, at the Township’s discretion, to extend the Contractor’s Services for   
two (2) additional terms of one (1) year each (each an “Extension Term”). The Initial  
Term and each Extension Term are collectively referred to as the “Term.” 

 
 
 



 
SECTION 2 

 
NOTICE TO PROPOSERS 

 
PROPOSER IS CAUTIONED TO READ THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN  
THIS RFP CAREFULLY AND TO SUBMIT A COMPLETE RESPONSE TO ALL  
REQUIREMENTS AND QUESTIONS AS DIRECTED. 
 
2.1  Submittal Deadline 

Proposals must be received by the Township on or before November 3, 2023 at 10:00 
a.m. EST must be delivered to: 

 
Proposals WILL be accepted in person, by United States Mail, by private courier  
service, or by submission through MITN. Proposals WILL NOT be accepted via  
oral communication, telephone, electronic mail, telegraphic transmission, or  
facsimile transmission. Proposals may be withdrawn prior to the above scheduled  
time set for closing. Alterations made before RFP closing must be initiated by  
respondents guaranteeing authenticity. Submittal of a response to this RFP  
constitutes an offer by the respondent. Once submitted, the Proposal becomes the  
property of Ypsilanti Township and as such the Township reserves the right to use  
any ideas contained in any response regardless of whether that respondent/firm is  
selected. Submission of a proposal in response to this solicitation, by any  
respondent, shall indicate that the respondent(s) has accepted the conditions  
contained in the RFP, unless clearly and specifically noted in the Proposal  
submitted and confirmed in the contract between the Township and the successful  
respondent. Proposals which do not comply with these requirements may be  
rejected at the option of the Township. No late Proposals will be accepted and will  
be returned to respondent unopened (if properly identified). Failure to meet RFP  
requirements may be grounds for disqualifying a proposal. 

 
2.2  Inquiries and Interpretations 

The Township specifically instructs all interested parties to restrict all contact and  
questions regarding this RFP to written communications forwarded to The Township 
Contact. The Township Contact must receive all questions or concerns no later than 
October 27, 2023. The Township will have a reasonable amount of time to respond to 
questions or concerns. It is the Township’s intent to respond to all appropriate questions 
and concerns; however, The Township reserves the right to decline to respond to any 
question or concern. Only Township responses that are made by formal written Addenda 
will be binding on the Township. Any verbal responses, written interpretations or 
clarifications other than Addenda to this RFP will be without legal effect. All Addenda 
issued by the Township prior to the submittal date will be and are hereby incorporated as 
part of this RFP for all purposes.  



 
2.3  RFP Contact Person 

Proposers will direct all questions, comments, or concerns regarding this RFP to  
the following Township contact (“Township Contact”): 

 
Lisa Stanfield 

Deputy Township Clerk 
7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Phone: (734) 544-4000 
E-mail: lstanfield@ypsitownship.org 

 
2.4  Public Information 

Township considers all information, documentation and other materials submitted in 
response to this RFP to be of a non-confidential and non-proprietary nature and shall be 
subject to public disclosure under the Michigan Freedom of Information Act after the 
award of an Agreement. 

 
2.5  Criteria for Selection 

The successful Proposer, if any, selected by The Township in accordance with the  
requirements and specifications set forth in this RFP will be the Proposer that  
submits a proposal in response to this RFP on or before the Submittal Deadline  
that is the most advantageous to The Township. The successful Proposer is 
referred to as the “Contractor.” Proposer is encouraged to propose terms and conditions 
offering the maximum benefit to The Township in terms of (1) services to the Township, 
(2) total overall cost to the Township, and (3) project management expertise. Proposers 
should describe all applicable discounts that may be available to The Township in a 
contract for the Services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
An evaluation team from The Township will evaluate proposals. The evaluation of proposals and 
the selection of Contractor will be based on the information provided by Proposer in its proposal. 
The Township may give consideration to additional information if the Township deems such 
information relevant. 
 
Based on the Evaluation Committee review, several firms may be short-listed, for further 
consideration and may be required to submit supplemental information and an interview or 
presentation. The Township reserves the right to reject all submissions. 
 
By submitting a proposal, Proposer acknowledges (1) Proposer's acceptance of [a] the Proposal 
Evaluation Process, [b] the Criteria for Selection, [c] the Scope of Work (ref. Section 4 of this 
RFP), [d] the terms and conditions of the Agreement, and [e] all other requirements and 
specifications set forth in this RFP; and (2) Proposer's recognition that some subjective 
judgments must be made by the Township during this RFP process. 
 
The criteria to be considered by The Township in evaluating proposals and selecting Contractor, 
will be those factors listed below with their relative weightings: 
 
2.5.1  Proposer’s Qualifications, Abilities, and Reputation: (30%) 
 

2.5.1.1 Proposer’s demonstrated competence and experience in providing the requested  
services, including the quality of Proposer’s references from past and present 
clients. 

 
2.5.1.2 The qualifications, education, and experience of the team members proposed by  

Proposer to conduct and supervise its services for the Township. 
 

2.5.1.3 Proposer’s past relationship with Ypsilanti Township, and Proposer’s experience  
performing the requested services for entities similar in nature. 
 

2.5.1.4 Proposer’s ability to perform the required services within the time periods  
projected, based on Proposer’s demonstrated capabilities, staffing, financial  
stability, and creative resources. 

 
2.6.1.5 Proposer’s demonstrated awareness of the present environments and likely future  

developments related to the requested services. 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
2.5.2  Quality of Proposed Services: (35%) 

 
2.5.2.1 The overall demonstrated quality of Proposers’ goods and/or services   

in accordance with the Scope of Work described in Section 5. 
2.5.2.2 Quality Assurance Plan 

 
2.5.3  Cost: (35%) 
 

The cost to the Township required to secure Proposer’s proposed Services, including any 
long-term costs. 

 
2.5.4  Responsiveness of Proposal 
 

The extent to which Proposer’s response relates to the specific environment, 
requirements, and needs of Township; the quality and level of substantive detail and 
clarity of content provided in Proposer’s response. 

 
2.5.5 Threshold Criteria Not Scored: 
 

(i) Ability of Township to comply with laws regarding Historically Underutilized  
Businesses; and 

(ii) Ability of Township to comply with laws regarding purchases from persons with  
disabilities. 

 
2.5.6 Supplemental Consideration.  
 

As a supplement to the above-described criteria, Township may give consideration to any 
additional information and documentation submitted by a Proposer if Township deems 
such information to be relevant, and to serve the best interests of, and provide the best 
value to, Township. 

 
2.6  Key Events Schedule 
 

Issuance of RFP    October 4, 2023 
Deadline for Questions/Concerns  October 27, 2023 
Submittal Deadline    November 3, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. ET 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 
SECTION 3M 

 
SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL  

 
3.1  Submission of Proposal 
 

3.1.1 Should the proposer choose to submit hard copies, in person, they shall submit  
two (2) identical copies of its entire proposal. An original signature by an  
authorized officer of Proposer must appear on the Execution of Offer (ref. Section 
7) of at least one (1) copy of the submitted proposal. The copy of the Proposer’s 
proposal bearing an original signature should contain the mark “original” on the 
front cover of the proposal. Should the proposer choose to submit virtually 
through the MITN process, please follow all processes and procedures laid out via 
the virtual submission experience. 
 

3.2  Preparation and Submittal Instructions 
 

3.2.1 Execution of Offer 
 
Proposer must complete, sign and return the attached Execution of Offer (ref. Section 7) 
as part of its proposal. The Execution of Offer must be signed by a representative of 
Proposer duly authorized to bind the Proposer to its proposal. Any proposal received 
without a completed and signed Execution of Offer may be rejected by the Township, in 
its sole discretion. 
 
3.2.2 Proposers Questionnaire  

 
Respondent shall provide responses to all the questions identified in the questionnaire in 
Section 6. 

 
3.2.3 Overview of Proposed System / Scope of Services  

 
This section of the proposal should include a general discussion of the proposer’s overall 
understanding of the project and the scope of work, as defined in Section 4, proposed. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
3.2.4 Sample Services 

 
Proposers should include samples of the services outlined in the scope of work 
(Section 5). Although they are samples, the documents must contain all material 
terms so that the Township can fairly evaluate the proposer’s forms. 

 
3.2.5  Cost Proposal 

 
Proposer must complete and return the Cost Proposal (ref. Section 5 of this RFP), 
as part of its proposal. In the Cost Proposal, the Proposer should describe in detail 
(a) the total fees for the entire scope of the Services; and (b) the method by which 
the fees are calculated. The fees must be inclusive of all associated costs for 
delivery, labor, insurance, taxes, overhead, and profit. 

 
The Township will not recognize or accept any charges or fees to perform the 
Services that are not specifically stated in the Cost Proposal. 

 
In the Cost Proposal, Proposer should describe each significant phase in the 
process of providing the Services to The Township, and the time period within 
which Proposer proposes to be able to complete each such phase. 

 
3.2.6  Additional Information 

 
1. Insurance Certificates 
2. Supplementary Information 
3. Other supporting materials and work portfolio which demonstrates the firm’s  

      work quality 
 
3.3  Proposal Validity Period 
 

Each proposal must state that it will remain valid for Township’s acceptance for a 
minimum of one hundred twenty (120) days after the Submittal Deadline, to allow time 
for evaluation, selection, and any unforeseen delays. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



SECTION 4 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
4.1  General 
 

The minimum requirements and the specifications for the Services, as well as certain 
requests for information to be provided by Proposer as part of its proposal, are set forth 
below. As indicated in Section 2.5 of this RFP, the successful Proposer is referred to as 
the “Contractor.” 

 
4.2  Minimum Requirements 
 

Qualified vendors shall be responsible for the following minimum services: 
 

4.2.1 Design and implement cybersecurity services for both the 110 employees of the 
Township, and for Township residents throughout the year 
4.2.1a Every other month provide a training module to keep employees and 

residents updated on current cyber threats 
4.2.1b Administer phishing emails bi-weekly to increase employee vigilance  

 
4.2.2 Assign a cybersecurity professional who will give executive briefings to 

Township leadership to provide progress updates and guidance 
 

4.2.3 Perform a cyberhealth evaluation baseline for progress tracking. Evaluation shall 
use either; National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST), or CIS 
Controls frameworks 

 
4.2.4 Review and create cyber policies and work with the Township on employee 

awareness of policies 
 

4.2.5 Scan the dark web and provide recommendations to decrease vulnerabilities 
 

4.2.6  Assist with renewal of Cyber Security Insurance policies  
 

4.2.7  Create a portal where employees can access cyber policies and training 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



SECTION 5 
 

PRICING 
 
Proposal of: __________________________________ 

          (Proposer Company Name) 
 
To:  Ypsilanti Township 
 

RFP Title: CYBERSECURITY SERVICES 
 
Having carefully examined all the specifications and requirements of this RFP and any 
attachments thereto, the undersigned proposes to furnish the services required pursuant to the 
above-referenced Request for Proposal upon the terms quoted below. 
 
5.1  Pricing for Services 
 

Proposer shall include in Proposal a pricing list of all services required for this project as 
described in Section 4. Do NOT use “To Be Determined” or similar annotations for cost 
estimates. 

 
Price per Year: $___________ 

 
Additional fees must be itemized and defined below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



SECTION 6 
 

PROPOSER’S GENERAL QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

Proposals must include responses to the questions contained in this Proposer’s General 
Questionnaire. Proposer should reference the item number and repeat the question in its 
response. In cases where a question does not apply or if unable to respond, Proposer should refer 
to the item number, repeat the question, and indicate N/A (Not Applicable) or N/R (No 
Response), as appropriate. Proposer will explain the reason when responding N/A or N/R. 
 
6.1 Proposer Profile 
 

6.1.1 Number of years in Business: _____________ 
 
State of incorporation: _________________ 

 
Number of Employees: _________________ 

 
Name of Parent Corporation, if any ______________________________ 

 
6.1.2  State whether Proposer will provide a copy of its financial statements for the past  

two (2) years, if requested by the Township. 
 

6.1.3  Is Proposer currently for sale or involved in any transaction to expand or to 
become acquired by another business entity? If yes, Proposer will explain the 
expected impact, both in organizational and directional terms. 

 
6.1.4  Is Proposer currently in default on any loan agreement or financing agreement  

with any bank, financial institution, or other entity? If yes, Proposer will specify 
the pertinent date(s), details, circumstances, and describe the current prospects for 
resolution. 

 
6.1.5  Proposer will provide a customer reference list of no less than three (3)  

organizations with which Proposer currently has contracts and/or to which 
Proposer has previously provided services (within the past five (5) years) of a 
type and scope similar to those required by Township’s RFP. Proposer will include 
in its customer reference list the customer’s company name, contact person, 
telephone number, project description, length of business relationship, and 
background of services provided by Proposer. 
 

6.1.6  Does any relationship exist (whether by family kinship, business association,  
capital funding agreement, or any other such relationship) between Proposer  
and any employee of Township? If yes, Proposer will explain. 



6.2 Miscellaneous 
 

6.2.1  Proposer will provide a list of any additional services or benefits not otherwise  
identified in this RFP that Proposer would propose to provide to Township. 

 
6.2.2  Proposer will provide details describing any unique or special services or benefits  

offered or advantages to be gained by Township from doing business with  
Proposer. Additional services or benefits must be directly related to the goods and 
services solicited under this RFP. 

 
6.2.3  Does Proposer have a contingency plan or disaster recovery plan in the event of a  

disaster? If so, then Proposer will provide a copy of the plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



SECTION 7 
EXECUTION OF OFFER 

 
Proposal of: ___________________________________ 

         (Proposer Company Name) 
 
To:           Ypsilanti Township 
 

RFP Title: CYBERSECURITY SERVICES 
 
This Proposal shall remain in effect for the Proposal Validity Period (ref Section 3.3) and shall be 
exclusive of federal excise and state and local sales tax (exempt). 
 
The person signing this Response on behalf of the Proposer represents to Owner that: 
 
(1)  The information provided herein is true, complete and accurate to the best of the  

knowledge and belief of the undersigned; and 
 
(2)  He/she has full authority to execute this response 
 
(3)  Proposer has received the Addenda to this RFP. 
 
Executed this ____day of _____________________, 2023 
 
 
_____________________    _____________________ 
Entity Name       Signature 
 
 
_____________________    _____________________ 
Street & Mailing Address     Print Name of Signatory 
 
 
_____________________    _____________________ 
Township, State, and Zip     Title of Signatory 
 
 
_____________________    _____________________  
Telephone Number      Email Address 
 
 
_____________________ 
Mobile Number 



ADDENDUM 
 
Pursuant to Michigan law, (the Iran Economic Sanctions Act, 2012 PA 517, MCL 129.311 et 
seq.), before accepting any bid or proposal, or entering into any contract for goods or services 
with any prospective Vendor, the Vendor must first certify that it is not an “IRAN LINKED 
BUSINESS, as defined by law.  
 
Vendor: 
Legal Name:  
Street Address:  
City:  
State:  
Zip:  
Corporate I.D.:  
Number / State:  
Taxpayer I.D. #: 

 
The undersigned, with: 1) full knowledge of all of Vendors business activities, 2) full knowledge 
of the requirements and possible penalties under the law MCL 129.311 et seq. and 3) the full and 
complete authority to make this certification on behalf of the Vendor, by his/her signature below, 
certifies that: the Vendor is NOT an “IRAN LINKED BUSINESS” as required by MCL 129.311 
et seq., and as such that Vendor is legally eligible to submit a bid and be considered for a 
possible contract to supply goods and/or services to the Charter Township of Ypsilanti. I have 
reviewed the terms and conditions and insurance requirements prior to submitting this bid  
solicitation.  
 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________  
Signature      Title  
 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________  
Company      Date  
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE MUST BE SIGNED AND INCLUDED IN YOUR PROPOSAL. 



 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 



BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 


	October 3, 2023
	Work Session Agenda
	Grants Update
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	August 15, 2023 Work Session Minutes
	August 15, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes
	September 19, 2023 Work Session Minutes
	September 19, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes

	Attorney Report
	Old Business
	Washtenaw County Agreement for Election Services

	New Business
	Homrich Change Order #2
	SME Change Order #1
	Homrich Payment Application
	MSD Draft Job Descriptions
	HR Draft Job Description
	OHM Carport Services
	Snow Plow Purchase
	Budget Amendment #13

	Authorizations and Bids
	Bids for Cybersecurity

	Other Business
	Board Member Updates



